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In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospect and take informed investment decisions. This 
report and other statements – written and oral that we periodically make, contain forward looking statements that set out anticipated results based on the Management’s 
plans and assumptions. We have tried where ever possible to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipates, estimates, expects, projects, intends, plans, 
believes’ and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion or future performance.

We cannot guarantee that these forward looking statements will be realized, although we believe that we have been prudent in assumptions. The achievement of results is 
subject to risks, uncertainties and even in an inaccurate assumption. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialise or should underline assumptions prove 
inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers should bear this in mind.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future event or otherwise. 
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With great pleasure, I welcome you to the 17th Annual General 

Meeting of your Company. We have come along one more 

year of moving ahead in emerging opportunities in global and 

domestic markets. India continues to consolidate its position 

as the global hub for IT services enabling digital transforming 

for clients and domestic markets getting boost with different 

initiatives on “Digital India” and “Make in India”. We believe 

by leveraging our domain experience in technology and 

signifi cant presence in the rapidly growing Telecom, IT and 

IT enabled services will provide good opportunity to enhance 

our business spread.

We are living in times of great global transformation, and as 

the needs and requirements of corporations around the world 

change, we at IKF continue to adjust our sails to catch the 

right winds into the future.

Over the period, we have built competitive advantage by 

combining domain expertise, technology, analytics, and 

knowledge management. This has helped us to deliver 

complex services of consistently high quality. We have 

responded quickly and stayed agile to be ahead of larger 

and more established competitors. We have also focused 

on niche services to access new clients, capabilities and 

geographies.

This approach allows us to present our clients with year-on-

year cost savings and increased value generation. In turn, this 

has led to industry-leading return ratios, operating margins, 

and enviable cash conversion records.

Looking ahead
We remain very positive about the long-term future of our 

business. 

Companies embracing digital will have enhanced agility 

and effi ciency, putting them ahead in the race. It is these 

companies that will be able to sustain themselves in the 

context of volatile market conditions and geopolitical issues. 

Today, it is not about making a choice, it is about how soon 

the choice is made. 

IKF is geared to play the role of a strategic consultant, 

implementation partner and enabler. The team at IKF is 

ready with its vast experience, deep technology expertise 

and proven capabilities in enabling customers successfully 

navigate through the digital world of today and tomorrow.

On behalf of Company’s Board of directors I would like to 

acknowledge and thank each and every one of our IKF family 

members for their dedication to work for your Company.

Against this backdrop, we thank you once again for your 

support and encouragement, and look forward to continuing 

our growth and performance.

Sincerely,

 N.V. Simhadri

 Chairman

 DIN: 00231683

Chairman‘s Message

“I Can’t change the direction of the wind, but I can 
adjust my sails to always reach my destination”        

- Jimmy Dean

Dear Shareholders,

Date: 2nd July, 2016
Place: Kolkata
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As we complete 17 years of the Company, I am extremely 

happy to re-connect with you at a very interesting phase in 

the life-cycle of your Company, a time when it has grown in 

size and matured in terms of delivery capabilities and faces a 

unique opportunity to enhance its role as a full–service, value–

adding partner to the industry. Everyone here at IKF is feeling 

energized and confident of the goals set; to take IKF Services 

into the next orbit. Going forward our Strategy is to further 

strengthen the Quality centric approach; delivering seamless 

transition experience and continuous value to our customers. 

We will continue building trusted partnerships with all our 

stakeholders, consolidating our market leadership, adhering 

to Nucleus Values.

Highlights for FY 2015-16

During 2015-16 IKF made strong progress despite a 

challenging environment, delivering increase in both revenue 

and operating income. Our Strong Governance and ongoing 

commitment to operational improvement continued to show 

results. Just as importantly, we continued to execute on our 

long-term strategic plan, building a stronger organization 

well positioned to take advantage of growth opportunities 

in our BPO, ISP and other segments as well. In the face 

of these challenging and difficult global and domestic 

operating circumstances, we crossed 6206 Lakhs revenue 

mark. Driving this remarkable performance were both the 

IT and ITeS services. The growth was driven largely by 

strong governance, high conversion ratio, and well planned 

strategies at all levels. We added a few new clients during 

the year. 

Our priorities for FY 2016-17

We will keep focusing on growth through optimum utilization 

of available resources along with focus on returns for the 

clients we work with, coupled with our delivery excellence 

through automation and efficiency frameworks.

Finally, I am deeply grateful to all our investors for your 

goodwill and support. Your support motivates us to do our 

best every day. We assure you that we will do everything we 

can, to deliver sustainable results for all our stakeholders.

Sincerely,

Kamal Kishor Poddar
Chief Financial Officer

Letter From CFO

“Winning isn’t everything, but 
wanting to win is”

- Vince Lombardi
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It is my pleasure to make this inaugural note to all IKF 
shareholders. These are exciting times in the industry – made 
exciting by the prospect of the transformational impact of 
Digital movement.

Even as there is enhanced clarity on the growing digital role 
in corporate competitiveness, there is a deterring reality. A 
number of global organizations are finding it increasingly 
difficult to scale their digital investments due to the inability 
to forecast or estimate a clear return on their investments.

Of all the companies that invested in digital technologies to 
strengthen their competitiveness, only 40% could establish 
accountability measures (targets, incentives or ‘owners’ of 
digital programs).Only 4% of the companies that made digital 
investments could generate returns at all.

Which explains why a far-sighted technology transformation 
services provider like ourselves, IKF is doing something more 
than merely evangelizing digital services. It is taking these 
solutions to its clients against prospects of measurable 
business gains that translate into quicker payback. 

It is indeed fulfilling and rewarding when strategies, plans and 
efforts come together to create results that are directional 
as well as progressive. At IKF, in 2015-16 we delivered a 

robust, all-round performance making us one of the fastest 
growing IT/ ITeS Company. What makes this performance 
more pronounced is the fact that it was achieved amidst 
challenging global and domestic business environments. 

Focus on returns for the clients we work with, coupled with 
our delivery excellence through automation and efficiency 
frameworks, further bolstered through transparent and 
performance driven people practices, built on the strong 
foundation of a solid strategy and sharpened go to market – 
has IKF poised for significant growth ahead.

Best Regards,

 

Sunil Kumar Goyal
WTD & CEO
DIN: 00550933

Letter from WTD & CEO

Treat Employees like they make a 
difference and they will prove the same.

“Strive not to be a success 
but rather to be of value” 

Albert Einstein

Dear Shareholders,

Date: 2nd July, 2016

Place: Kolkata
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History

 4. Kotak Mahindra Old Mutual Life Insurance Limited &
 5. Aircel Limited.

(ii) The Company has entered into the Memorandum of Understanding 
with Telecommunication Consultants India Limited (TCIL) to 
collaborate for providing various avenues in E-Shiksha & E-Swasthya 
in order to make a combined effort with a social initiative.

2011 

 The Company has entered into Agreement with Integrated Subscriber 
Management Services Limited (Dish TV) to provide Outbound Call Centre 
Services to ISML from its operating centre at Kolkata.

2012 

(i) The Company has entered into Master Services Agreement with IDEA 
Cellular Limited for managing the Contact Centre Services for Tele-
verifi cation from Kolkata-WB based Call Centers. 

(ii) The Company has entered into Master Services Agreement with 
Sistema Shyam Teleservices Limited (MTS) to manage and handle the 
outbound calls for its centre at Kolkata.

(iii) The Company has entered into the Memorandum of Understanding 
with Virtual Global Education Limited (VGEL) to provide the Onsite 
Training through technical staff so as to enhance the productivity and 
employment capability of the trained youth in the state of Rajasthan.

2013
(i)  The Company has entered into a Rate Contract, Tele Verifi cation 

Agreement with Dishnet Wireless Limited to provide the Internet 
Services to DWL.

(ii)  TTSL extended the term of the Principal Agreement for a further period 
of 1 year retrospectively with effect from 01st October, 2012.

(iii)  The Company has won the prestigious Fourth Inc. India 500 
Business Excellence Award as one of India’s fastest growing Mid-Size 
Enterprises.

(iv)  The Company has entered into Agreement with BSNL for providing 
the Call Centre Services.

2014
 (i)  LOI received from E-Mitra (Rajasthan). 

(ii)  Telecom ISP has grown substantially in a short span of time with wider 
national presence.

2015
(i)  We had taken initiative to make Digital India.

(ii)  Our Company has done expansion in diversifi ed sectors.

(iii) Agreement executed with Software Technology Parks of India under 
the North East BPO Promotion Scheme.

2016
(i)  The Company has entered into the Memorandum of Understanding 

with Chattisgargh State Industrial Development Corporation Ltd.

(ii) Our Company opened the fi rst BPO unit in North-East Region at 
Guwahati.     

(iii) Telecom ISP has reached Gram Panchayat level for providing fast and 
cheap internet services to fulfi ll the dream of Hon’ble Prime Minister 
Narendra Modi.

2000
 Incorporated on 22nd February, 2000 as a Public Limited Company, under 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

2001 
 The Company went for an Initial Public Offer (IPO) of Rs.40,000,000 

divided into 4,000,000 equity Shares of Rs.10 each and the issue was fully 
subscribed.

2005 

(i) The main objective of the Company was promoting Information 
Technology (IT), Information Technology Enabled Services (ITES), 
Internet Service Provider (ISP) Services, Education and Alternative 
Energy Resources across the Globe. It’s a fastest growing IT Company 
has maintained its leadership status in catalyzing renaissance in Indian 
IT arena.

 (ii) The face value of the Equity Shares of the Company sub-divided from 
Rs. 10/- per share to Re. 1/- per share.

2006 

 The Company has entered into strategic alliance with Indian Oil Corporation 
for technical and marketing collaboration. The Company has signed an 
MOU with Gujarat Govt. for making an investment of over 110 crores to 
set up a 1,00,000 ton plant in Gujarat.

2007 

(i) The Company has over the years achieved Jatropha Plantations in the 
state of Meghalaya. 

(ii)  The Company has won the “Excellence Award” and “Udyog and 
Ratan Award” by IES/ICSME in 2007 for its commendable efforts in 
the fi eld of bio fuels.

2008 

 The Company has entered into Agreement with Tata Teleservices Limited 
(TTSL) for handling all the calls related to the Post-paid connections.

2009
 Company’s Internet Service Provider (ISP) Department has initiated the 

following products & service in India.

(i) Wholesale VOIP minutes traffi c termination for International Call 
Centre.

(ii) Unlimited Retail VOIP plans for SMEs/Solo/Export House segments.

(iii) PCO solution for VOIP call Points.

(iv) Internet Lease Line Bandwidth for corporate clients.

(v) Internet Broadband plans on WI-FI network.

2010 

 (i) The Company has entered into Master Services Agreement with 
following Companies for providing the Call Centre Services (Inbound & 
Outbound) and selling their product and services. 

 1. Bharti Airtel Limited, 
 2. Integrated Subscriber Management Services Limited (Dish TV), 
 3. Metlife India Insurance Company Limited, 
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QUALITY
CERTIFICATIONS
ISO 27001:2005 Certificate for ensuring Information 
Security Management System.

ISO 9001:2008 Certificate for ensuring Quality Man-
agement Standard System.



Financial Highlights
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Some believe in the power of numbers. Some believe in the power of technology. We believe in the power 
of people.

- by the Board of Directors

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors (”Board”) hereby submits the report of the business and operations of your Company (‘the 
Company’ or ‘IKF Technologies Limited’), along with the Audited Financial Statements, for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2016. 

1. Financial Performance

 The summarized standalone results of your Company is given in the table below.

Particulars

Financial Year ended

Standalone

31/03/2016 31/03/2015*

Total Income 6206.45 4739.40

Profit/(loss) before Interest, Depreciation & Tax (EBITDA) 551.93 417.64

Finance Charges 78.78 54.42

Depreciation 353.92 247.88

Provision for Income Tax (including for earlier years) 44.59 0.92

Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax 74.64 114.42

Profit/(Loss) brought forward from previous year 1619.73 1596.86

Amount transferred consequent to change in Depreciation 0.00 (91.55)

Profit/(Loss) carried to Balance Sheet 1694.37 1619.73

 *previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

2. State of Company’s Affairs :
 The highlights of the Company’s performance are as under:

 Ø Total Revenue from Operations increased by 30.53% to Rs. 6147.87 Lakhs  

 Ø Profit Before Tax marginally increased by 3.37% to Rs. 119.23 Lakhs.

3. Transfer to Reserves :
 The Company has not transferred any amount to general reserves during the financial year ended 31st March, 2016.

4. Liquidity :
 We continue to maintain sufficient cash to meet our strategic objective.

5. Particulars of Loans, guarantee or Investment:
 Loans, guarantee and investment covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the Notes to the 

financial statements provided in this Annual report.

6. Fixed Deposits:
 We have not accepted any fixed deposits and, as such, no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as of the Balance 

Sheet date.

 During the year under report your Company has not accepted any Fixed Deposit under section 73 of the Companies Act, 
2013 as such; no amount of principle or interest was outstanding as of the balance sheet date.

DIRECTORS REPORT

(` in Lakh)
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7. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties:

 All contracts / arrangements / transactions, if any, entered by the Company during the financial year 2015-16 with related 

parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company has not entered 

into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered as material.

 Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note (1B)(5) to the Financial Statement which sets out Related Party 

Disclosures. Further details are mentioned in the prescribed Form AOC -2, and are appended as Annexure I to the Board 

Report.

8. Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report:
 In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management’s discussion and analysis is presented in a separate section forming 

part of the Annual Report.

9. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies:
 During the year under review, no Company ceased to be Company’s Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture Company. 

The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) reviewed the affairs of the subsidiaries during the year. In accordance with section 

129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we have prepared consolidated financial statements of the Company, which 

forms part of this Annual Report. Further, a statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of our 

subsidiaries in the prescribed format AOC – 1 is appended as Annexure II to the Board Report. The statement also 

provides the details of performance and financial positions of each of the subsidiaries.

 In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statement, including the consolidated 

financial statements and related information of the Company and audited accounts of each of its subsidiaries, are 

available on our website: www.ikf-technologies.com. These documents will be available for inspection during business 

hours at our registered office at Kolkata, India.

 Further, brief about the business of the each of the Subsidiaries, Associates and joint venture are given hereunder:-

 a. IKF Green Fuel Ltd. – Indian WOS

  A Company incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 1956. Registered Office is situated at Shillong 

(Meghalaya).

 b. IKF Technologies Pty. Ltd. - Foreign WOS

  A Company organized under the laws of South Africa.

 c. IKF Telecom Inc. - Foreign WOS

  A Company organized under the laws of Delaware, U.S.A.

 d. Biofel Fze - Foreign WOS

  A Company organized under Hamriyah Free Zone Authority, U.A.E.

 e. IKF Insurance Marketing Ltd. (formerly known as IKF Salampuria Agrotech Ltd.) – Indian Associate  

 A Company incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 1956. Registered Office is situated at Kolkata.

10. Human Resources: 
 The Human Resource is important asset of the Company. For growth of employees, Company organizes training 

sessions, various other programs to boost the morale of employees and appreciate them from time to time for their 

performance. Management communicates with employees on regular basis through various modes and including 

internal portal. The Company has maintained cordial relationship with the employees. 

 The Internal Complaints Committee has been constituted pursuant to the Section 4 of the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 for protection against sexual harassment of 

women at work place.

DIRECTORS REPORT (Contd.)
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11. Talent Hunt: 
 During the financial year under review, we launched various innovative programs to search the talent to create valuable 

resources for the organisation. Our employees can enhance their skills to gain exposure while delivering value. 

12. Education, Training and Assessment:
 Learning and Education are the integral part of IKF. To enhance the innovation quotient among the workforce, we 

conduct various programs, which train individuals in an empathetic, customer-centric mode of problem-fining and 

problem-resolving. 

13. Particulars of Employees:
 In terms of the provisions of the section 197(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, none of the employee drew remuneration in 

excess of the limit set out in the said rules and details has been mentioned in Annexure III.

14. Corporate Governance:
 The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and adhere to the corporate 

governance requirements set out by SEBI. Corporate Governance is about maximizing shareholders value ethically and 

sustainably. We believe sound corporate governance is essential criteria to enhance and retain investor’s reliance. We 

always seek to ensure that our performance is driven by integrity. The report on Corporate Governance as   stipulated 

under the Listing Agreement forms an integral part of this Annual Report. The requisite certificate from the Auditors     

of the Company confirming compliance with the conditions of corporate governance is attached to the report on 

Corporate Governance. 

15. Number of Meetings of the Board:
 The Board met four times during the financial year, the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. 

The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013.

16. Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration:
 The Board consists of four members, one of whom is executive or whole-time director and three are independent 

directors. Board consists of appropriate mix of executive and independent directors to maintain the independence of 

the Board and separate its functions of governance and management.

 The policy on Directors Nomination and Remuneration, including criteria for determining qualifications, positive 

attributes, independence of a director and other matters, as required under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 is available on the website of the Company. There has been no change in the policy since last 

financial year. 

17. Declaration by Independent Directors:
 Mr. N. V. Simhadri, Mr. Umesh Bhat, and Ms. Nidhi Sharma are Independent Directors on the Board of your Company. 

The Company has received necessary declarations from each Independent Director under Section 149(7) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, and in the opinion of the Board and as confirmed by these Directors they meets the criteria of 

independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

18. Board Evaluation:
 As mandated under the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Board shall review and 

monitor the Board evaluation framework. The Board evaluates various parameters such as decision–making, relationship 

with stakeholders, Company performance and strategy, checking Board and committee’s effective working etc.

 The Companies Act, 2013 says that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own performance 

and that of its committees and directors. Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 states that the performance evaluation 

of independent director shall be done by the entire Board, excluding the director being evaluated.

 The evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole has been conducted. The Board approved the evaluation 

results as collated by the nomination and remuneration committee.

DIRECTORS REPORT (Contd.)
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19. Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading:
 Code of Conduct for the Prevention of Insider Trading is in accordance with the requirements specified in the SEBI 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 and the Board has adopted the same. The Insider Trading Policy of the 

Company explains the guidelines and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with shares 

of the Company, as well as the consequences of violation of norms. The Insider Trading Policy is also available on the 

website of the Company.

20. Listing Agreement: 
 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), on September 2, 2015 issued SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which become effective from December 1, 2015 by replacing existing 

Listing Agreement. The Company entered into new Listing Agreement with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and 

Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited during December 2015.

21. Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors
 On their appointment, Independent Directors are familiarised about the Company’s operations and businesses. 

Interaction with the Business   Heads   and   key   executives   of   the   Company   is   also Board’s Report facilitated. 

Detailed presentations on the business of each of the Divisionarealso made tothe Directors. Direct meetings with 

the Chairman & Managing  Director  are  further  facilitated  for  the  new  appointee  to familiarize him/her about the 

Company/its businesses and the group practices.

22. Operations :
 Our reputation for excellence and integrity earned through the consistent delivery of quality work and by adhering the 

highest standard of business conduct through principles of Corporate Governance continues to be our most valuable 

assets. As we position ourselves for the future and our standard of excellence, integrity and accountability will serve us 

well.

 Further, no material events, commitment and changes occurred between the end of the financial year of the company 

to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

23. Business Outlook
 IT, ITES & Telecom & Education sectors are expected to grow tremendously in 2016-17. Global IT & ITES spending will 

accelerate during 2016-17. We place significant emphasis on collaborative spirit, unrelenting dedication towards our 

customers, expert thinking and high standards of corporate governance. Our endeavor is to create success for our 

customers through innovative working by happy people at workplace.

 With centers franchisee all over India, we offer ITES Call Centre, BPO, IT Software, ISP Internet & VoIP Services etc., to 

our customers. We believe that our comprehensive portfolio of service offerings helps our customers achieve their key 

business objectives.

 Your Company received good traction for its services and its expertise in chosen segments & continues to hold it in 

good stead. Your Company has also re-aligned its processes, updated services, enhanced offerings, upgraded brand 

image and continue to deliver superior value to its customers. Your Company today is much more focused and is 

executing better than a year ago.

24. Dividend
 Your Directors feel that it is prudent to plough back the profits for long term growth objectives of the Company and 

hence, do not recommend any dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

25. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
 During the year 2015-16, the following changes have occurred in the Directorships :

 1. Mr. Pradeep Dutta, Director has resigned from the office of directorship with effect from 15th October, 2015;

 2. Mr. Santosh Chowdhury, who was appointed as a non-executive, Non-Independent Director has resigned from the 

post of Directorship with effect from 06th January, 2016. 

DIRECTORS REPORT (Contd.)
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 The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet 

with the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Clause 49 

of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange. The Code of Independent directors for selection of Directors and 

determining Independent Director is followed.

 In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 

Company, Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal, Whole Time Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

26. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
 Mr. Umesh Bhat is the Chairman and Mr. N. V. Simhadri, Ms. Nidhi Sharma are Members of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee of the Company.

 Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel & Senior Executive Personnel is attached herewith 

marked as Annexure III.

27. Consolidated Financial Statement
 In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Accounting Standard (AS) - 21 on Consolidated Financial 

Statements, the audited consolidated financial statement is provided in the Annual  Report.

28. Loan, Guarantee, Security & Investment:
 The details of Loan, Guarantee, Security & Investment cover under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013 are given in the Financial Statements. During the year under review, No guarantee/ security in connection with a 

loan to anybody corporate or person has been given.

29. Listing:
 During the year under review, the Company continued to remain listed on The Bombay Stock Exchange, Calcutta Stock 

Exchange.

 The Company has paid Annual Listing fees for year 2016-17 to the Bombay Stock Exchange, Calcutta Stock Exchange.

30. Capital
 During the year, the Company has not allotted any Equity Share on rights/ preferential/ private placement basis. All 

Equity Shares of the Company ranks pari-passu in all respect.

 The Company has not allotted any Preference Shares/ Debentures.

 As on 31st March, 2016, the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of your Company comprising 430,581,440 

Equity shares of Re.1/- each.

31. Extract of Annual Return 

 Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of annual return is Annexed as Annexure I.

32. Vigil mechanism
 The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which also incorporates a whistle blower policy in terms of the Listing Agreement, 

includes an Ethics & Compliance Task Force comprising senior executives of the Company. Protected disclosures   can 

be made by a whistle blower through an e-mail, or dedicated telephone line or a letter to the Task Force or to     the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Policy on vigil mechanism may be accessed on the Company’s website www.

ikf-technologies.com.

33. Corporate Social Responsibility
 Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in regards of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are not mandatorily apply 

on our Company, still Company follow it voluntarily. Details of CSR activities of the Company form part of this Annual 

Report. 

DIRECTORS REPORT (Contd.)
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34. Directors’ Responsibility Statement
 Pursuant to the requirement of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors 

confirm that:

 (a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2016 the applicable accounting standards 

had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material  departures;

 (b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

as at 31sr March, 2016 and of the profit and loss of the Company for that  period;

 (c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud  and other irregularities;

 (d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  and

 (e) the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

 (f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

35. Statutory Auditors, their Report and Notes to Financial Statements
 M/s. Mandawewala & Co. Chartered Accountants were appointed as Auditors of the Company for a period of five 

years from the conclusion of Annual General Meeting held on 19th September, 2014. As required under the provisions 

of Section 139 of the Act, 2013, a resolution for the yearly ratification of their appointment is being placed before the 

shareholders for their approval. In this regard, the Company has received a certificate from the Auditors to the effect 

that if they are re-appointed, it would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the Act.

36. Cost Auditors: 
 The provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply to the Company and hence, no cost auditors 

are appointed.

37. Secretarial audit 
 In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, Ms. Chanchal Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary 

have been appointed Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The report of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as 

Annexure V to this report. The report is self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

38. Risk Management Policy
 In terms of the requirement of the Act, the Company has developed and implemented the Risk Management Policy and 

the Audit Committee of the Board reviews the same periodically.

39. Audit Committee
 The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of three Independent Directors namely Mr. N. V. Simhadri as Chairman, 

Mr. Umesh Bhat and Ms. Nidhi Sharma as Members of the Committee. All the recommendations of the Audit Committee 

were accepted by the Board.

40. Significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals
 During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 

impacting the going concern status and company’s operations. However, Company received final order dated 20th  

April, 2015 from SEBI, where SEBI restricted the Company not to issue Equity Shares or any other instrument convertible 

into Equity Shares or any other Securities for a period of 10 years. Company has already undergone the prohibition for 

a period of approximately 4 years and 8 months and has filed Appeal before Securities Appellate Tribunal.
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41. Internal Financial Controls
 The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are commensurate with the size and nature of 

business of the Company and detailed has been mentioned in Annexure-B of the Standalone Auditors Report.

42. Meetings of the Board
 Four Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year. For further details, please refer Corporate Governance 

Report of this Annual Report.

43. Transfer of Amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund
 Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore there were no 

funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

44. Details of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
 The Particulars relating to the conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo, 

as required to be disclosed under the Companies Act, 2013, are provided in Annexure IV of the Report.

45. General Disclosures
 Neither the CFO nor the CEO of the Company receives any remuneration or commission from subsidiary company viz. 

IKF Green Fuel Limited.

46. Obligation of the Company under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

 The Company has adopted an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment 

Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the workplace ( Prevention, Prohibition & 

Redressal) Act, 2013. Your Directors further states that during the year under review, there was no case filed pursuant 

to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & redressal) Act, 2013.

47. Acknowledgement
 The Directors acknowledge and would like to place on record the commitment and dedication on the part of the 

employees of your Company for their continued  efforts in achieving good results. The Directors also wish to 

acknowledge and record their appreciation of the continued support and assistance received by the Company’s Bank, 

financial institutions, mutual funds as well as from various Government bodies both at the centre and the State. 

Date : 2nd July, 2016

Place : Kolkata

For and on behalf of the Board 

IKF Technologies Limited

N. V. Simhadri
Chairman

DIN: 00231683
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016

of

IKF TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

 i) CIN : L72200WB2000PLC111253

 ii) Registration Date : 22-02-2000

 iii) Name of the Company : IKF Technologies Limited

 iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company/Limited by Shares

 v) Address of the Registered Office and contact details :

  2nd Floor, Plot No. J1/12, Block EP & GP, Sector V, Salt Lake, Kolkata – 700 091

  Phone No. 033-23572610/11; Fax: 033-23572612

  E-mail: info@ikftech.in

  Website: www.ikf-technologies.com

 vi) Whether Listed Company : Yes

 vii) Name, Address and contact details of Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA) :

  Bigshare Services Private Limited

  E-2/3, Ansal Industrial Estate, Sakivihar Road, Sakinaka,

  Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 072.

  Tel: +91 22 28470652, 40430200  Fax: +91 22 28475207

  Email: info@bigshareonline.com; sandeep@bigshareonline.com

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sl. No.
Name and Description of main products / 

services
NIC Code of the

Product/ service #
% to total turnover

of the Company

1. Software Sales 222 40.59%

2. BPO Income 176 30.96%

3. Software Services/Consultancy & IT Income 846 20.71%

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. No. Name of the Company
Holding/ 

Subsidiary/
Associate

% of  Shares held
Applicable Section

1. IKF Green Fuel Ltd. Subsidiary 99.93% 2(87)(ii)

2. IKF Technologies Pty. Ltd. Subsidiary 100% 2(87)(ii)

3. IKF Telecom Inc. Subsidiary 100% 2(87)(ii)

4. Biofuel Fze. Subsidiary 100% 2(87)(ii)

5.
IKF Insurance Marketing Ltd. (formerly known as 
IKF Salampuria Agrotech Ltd.)

Associate 44.64% 2(6)

Appendix I
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VI.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 (i) Category-wise Shareholding:

Category of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year   
(01-04-2015)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
(31-03-2016)

%  of 
Change

during the 
yearDemat Physical Total % of Total Share Demat Physical Total % of Total Share

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

(a) Individual/HUF 5400000 0 5400000 1.2541 5400000 0 5400000 1.2541 0

(b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(c) State Govt (s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(d) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(f) Others 33326036 0 33326036 7.7398 33326036 0 33326036 7.7398 0

Sub-total (A)(1):- 38726036 0 38726036 8.9939 38726036 0 38726036 8.9939 0

(2) Foreign

(a) NRIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(b) Other – Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(e) Any Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (A)(2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total shareholding of 
Promoter 
(A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)

38726036 0 38726036 8.9939 38726036 0 38726036 8.9939 0

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(g) FIIs 11412544 0 11412544 2.6505 11412544 0 11412544 2.6505 0

(h) Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (B)(1) :- 11412544 0 11412544 2.6505 11412544 0 11412544 2.6505 0

2. Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corp. 39099177 - 39099177 9.0806 35321887 - 35373887 8.2154 0.8652

(b) Individuals

(i) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

178559203 465998 179025201 41.5775 193315308 469398 193784706 45.0054 3.4278

(ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of Rs. lakh

35134066 224000 35358066 8.2117 23286675 224000 23510675 5.4602 2.7515

(c) Others (specify) 4861256 - 4861256 1.1290 5674432 - 5674432 1.3179 0.1889

Sub-total (B)(2):- 257653702 689998 258343700 59.9988 257598302 693398 258343700 59.9988 7.2333

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 269066246 689998 269756244 62.6493 269010846 693398 269756244 62.6493 7.2333

C. Shares held by Custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs 122099160 - 122099160 28.3568 122099160 - 122099160 28.3568 -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 429891442 689998 430581440 100.0000 429836042 693398 430581440 100.0000 -

Shareholder’s Name
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(ii)  Shareholding of Promoters:

Sl.
No.

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
(01-04-2015)

Share holding at the end of the year 
(31-03-2016) % of Change

In share
holding 
during

the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total
Shares of the

Company

% of Shares
Pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

No. of Shares

% of total
Shares of the

Company

% of Shares
Pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

1. Sunil Kumar Goyal 5400000 1.2541 - 5400000 1.2541 - -

2. Shree Assets Reconstruction 

Ltd.

15000000 3.4837 - 15000000 3.4837 - -

3. Green Open Technologies  Pvt. 

Ltd.

13941667 3.2379 - 13941667 3.2379 - -

4. Premium Linkers Ltd. 4384369 1.0182 - 4384369 1.0182 - -

Total 38726036 8.9939 - 38726036 8.9939 - -

(iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding:

Sl.
No.

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
(01-04-2015)

Cumulative Shareholding during the year 
(31-03-2016)

No. of Shares
% of total Shares of 

the Company
No. of Shares

% of total Shares of the 
Company

1. At the beginning of the year (01-04-2015) 38726036 8.9939 - -

2. Date wise Increase /Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the Year specifying 
the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity 
etc)

No Change No Change

3. At the end of the year (31-03-2016) 38726036 8.9939 38726036 8.9939

 Note: There is no change in the total shareholding of promoters between 01-04-2015 and 31-03-2016

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 

ADRs):

Sl.
No.

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding

Date
Increase/ 

Decrease in 
shareholding

Reason

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year$ 

(01-04-2015 to 31-03-2016)
No of shares at the 

beginning  
(01-04-2015) /end 

of the year 
(31-03-2016) 

% of total
Sharesof he
Company

No of Shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

1 Basmati Securities Pvt. Ltd.
16085115  3.7357 01-04-2015

0 Nil movement 
during the year 16085115 3.7357

16085115  3.7357 31-03-2016

2 India Focus Cardial Fund
10062544  2.3370 01-04-2015

0 Nil movement 
during the year 10062544 2.3370

10062544  2.3370 31-03-2016

3 B. Lodha Securities Ltd.

2254759  0.5237 01-04-2015 0
0.5078

14-08-2015 2500 Transfer 2257259

18-09-2015 -5000 Transfer 2252259

30-09-2015 -2500 Transfer 2249759

26-02-2016 -5000 Transfer 2244759

11-03-2016 -6000 Transfer 2238759

18-03-2016 -100 Transfer 2238659

25-03-2016 -54500 Transfer 2184159

2181659  0.5067 31-03-2016 2181659 0.5067



www.ikf-technologies.com 19

17th Annual Report 2015-16

4 Abdul Jawed Farooqui

1000005  0.2322 01-04-2015

21-08-2015 94484 Transfer 1094489

28-08-2015 99116 Transfer 1193605

04-09-2015 94238 Transfer 1287843

11-09-2015 106384 Transfer 1394227

18-09-2015 164179 Transfer 1558406

25-09-2015 41950 Transfer 1600356

30-09-2015 152070 Transfer 1752426

02-10-2015 34922 Transfer 1787348

09-10-2015 218112 Transfer 2005460

16-10-2015 2540 Transfer 2008000

2008000  0.4663 31-03-2016 2008000 0.4663

5 Patangi Trade & Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
1597059  0.3709 01-04-2015

0
Nil

movement
during the year

1597059 0.3709
1597059  0.3709 31-03-2016

6 Shri Parasram Holdings Pvt. Ltd.

1520764  0.3532 01-04-2015 0

10-04-2015 -6200 Transfer 1514564

17-04-2015 5400 Transfer 1519964

24-04-2015 -1184 Transfer 1518780

01-05-2015 1455 Transfer 1520235

08-05-2015 9424 Transfer 1529659

15-05-2015 -7695 Transfer 1521964

22-05-2015 7000 Transfer 1528964

29-05-2015 -6000 Transfer 1522964

05-06-2015 -2500 Transfer 1520464

12-06-2015 5000 Transfer 1525464

19-06-2015 -7001 Transfer 1518463

26-06-2015 3491 Transfer 1521954

30-06-2015 -3700 Transfer 1518254

03-07-2015 1826 Transfer 1520080

10-07-2015 -1719 Transfer 1518361

17-07-2015 403 Transfer 1518764

24-07-2015 1415 Transfer 1520179

31-07-2015 585 Transfer 1520764

07-08-2015 -24150 Transfer 1496614

14-08-2015 1300 Transfer 1497914

21-08-2015 11050 Transfer 1508964

28-08-2015 1396 Transfer 1510360

04-09-2015 -11490 Transfer 1498870

11-09-2015 500 Transfer 1499370

18-09-2015 -1750 Transfer 1497620

25-09-2015 6000 Transfer 1503620

30-09-2015 -4500 Transfer 1499120

02-10-2015 -564 Transfer 1498556

09-10-2015 4630 Transfer 1503186

16-10-2015 -2080 Transfer 1501106

23-10-2015 2500 Transfer 1503606

30-10-2015 -6456 Transfer 1497150

06-11-2015 4456 Transfer 1501606

20-11-2015 -944 Transfer 1500662

27-11-2015 9211 Transfer 1509873

04-12-2015 -10501 Transfer 1499372

11-12-2015 1500 Transfer 1500872

Sl.
No.

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding

Date
Increase/ 

Decrease in 
shareholding

Reason

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year$ 

(01-04-2015 to 31-03-2016)

No of shares at the 
beginning  

(01-04-2015) /end 
of the year 

(31-03-2016) 

% of total
Sharesof he
Company

No of Shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company
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18-12-2015 24700 Transfer 1525572

25-12-2015 15005 Transfer 1540577

31-12-2015 4320 Transfer 1544897

08-01-2016 -44417 Transfer 1500480

15-01-2016 5217 Transfer 1505697

22-01-2016 7534 Transfer 1513231

29-01-2016 2713 Transfer 1515944

05-02-2016 -13047 Transfer 1502897

12-02-2016 2662 Transfer 1505559

19-02-2016 -7000 Transfer 1498559

26-02-2016 -21720 Transfer 1476839

04-03-2016 -200 Transfer 1476639

11-03-2016 858 Transfer 1477497

18-03-2016 -9000 Transfer 1468497

25-03-2016 -2752 Transfer 1465745

31-03-2016 15222 Transfer 1480967

29-01-2016 2713 Transfer 1515944

1480967  0.3439 31-03-2016 1480967 0.3439

7 KII Limited
1350000  0.3135 01-04-2015

0
Nil

movement
during the year

1350000 0.3135
1350000  0.3135 31-03-2016

8 Puneet Vats
1200000  0.2787 01-04-2015

0
Nil

movement
during the year

1200000 0.2787
812000  0.1886 11-03-2016

9 Keshav Anand Karapurkar*

0 - 01-04-2015 -9000 Transfer 1468497

25-12-2015 436232 Transfer 436232

`08-01-2016 554257 Transfer 990489

15-01-2016 1000 Transfer 991489

29-01-2016 15050 Transfer 1006539

1006539  0.2338 31-03-2016 1006539 0.2338

10 Lachman Kishan Chand

812000  0.1886 01-04-2015

10-07-2015 -18500 Transfer 793500

31-07-2015 -25000 Transfer 768500

13-11-2015 9500 Transfer 778000

20-11-2015 22000 Transfer 800000

800000  0.1858 31-03-2016 800000  0.1858 

11 Prem Gupta#
743664  0.1727 

01-04-2015

25000 Transfer
768664

0.178519-06-2015

768664  0.1785 31-03-2016 768664

 * Not in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 01-04-2015. The same has been reflected above since shareholders were among the Top 10   
 shareholders as on 31-03-2016. 
#  Ceased to be in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 31-03-2016. The same is reflected above since shareholders were among the Top 10 shareholders as on 01-04-2015. 
$  Percentage for Cumulative shareholding during the year have been calculated by taking total shares of the Company at the end of the year.
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Sl.
No.

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding

Date
Increase/ 

Decrease in 
shareholding

Reason

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year$ 

(01-04-2015 to 31-03-2016)

No of shares at the 
beginning  

(01-04-2015) /end 
of the year 

(31-03-2016) 

% of total
Sharesof he
Company

No of Shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company
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(v) Shareholding of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl.
No.

For Each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
(01-04-2015)

Cumulative Shareholding during the year 
(31-03-2016)

No. of Shares % of total Shares of 
the Company

No. of Shares % of total Shares of the 
Company

1. At the beginning of the year (01-04-2015)
- Sunil Kumar Goyal
Whole-Time Director & CEO

5400000 1.2541 - -

2. Date wise Increase /Decrease in 
Shareholding during the year specifying 
the reasons for  increase /decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity 
etc):

No Change No Change

3. At the End of the year (31-03-2016) 5400000 1.2541 5400000 1.2541

(VI)  INDEBTEDNESS

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:

Particulars
Secured Loans

excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits
Total

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year (01-04-2015)
i)  Principal Amount  (a) UCO Bank –Cash Credit A/c.

(b) Car Loan 
(c) Term Loan

ii)   Interest due but not paid
iii)  Interest accrued but not due

354.69
9.67

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

354.69
9.67

-
-
-

Total (i+ii+iii) 364.36 - - 364.36

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
• Addition
• Reduction

481.04
(4.92)

-
-

-
-

481.04
(4.92)

Net Change 476.12 - - 476.12

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year (31-03-2016)
i)  Principal Amount  (a) UCO Bank –Cash Credit A/c.

(b) Car Loan
(c) Term Loan

ii)   Interest due but not paid
iii)  Interest accrued but not due

699.35
4.74

136.39
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

699.35
4.74

136.39
-
-

Total (i+ii+iii) 840.48 - - 840.48

(V)  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration
Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Total AmountSunil Kumar Goyal
Whole Time Director & CEO

1. Gross salary
(a)   Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961

12,00,000

-

-

12,00,000

-

-

2. Stock Option - -
3. Sweat Equity - -

4. Commission
- as % of profit
- others

- -

5. Others - -

Total (A) 12,00,000 12,00,000

(` in Lakhs)
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 B.  Remuneration to other Directors:

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration
Name of Directors

Total Amount
N. V. Simhadri Umesh Bhat Nidhi Sharma Pradeep Dutta

1.  Independent Directors
•   Fee for attending board / committee meetings
•   Commission
•   Others, please specify

40,000

-

-

20,000

-

-

30,000

-

-

-

-

-

90,000

-

-

Total (1) 40,000 20,000 30,000 - 90,000

2. Other Non-Executive Directors
• Fee for attending board / committee meetings 
• Commission
• Others, please specify

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

20,000

-

-

20,000

-

-

Total (2) - - - 20,000 20,000
Total (B)=(1+2) 40,000 20,000 30,000 20,000 1,10,000

Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) 13,10,000

 C.  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/WTD/Manager

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO (Sunil Kumar 
Goyal) (Liable to 
remuneration as 

WTD only. No extra 
remuneration payable 

as CEO)

Company
Secretary (Mohit 

Srivastava till 29th 
May, 2015 and 

Archana Saboo w.e.f. 
30th May, 2015)

CFO
(Kamal Kishor Poddar)

Total
Amount

1. Gross salary
(a)   Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 1961
Not Applicable

2,66,197

-

-

10,00,000

-

-

12,66,197

-

-

2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission - as % of profit - - -
5 Others - - -

Total - 2,66,197 10,00,000 12,66,197

VII.  PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type
Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief Description

Details of Penalty /
Punishment/

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority [RD/

NCLT /COURT] Appeal made

A. COMPANY

Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
C.  OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

(Amt. in ` )

Form No. MGT-9 (Contd.)
(Amt. in ` )
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 Annexure I
Statement Containing Salient Features of the Financial Statement of 

Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/ Joint Ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Sl.
No.

Name of the Subsidiary IKF Green Fuel Ltd.
IKF Technologies 

(Pty.) Ltd.
IKF Biofel Fze. IKF Telecom Inc.

1.
Reporting period for the subsidiary 
concerned,  if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period

01.04.2015
To  

31.03.2016

01.03.2015
To 

 28.02.2016

01.01.2015
To 

31.12.2015

01.01.2015
To 

31.12.2015

2. 
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as 
on the last date of the relevant Financial 
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.

INR
 Rand
 4.51

AED  
18.05

USD
66.20

3. Share Capital 309,737 16,545 632 65

4. Reserves & Surplus 25,521 33,888 (23) 57

5. Total Assets 354,481 51,367 609 122

6. Total Liabilities 354,481 51,367 609 122

7. Investments - - - -

8. Turnover 20,046 166,968 8,327 -

9. Profit Before Taxation 1,109 3,509 (1,418) -

10. Provision for Taxation - 69 - -

11. Profit  After Taxation 1,109 3,440 (1,418) -

12. Proposed Dividend - - - -

13. % of Shareholding 99.93% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

 Note: Financial Year of Foreign Subsidiaries of the Company are different as such figures for the period starting from 
1st January, 2015 to 31st December, 2015 has been taken.

 The following information shall be furnished:- 
1.  Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations : IKF Telecom Inc. 

2.  Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Sl.
No.

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures
IKF Insurance Marketing Ltd. 

(Associate Company)

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31-03-2016

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end (31-03-2015) No.
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 
Extend of Holding %

25,000 
` 2,50,000

44.64%

3. Description of how there is significant influence By Shareholding

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture  is not consolidated Investment is for temporary purpose

5. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest Audited Balance Sheet ` 2,58,401

6. Profit / Loss for the year 
i.  Considered in Consolidation
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 3

 The following information shall be furnished:-
 1.  Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil.

Form No. AOC-1

Date : 2nd July, 2016

Place : Kolkata

For and on behalf of the Board 

IKF Technologies Limited

N. V. Simhadri
Chairman

DIN: 00231683
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 Annexure II

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Disclosure of Particulars of Contracts/Arrangements entered into by the Company with Related Parties 

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 

transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Sl.
No.

Name of 
Related Party 
and nature of 
relationship

Nature of 
contract/ar-
rangements/
transactions

Duration of 
contract/ar-
rangements/
transactions

Silent features 
of contract/ar-
rangements/
transactions 
including the 
value if any.

Justification 
for entering 

into such 
contracts or 

arrangements 
or transac-

tions

Date of 
Approval by 

Board

Amount paid 
as advance 

if any

Date on which 
the special 

resolution was 
passed in the 
general meet-
ing as require 
under section 

188(1)

1. NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis.

Sl.
No.

Name of Related 
Party and nature of 

relationship

Nature of contract/
arrangements/
transactions

Duration of con-
tract/arrangements/

transactions

Silent features of 
contract/arrange-

ments/transactions 
including the value 

if any.

Date of Approval by 
Board

Amount paid as 
advance if any

1. Sunil Kumar Goyal Remuneration - 12,00,0000

Not Applicable. 
However a statement 

of transaction 
entered into with 

related parties were 
placed before board 
at regular interval

Not Applicable

 Note: All related party(s) transaction(s) are negotiated on arms length basis, and are intended further in the Company’s interest.

Date : 2nd July, 2016

Place : Kolkata

For and on behalf of the Board 

IKF Technologies Limited

N. V. Simhadri
Chairman

DIN: 00231683
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 2.  Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil.

Annexure III

Extract From Nomination and Remuneration Policy: 

POLICY RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION FOR THE WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR, NON-EXECUTIVE/
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

General: 

a.  The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time Director, Non-Executive/Independent Director, KMP and 

Senior Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration 

/ compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central 

Government, wherever required. 

b.  The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time Director shall be in accordance with the percentage / slabs / conditions 

as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder. 

c.  Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure linked to performance, should be clear and meet appropriate 

performance benchmarks and may be recommended by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by 

the Shareholders in the case of Whole-time Director. 

d.  The Committee does not propose to fix the actual amounts of remuneration that may be payable to each individual key managerial 

personnel or senior management personnel. However, the management, while fixing the remuneration of any such key personnel must 

consider the following: 

1.  The Industry practice for the same level of employment/office. 

2.  Past performance/seniority of the concerned appointee. 

3.  The nature of duties and responsibilities cast upon such person by reason of his holding that office. 

4.  The remuneration should be such that it provides adequate incentive to the person to give his best to the Company and feel 

essence of high satisfaction with his employment.

5.  The perquisites to be given to Whole-time Director/s, KMP & Senior Management Personnel will be as per industry practice and 

as may be recommended by the Committee to the Board. 

Remuneration to Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel: 

The Whole-time Director / KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the 

Board on the recommendation of the Committee. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution 

to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the 

Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required, reflecting the short and long term performance 

objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 

Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director: 

a.  Remuneration / Commission: In the past the Company has not paid remuneration to  Non-Executive Directors by way of commission.

 b.  Sitting Fees: The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board 

or Committees thereof as may be recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board provided that the amount of such 

fees shall not exceed amount prescribed in this behalf by the Central Government from time to time. So far as the Sitting Fees are 

concerned, presently, for meetings of the various Committees, the same are at par for all the Committees. 

Date : 2nd July, 2016

Place : Kolkata

For and on behalf of the Board 

IKF Technologies Limited

N. V. Simhadri
Chairman

DIN: 00231683
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Annexure IV

PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988 ARE PROVIDED AS MENTIONED BELOW:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

 The provisions of conservation of energy and technology absorption and adaptation do not apply to the Company. 
However, various measures voluntarily taken by the Company are given below.

(a) Additional Investments and Proposals implemented for Reduction of Consumption of Energy: 
The Company uses energy efficient for all its equipments such as air conditioners, computer terminals, lighting 
and utilities in the work premises. All possible measures have been taken to conserve energy at all the operational 
levels and efforts are made in this direction on a continuous basis.

(b) Impact of the Measures and Impact on the Cost: Though the Company does not have energy intensive 
operations, it continues to adopt energy conservation measures. As the cost of energy consumed by the Company 
forms a very small portion of the total costs, the financial impact of these measures is not material.

(c) Energy Conservation Measures: During the year, the Company has taken following measures towards energy 
conservation:

 1. Organising the procedures in such a way that energy losses are minimized by eliminating idle running. This 
has helped in reducing per unit energy consumption.

 2. Modifying the processes so as to reduce per unit consumption of energy.
 3. Optimisation of electrical load by matching machine power capacity to the exact Organisational 

 requirements.
 4. Using energy-efficient computers and equipments with the latest technologies, which would help 

 in conservation of energy.
(d) Future Proposals for conservation of energy: The Company is planning to enter new agreements and 

implement new measures which will play instrumental role in bringing down the cost of energy in addition to 
improving quality.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
The details are mentioned as below:
(1) Research & Development :

Risks are inherent in the Information technology sector businesses. The Management of the Company gives 
utmost importance to the R&D activities. 

In keeping with its spirit of “Be ahead of the times through endless creativity, inquisitiveness, and pursuit of 
improvement”, IKF actively carries out research and development activities. Our R&D activities can be broadly 
classified into two areas,

 (i) Product development and improvements performed independently within each business division and

 (ii) R&D undertaken mainly by the “Research & Development Center” separate from the activities of 
 our business divisions and with a view towards Company-wide Management Strategy.

(a) Research & Development Center Activities: IKF has its own “Research & Development Center”, carrying on 
Research and Development activities. This undertakes the advanced development of fundamental technologies 
which will be the keys to the future products of each division and advanced research for the development of new 
products for new businesses as well as development of materials and other technologies that will come to serve 
as the common foundation for all divisions. There are a multitude of research and development results. From 
this point forward research and development will continue into new  technology themes for every field including 
E-learning, IT/ITES, ISP etc.

(b) R&D Activities Carried Out by the Business Divisions: In each of our internal divisions various initiatives, centered 
on the technical departments, are being taken to promote the advanced development of future products that 
will lead the world in functionality, quality and low cost. The results of these R&D activities are unveiled at an 
internal technology exhibition in each division. This allows them to absorb the latest technologies and we create 
opportunities for them to deepen their practical business experience in product development through exchanges 
with the other technical divisions within IKF technologies and cooperation with other members of IKF group.

 Areas in which Research & Development (R&D) is being carried out by the Company are given below,

I) E-learning: 
 In today’s scenario every Company needs e-learning technology to grow. E-learning techniques are required for 

the Management of increasing scale and more complex learning challenges. E-learning technology becomes 
an important toll in reaching employees in widely disturbed locations. IKF can use E-learning technologies 
in many creative ways to meet demanding business requirements, training needs for personnel working 
in various departments, common leadership development, sharing of knowledge in variety of engineering 
disciplines.
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II) IT/ ITES: 
 As enterprises embark on their transformation journeys, a reliable IT application backbone becomes ssential 

to manage the requirements of an ever evolving business. IKF’s Packaged application portfolio includes the 
entire gamut of packaged application services right from package evaluation, selection, implementation, post-
implementation support and development, version upgrades and Master Data Management services.

 IKF has expert practices for the following solutions:
 a. Customer Relationship Management.
 b. Supplier Relationship Management.
 Project Management, oversight and control includes:

 Project Planning, Scheduling, Scope/Time/Cost Management, Project Tracking, Project status reporting.

l  Software requirement: Requirements Fundamental, Requirements Gathering, Requirements Analysis and 
Documentation, Requirements validation and Review.

 l  Software design: Design criteria, Software Structure and Architecture, Implementation Design, signre views.

 l  Software construction: Organizational Coding Guidelines, Coding, Code reviews, Unit testing.

 l  Software testing: Test Planning, Test Process, Conducting Test, Test Results and Analysis.

 l  Software Maintenance: Maintenance planning, Change Management and impact analysis, Maintenance 
and Change Management process.

 l  Software Quality Assurance: Quality Planning, Work Product Reviews, Process Tailoring, Metrics, 
Improvement Actions.

l  Configuration & Change Management: Configuration Planning, Change Request Management,  
Impact Analysis.

(III) ISP :

 ISP division do R&D related with Internet Services, VoIP Services, Integration Services, Government  
policies affecting the telecom industry etc.

 l Future Plan: The Company’s plan is to carry on innovations in process development, cost  
reduction, quality improvement, process implementations and process controls.  Your Company will 
continue to invest in R&D initiatives going forward.

 l Expenditure on R&D: As the expenditure on R&D done by the Company forms a very small portion of the 
total costs, the financial impact on this cost is not material.

2. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation: 

(a) Efforts made towards Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation: Research on acquiring solution, 
micro strategy, use of state-of-the-art technology for improving the productivity and quality of services and 
investing in new technology has been done by the Company.

(b) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts: Going ahead the Company plans to actively 
acquire new customers using the knowledge and competency required. Encouraging for the  
continuous innovation.

(c) Imported Technology: During last five years from the beginning of the financial year, no technology has been imported.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

 1. Exports, initiatives like increasing exports, development of new export markets for product and 
services and export plans etc. to earn foreign exchange:  The Company has continued to  
maintain focus and avail of export opportunities based on economic considerations. Our  
Company is developing new centre in foreign countries to create new export markets and to 
provide its products and services globally.

 2. Total Earnings and Expenditure in Foreign Currency:

Particulars Year Ended 2015-2016 Year Ended 2014-2015

Earnings in Foreign Currency-2013
Expenditure Foreign Currency
-Revenue Expenditure

41,108

0

26,454

273

(` in ‘000)

Date : 2nd July, 2016

Place : Kolkata

For and on behalf of the Board 

IKF Technologies Limited

N. V. Simhadri
Chairman

DIN: 00231683
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 Annexure V

Form No. MR 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2015

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members, 
IKF Technologies Limited 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the Compliances of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate governance practice by IKF Technologies 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, Minutes Book, Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 (audit period) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter :

I  have  examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company, for the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2016, according to the provisions of :

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the  rules made thereunder 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed there under ;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial Borrowing;

(v)  The following Regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 
(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 
(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the 

Company during the Audit Period)
(e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 

client; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
(g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(vi)  Other Laws.

I have also examined Compliance with the applicable clauses of the following :

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the Provisions of Companies Act, 1956 ; and 

(ii)  The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s);

During the financial year under report, the Company has complied with Provisions of the Act, Old Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines, standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that :

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director, Non-executive Directors, Independent Directors and Women Director. 
Changes in the composition of Board of Directors took place during the year under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting.

All decisions of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meeting of Board of Directors and Committee of the 
Board, as the case may be.

I further report that during the audit period, Company received an order dated April 21, 2015 from SEBI restricting to issue equity shares or any other instrument convertible into 
equity shares or any other securities for a period of ten years for which Company has filed Appeal before Securities Appellate Tribunal.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has: 

(i) Not done any public/Right/Preferential Issue of Shares/Debentures/Sweat Equity etc.

(ii) Not done any redemption/Buy-Back of Securities.

(iii) Not done Merger/Amalgamation/Reconstruction, etc.

(iv) Not done any Foreign technical collaborations.

 
Place: Kolkata 
Dated : 30th June, 2016

For Chanchal Sharma
Company Secretary in Practice

Chanchal Sharma
Proprietor

ACS : 21064
COP : 12339
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Corporate Governance Philosophy

Corporate Governance is a set of systems, policies and practices deep-rooted in the Company to ensure that the affairs are 

being managed in a way which ensures accountability, transparency, fairness in all its transactions with all its stakeholders. 

IKF believes that good governance practices stem from the culture and mind-set of the organization. Effective corporate 

governance is the strong foundation on which commercial enterprises are built and succeed. The Company’s philosophy of 

Corporate Governance that of timely disclosures, transparent accounting policies and a strong and Independent Board goes 

a long way in preserving all stakeholders’ interest, while maximizing long-term shareholder worth. Strong leadership and 

effective corporate governance practices have been the Company’s plus point .

A report, in line with the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements ) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter 

“Listing Regulations”) for the year ended 31st March, 2016 is given below:

The Three-Tier Corporate Governance Structure at IKF includes

Governance by Board:

On behalf of the Shareholders, the Board leads the strategic management of the Company, exercises supervision through 

direction and control and appoints various Committees to handle specific areas of   responsibilities.

Governance by the Sub-Committees of the Board:

The Committees of the Board and Executive Management appointed by the Board take up specific responsibilities and day-

to-day tasks to ensure that the activities of the Company run according to the strategies set by the Board.

Governance to Shareholders:

Shareholders  appoint  and  authorize  the  Board  of  Directors  (‘Board’)  to  conduct  business  with  objectivity  and ensure 

accountability to all Shareholders.

First Tier: Board of Directors

Size and Composition of Board:

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company represents an optimum combination of professionalism, knowledge 

and experience. At IKF, we believe that Good Governance cannot be imposed from the outside. It must come also from within 

hence the Board of Directors, at the apex of a company’s corporate governance structure, is the key factor to ensure highest 

standards of corporate governance. Their contribution is immensely important for ensuring appropriate directions with 

regard to leadership, vision, strategy, policy making, monitoring and achieving greater levels of performance. The Company’s 

Board of Directors’ is characterised in Independence, professionalism, transparency in decision making and accountability. 

It comprises combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, each of whom adds value and brings independent view 

in the decision-making process. As per statutory requirements, Company has duly constituted Board consisting an optimum 

mix of Executive, Non-executive and Independent Directors.

As on 31st March, 2016, the Board comprises of four Directors, one of which is Executive Director and three are Non-

Executive Directors. The Company has a Non- Executive Chairman. None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more 

than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Committees across all Companies in which he is a Director. Further, none 

of the Independent Directors on the Board is serving as an Independent Director in more than seven listed companies. The 

necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions have been made by all the Directors. None of the Directors is related 

to another.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Details of number of Directorships and Committee Memberships held by Directors in companies other than IKF as on March 

31, 2016 are given below:

Name of the Directors Category Designation Date of 
Appointment

Number of 
Directorship in 

other Indian Public 
Companies1

Number of 
Committees of Board 
in which Director is 
Member /Chairman2

No. of 
Board 

Meeting 
Attended

Mr. N.V. Simhadri Independent 
Non-Executive Director Chairman 19-Oct-2010 - - 4

Ms. Nidhi Sharma Independent 
Non-Executive Director Director 30-Jan-2012 1 2 3

Mr. Umesh Bhat Independent 
Non-Executive Director Director 20-Jan-2014 2 4 2

Mr. Pradeep Dutta(3) Non-Independent 
Non-Executive Director Director 25-Jan-2005 1 1 2

Mr. Santosh Kumar 
Chowdary (4 )

Independent Non 
Executive Director Director 30-May-15 1 0 0

Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal Executive Director Whole-Time 
Director & CEO 19-May-2012 3 4 4

(1)The Directorships, held by Directors as mentioned above, do not include Alternate Directorships and Directorships in 
foreign companies, companies registered under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 and private limited companies.
(2)  Membership/Chairmanship of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been considered.
(3) Mr. Pradeep Dutta resigned from the Board with effect from 15.10.2015 which was accepted by the board on 07.11.2015.
(4 ) Mr. Santosh Kumar Chowdary resigned from the Board with effect from 06.01.2016 which was accepted by the board 
on 09.01.2016.

Notes:

(1) Independent Director means a Non-Executive Director, who fulfils the criteria as laid down in Regulation 34(3) and 
53(f) read with Schedule V paragraph (C) (10) of SEBI (Listing Disclosure & Obligations Requirement), Regulation 
2015.

(2) Agenda papers along with detailed notes are being circulated in advance of each meeting of the Board. Information 
pursuant to Corporate Governance practices as required under Listing Regulations have been made available to the 
Board from time.

 The Company periodically places Compliance Reports / Certificates with respect to all applicable laws before the 
Board of Directors for its review.

(3) Directors with material pecuniary or business relationship with the Company:

 The Company did not have any pecuniary relationship or transactions with its Non- Executive and/or Independent 
Directors during the year under review except payment of sitting fees and commission as disclosed in this report.

Board Meetings
The calendar of Board meetings is decided in consultation with the Board and the schedule of such meetings is communicated 
to all Directors in advance, to enable them to schedule their effective participation during Board meetings. Your Board met 
four times in the financial year 2015 -16.

Sl. No. Date of Board Meeting During the Quarter Board Strength No. of Directors Present

1. 30-May-2015 April 2015-June 2015 6 5

2. 10-Aug-2015 July 2015-September 2015 6 4

3. 07-Nov-2015 October 2015-December 2015 5 3

4. 09-Jan-2016 January 2016-March 2016 4 3

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)
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Attendance of Directors at the previous Annual General Meeting
The last Annual General Meeting was held on Friday, 7th August, 2015 at Convergence Centre, Plot no. X-1,2 & 3, Block – EP, Sector V, Salt 

Lake, Kolkata – 700 091 and was attended by Mr. N.V. Simhadri (Chairman) and Mr. Pradeep Dutta. 

Directors retiring by rotation
Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal, will be retiring by rotation and being eligible, offer himselves for re-appointment in the ensuing seventeenth 
Annual General Meeting (AGM).
Their brief resume is attached to the notice of the AGM. The Board has recommended the same and seeks Shareholders’ approval.

Selection of Independent Directors
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company recommend Independent Director on Board after considering 
the requirement and efficiency of the person who can effectively contribute to the Company’s business and policy decisions. 
The Committee, inter alia, considers qualification, positive attributes, area of expertise and number of Directorships and 
Memberships held in various committees of other companies by such persons. The Company has separate code for 
Independent Director. The Board considers the Committee’s recommendation, and takes appropriate decision.

Every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he participates as a Director and thereafter at the first 
meeting of the Board in every financial year, gives a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under 
law.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors/ Management Personnel
The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management Personnel (‘the Code’), as adopted by the 
Board, is a comprehensive Code applicable to Directors and Senior Management Personnel.

’The Company’s Board and Management Personnel are responsible for, and are committed to, setting the standards of 
conduct contained in this Code and for updating these standards, as appropriate, to ensure their continuing relevance, 
effectiveness and responsiveness to the needs of local and international investors and other stakeholders as also to reflect 
corporate, legal and regulatory developments. This Code should be adhered to in letter and in spirit’.

A copy of the Code has been put on the Company’s website (www.ikf-technologies.com). The Code has been circulated to 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel and its compliance is affirmed by them annually.

A declaration signed by the Company’s WTD & CEO Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal is published in this Report.

Directors Shareholding Details in the Company as on 31st March, 2016

Name of the Directors Category Designation

Opening 
Balance 

(No of Eq. 
shares of Rs. 

1/- each)

Additions 
during the 

year (No of Eq. 
shares of Rs. 

1/- each)

Deletions 
during the 

year (No of Eq. 
shares of Rs. 

1/- each)

Closing 
Balance 

(No of Eq. 
shares of Rs. 

1/- each)

Mr. N.V. Simhadri Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Chairman - - - -

Ms. Nidhi Sharma Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Director - - - -

Mr. Umesh Bhat Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Director - -

Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal Executive Director Whole-Time Director 
& CEO

5400000 - - 5400000

Board material 
The agenda and notes on agenda are circulated to Directors in advance, and in the defined agenda format. All material 
information is incorporated in the agenda for facilitating meaningful and focused discussions at the meeting. Where it is not 
practicable to attach any document to the agenda, it is tabled before the meeting. In special and exceptional circumstances, 
additional or supplementary item(s) on the agenda are permitted.
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Recording minutes of proceedings at Board and Committee meetings
The Company Secretary records minutes of proceedings of each Board and Committee meeting. Draft minutes are circulated 
to Board/ Board Committee members for their comments. The minutes are entered in the Minutes Book within 30 days from 
the conclusion of the meeting.

Post meeting follow-up mechanism
The guidelines for Board and Board Committee meetings facilitate an effective post meeting follow-up, review and reporting 
process for decisions taken by the Board and Board Committees thereof. Important decisions taken at Board/Board 
Committee meetings are communicated promptly to the concerned departments/divisions. Action-taken report on decisions/
minutes of the previous meeting(s) is placed at the succeeding meeting of the Board/Board Committee for noting.

Compliance
The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes on agenda, minutes of the meeting(s), is responsible for and 
is required to ensure adherence to all applicable laws and regulations, including the Companies Act, 1956/ Companies 
Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder, as applicable and the Secretarial Standards recommended by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

Second tier: Governance by the Sub-Committees of the Board

Board Committees
The Board has constituted the following Committees and has assigned their terms of reference. The Chairman of each 
Committee along with the other Members of the Committee and if required other Members of the Board, decide the agenda, 
frequency and the duration of each meeting of that Committee. Currently, the Board has five Committees:

 1.  Audit Committee

 2.  Stakeholders Relationship Committee

 3.  Remuneration Committee

 4.  Management Committee

 5. Risk management Committee

1. Audit Committee

Composition, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2015-16:
Members of the Audit Committee have the requisite financial and management expertise. 

During the year 2015-16 our Audit Committee comprised of the following Independent Directors:

Name Designation Category
Number of Meetings during the year 2015-16

Held Attended

Mr. N.V. Simhadri Chairman Independent and 
Non-Executive Director

4 4

Ms. Nidhi Sharma Member Independent and 
Non-Executive Director

4 3

Mr. Umesh Bhat Member Independent and 
Non-Executive Director

4 2

Powers of the Audit Committee

ü	 To investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

ü	 To seek information from any employee;

ü	 To obtain outside legal or other professional advice; and

ü	 To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

Role of the Audit Committee inter alia, includes the following:
The Audit Committee was constituted in terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the provisions 
ofRegulation 34(3) and 53(f) read with Schedule V paragraph (C) (10) of SEBI (Listing Disclosure & Obligations Requirement), 
Regulation 2015 with the Stock Exchanges.

ü	 The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is primarily responsible for Appointment and changes to the 
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 Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors;

ü	 Fix the remuneration and other terms of appointment of the Statutory and Internal Auditors;

ü	 Review of the reports of the Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors;

ü	Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 
 ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

ü	 Review with the Management, Annual Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon before they are presented to 
the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

	 l	 Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Directors’ Report in 
terms of sub-section (5) of Section 314 of the Companies Act, 2013;

	 l	 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

	 l	 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the management;

	 l	 Significant adjustments made in financial statements arising out of audit findings;

	 l	 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

	 l	 Disclosure of related party transactions;

	 l	 Qualifications in draft audit report.

ü	 Review with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval;

ü	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

ü	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

ü	 Assess the independence and objectivity of the Auditors and to ensure that the nature and amount of non-audit work 
does not impair the Auditor’s independence and objectivity;

ü	 Review and assess the effectiveness of systems for internal financial control, financial reporting and risk management and  
compliance controls with Management and Auditors;

ü	 Review with the management, the performance of statutory auditors and internal auditors;

ü	 Review any material breach of compliance against regulations applicable to the Company;

ü	 Review the findings of any internal investigation by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature, and reporting the matter to the Board;

ü	 Discussion with statutory auditors, before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post 
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

ü	 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in 
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

ü	 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism;

ü	 Approval of appointment of the CFO (the person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing 
qualifications, experience and background of the candidate;

ü	 Carrying out such other functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Company’s Board of Directors 
and/or other Committees of Directors;

ü	 Reviewing financial statements, in particular the investments made by the Company’s unlisted subsidiaries;

ü	 Reviewing the following information: 
	 l	 The Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
	 l	 Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management;
	 l	 Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
	 l	 Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

	 l	 The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of internal auditors / chief internal auditor.

ü	 To call for comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of auditors, including the observations 
of the auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to the Board and to discuss any related issue 
with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the Company; and

ü	 Any other matter referred to the Audit Committee with the permission of the Board of the Company.
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Audit Committee Meeting and Attendance
The Audit Committee has met four times during the financial year 2015-16. 

Sl. No. Date of Meeting During the Quarter Total Strength
No. of Members 

present

1. 30-May-2015 April 2015-June 2015 3 3

2. 10-Aug-2015 July 2015-September 2015 3 2

3. 07-Nov-2015 October 2015-December 2015 3 2

4. 09-Jan-2016 January 2016-March 2016 3 2

General

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 7th August, 2015.

2. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Board has constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee to deal with various matters relating redressal of shareholders 
and investors grievances and review all matters connected with the Company’s transfer of securities. The Committee also monitors 
the implementation and compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading. The Committee 
meets at regular intervals in order to facilitate prompt and effective redressal of Shareholders’ complaints, to effect transfers, 
transmissions and give approval for issue of duplicate share certificates/name deletion etc. The Company in coordination with 
Registrars and Share Transfer Agent takes all necessary steps for prompt resolution of all Shareholder complaints and the 
Committee periodically reviews the reports of the same The Stakeholders Relationship Committee’s composition and the terms 
of reference meet with the requirements of Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) read with Schedule V paragraph (C) (10) of SEBI (Listing 
Disclosure & Obligations Requirement), Regulation 2015.and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Composition, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2015-16:

The Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the attendance of Member Directors of the Committee 
during the financial year 2015-16 are as follows,

Name Designation Category
Number of Meetings during the year 2015-16

             Held Attended

Mr. N.V. Simhadri
Chairman Independent and Non-Executive 

Director
               4 4

Ms. Nidhi Sharma
Member Independent and Non-Executive 

Director
               4  3

Mr, Sunil Kumar Goyal Member Executive Director                4 2

All the Members of the Committee were present in all the meetings.

Terms of Reference of the Committee, inter alia, includes the following:

ü	Oversees and review all matters connected with Transfer / transmission of shares;

ü	 Issue of share certificate in lieu of lost, sub-divided, consolidated, rematerialized, transposition or defaced Certificates;

ü	 Review of shares dematerialized and all other related matters;

ü	 Investors’ grievance and redressal mechanism;

ü	 The redressal of Investors/Shareholders complaints relating to non-receipt of Annual Report, notices and dividend etc;

ü	Oversees the performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent;

ü	Monitor implementation of the Company’s Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading;

ü	 Recommend methods to upgrade the standard of services to investors;

ü	Comply with all such directions of SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Ministry of Corporate Affairs and other regulatory bodies w.r.t.  
shareholders/investors rights and market regulations, from time to time; and

ü	Carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time or enforced by any statutory notification / 
amendment or modification as may be applicable.
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Details of complaints/requests etc, received and resolved for the year ended March 31, 2016 are as below:

Complaints pending as on 1st April, 2015 0

Complaints received during the year ended 31st March, 2016 1

Complaints resolved during the year ended 31st March, 2016 1

Complaints pending as on 31st March, 2016 0

The Secretarial department of the Company and Registrar and Share Transfer Agents attend expeditiously to all grievances / 
correspondences of the shareholders and investors.

ü	 All the complaints have been attended to the satisfaction of complainants during the year.

ü	No request for share transfer was pending for approval as on 31st March, 2016.

Compliance Officer:
Ms. Archana Saboo, Company Secretary, was the Compliance Officer of the Company, who expressed her unwillingness 
to continue as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer with effect from 28th June, 2016 due to her pre-occupancy in 
other assignments. Her resignation with effect from 28th June, 2016 has been approved by the Board in its meeting dated 
02nd July, 2016.

On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Board at its meeting dated 02nd July, 2016 
appointed Mr. Amar Jyoti Lenka, as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from 
02nd July, 2016.

Dates of Meeting during the financial year 2015-16:

Sl. No. Date of Meeting During the Quarter Total Strength
No. of Members  

present

1. 30-May-2015 April 2015-June 2015 3 3

2. 10-Aug-2015 July 2015-September 2015 3 2

3. 07-Nov-2015 October 2015-December 2015 3 2

4. 09-Jan-2016 January 2016-March 2016 3 2

Four Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings were held during the year 2015-16.

3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The purpose of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (previously known as Remuneration Committee) shall be to 
discharge the Board’s responsibilities relating to compensation of the Company’s Directors, Executive Directors and Senior 
Management. The Committee has the overall responsibility of approving and evaluating the remuneration plans, policies and 
programs for Directors, Executive Directors and Senior Management.

Membership and Organisation:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Members will be appointed by the Board and serve at its discretion. The 
Remuneration Committee shall consist of no fewer than three members. The Members of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee shall meet as per the listing standards of BSE and CSE.

As per section 178 of the Companies Act 2013, the Chairman of the Company is not the Chairman of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee.

Composition, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2015-16:
The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the attendance of Independent Directors of the 
Committee during the financial year 2015-16 are as follows,

Name Designation Category
Number of Meetings during the year 2015-16

Held Attended

Mr. Umesh Bhat Chairman Independent and Non-Executive Director 4 2

Ms. Nidhi Sharma Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 4 3

Mr. N.V. Simhadri Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 4 4
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The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:
ü	The Committee shall review the performance of the Executive Director, on the basis of detailed performance parameters set 

for the Executive Director at the beginning of the year;

ü	The Committee may, from time to time, also evaluate the usefulness of such performance parameters, and make necessary  
amendments.;

ü	The Committee may also make recommendations to the Board with respect to incentive plans;

ü	The Committee shall recommend appointment of Independent Director to the Board;

ü	The Committee shall make regular reports to the Board;

ü	Review and approve the overall budgetary increment proposals for annual increase of compensation and benefits for the 
employees;

ü	Review and approve any disclosures in the annual report or elsewhere in respect of remuneration policies or Directors’ 
compensation.

Dates of Meeting during the financial year 2015-16:

Sl. No. Date of Meeting Total Strength No. of Members present

1. 30-May-2015 3 3

2. 10-Aug-2015 3 2

3. 07-Nov-2015 3 2

4. 09-Jan-2016 3 2

Three meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year 2015-16.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company: 
The Remuneration of the Executive Director is recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Based on 
criteria such as Industry benchmarks, Company’s performance vis-à-vis the Industry, responsibility shouldered, performance/ 
track record, macro-economic view etc. The Company pays remuneration by way of salary to its Executive Directors. Annual 
increments are decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the salary scale approved by the Board 

Members and Shareholders.

The Company does not pay any remuneration to the Non-Executive Directors.

Details of Remuneration/sitting fees paid to the Directors during the year 2015-16:
The Remuneration determined for the Executive/Non-executive Director is subject to the approval of the Board of Directors and  

the Members. 

To Non-Executive/Independent Directors’ Remuneration:
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors are entitled to sitting fee and out of pocket expanses only. Notice pay is 
not applicable to the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There is no severance, commission pay to any of 

the Non-Executive Directors.

During the Financial Year 2015-16, the Company has not advanced any loan to any of its Directors.

There is no specific period of contract of service for Chairman. There is no separate provision for notice period.

( Amt. in `)

Meeting Sitting Fees

Board Meeting 10,000/-

Audit Committee Meeting 5,000/-

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting 5,000/-

Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meeting 5,000/-

Management Committee Meeting 5,000/-

Risk Management Committee Meeting 5,000/-

Independent Directors’ Committee Meeting 5,000/-

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)



www.ikf-technologies.com 37

17th Annual Report 2015-16

Details of the sitting fees paid and commission payable during the year 2015-16 are as follows:
( Amt. in `)

Directors Sitting fee Commission Total

Mr. N. V. Simhadri 40,000 - 40,000

Ms. Nidhi Sharma 30,000 - 30,000

Mr. Umesh Bhat 20,000 - 20,000

Mr. Pradeep Dutta 20,000 - 20,000

Mr. Santosh Kumar Chowdary - - -

Note: All Members of different Committees unanimously waived their sitting fees for all Committee Meetings held during the 
financial year 2015-16.

To Executive Director’ Remuneration:
Remuneration paid to Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal, Whole Time Director during the financial year 2015-16 was Rs. 12,00,000/- and 
other out of pocket expenses. 

Ø	 The existing agreement with the Executive Director, Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal is for a period of three years w.e.f. 
30th May, 2015. The Company in its 16th Annual General Meeting held on 7th August, 2015 has approved the appointment 
of Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal as Whole Time Director. 

Ø He is also Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Ø Remuneration package of Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal includes only salary and no bonuses, pension, stock option etc. are 
payable to him.

Ø No Commission or performance linked incentives are payable to Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal.

Ø There is no separate provision for service contract, notice period and payment of severance fees.

Ø The Company does not have any scheme for grant of Stock Option to its Directors or other employees.

Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal hold 1.25% paid-up equity shares of IKF Technologies Limited.

4. Management Committee:
The Board had constituted a Management Committee to handle any merger, acquisition and demerger etc. opportunities for 
the Company and other key strategic activities.

Name Designation Category
Number of Meetings during the year 2015-16

Held Attended

Mr. N.V. Simhadri Chairman Independent and Non-Executive Director 4 4

Ms. Nidhi Sharma Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 4 3

Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal Member Executive Director 4 4

Management Committee is responsible for:
ü Approval for entry into new business areas;

ü Approval for setting up new centers in and outside India;

ü Investment in the equity of any other company;

ü Approval for any merger or acquisition or demerger opportunities, including any funding arrangements entered into by 
the Company for such activities; and

ü Approval for any organic or inorganic growth of the Company.
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Dates of Meeting during the financial year 2015-16:

Sl. No. Date of Meeting Total Strength No. of Members present

1. 30-May-2015 3 3

2. 10-Aug-2015 3 2

3. 07-Nov-2015 3 3

4. 09-Jan-2016 3 3

5. Risk Management Committee:

The Board has constituted the Risk Management Committee as per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 along with 
applicable Rules and requirements of the Listing Agreement.

Details of Composition of the Risk Management Committee

Name Designation Category
Number of Meetings during the year 2015-16

Held Attended

Mr. N.V. Simhadri Chairman Independent and Non-Executive Director 4 4

Ms. Nidhi Sharma Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 4 3

Mr. Umesh Bhat Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 4 2

Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal Member Executive Director 4 4

The Risk Management Committee lays down procedures:
A) To inform Board members about the risk assessment and minimization procedures.

B) Framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management plan for the company.

C) Any other matter that may be entrusted to the Committee by the Board.

Dates of Meeting during the financial year 2015-16:

Sl. No. Date of Meeting Total Strength No. of Members present

1. 30-May-2015 4 4

2. 10-Aug-2015 4 3

3. 07-Nov-2015 4 3

4. 09-Jan-2016 4 3

The frequency, agenda, duration, etc., for meetings of Risk Management Committee shall be as set by the Chairman of the 
Committee.

Board Disclosures - Risk Management
The Company has established effective risk assessment and minimization procedures, which are reviewed by the Board 
periodically. The procedures comprise of an in-house exercise on Risk Management, carried out periodically by the Company, 
including the functioning of a structure to identify and mitigate various risks faced by the Company from time to time.

The structure also comprises of risk identification and assessment by the concerned departments, identification of controls 
in place/ mitigation process in place, updating of risk registers by various departments if required.

These reports are consolidated and presented before the Board of the Company. Your Company adopts the methods and 
process to assess and analyze risk holistically, identifies all compliance requirements and proactively develops measures to 
comply with such requirements.
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Your Company by identifying and proactively addressing risks and opportunities, protects and creates value for stakeholders, 
including owners, employees, customers, regulators, and society overall. A detailed report on risk management is provided 
herewith in this Annual Report.

Third Tier: Governance to Shareholders
17th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’)
The 17th Annual General Meeting for the year 2015-16 is scheduled on 26th day of August, 2016 at 03.00 p.m. at Convergence 
Centre, DPSC, Plot No. X - 1, 2 and 3; Block EP, Sector - V, Salt lake, Kolkata – 700 091, West Bengal, India. 

Those of you, who cannot attend the meeting in person, can appoint a proxy to represent you in the meeting, for which you 
need to fill in a proxy form and send it to us, before 03.00 p.m. of 24th day of August, 2016.

Annual General Meetings of earlier three years

Financial Year Date Time Venue Special Resolution Passed

2014-15 7th August, 2015 03.00 pm

16th AGM

The Convergence Centre,

DPSC, Plot No. X - 1, 2 and 3.

Block EP, Sector - V, Salt lake, 

Kolkata – 700 091, West Bengal, India

No Special Resolution was 
passed.

2013-14 19th September, 2014 03.00 pm

15th AGM

The Convergence Centre,

DPSC, Plot No. X - 1, 2 and 3. 

Block EP, Sector - V, Salt lake, 

Kolkata – 700 091, West Bengal, India

No Special Resolution was 
passed.

2012-13 26th July, 2013 03.00 pm

14th AGM

Rang Darbaar – Swabhumi, 

89C, Moulana Abul Kamal Azad Sarani, Kolkata – 

700 054, West Bengal, India

No Special Resolution was 
passed.

Extra-Ordinary General Meetings (‘EGM’) of earlier three years
No EGM was conducted in the financial year 2014-15, 2013-14, 2012-13.

Postal Ballot
No Postal Ballot was conducted during the financial year ending March 31, 2016.

Disclosure:

Ø	Related Party Transaction: None of the transactions with any of related parties were in conflict with the Company’s 
interest. Attention of members is drawn to the disclosure of transactions with related parties set out in Note No.1B (5)
of Standalone Financial Statements, forming part of the Annual Report.

  All related party transactions are negotiated on arms length basis, and are in the Company’s interests. (please refer 
Form No. AOC-2 as part of the Directors’ Report)

Ø	Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges 
or Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital 
markets, during the period from 1st April, 2015 to 31st March, 2016:  During the last three years, SEBI has issued a 
Final order in connection with the alleged irregularisation in the GDRs issued by the Company in March, 2007 & May, 
2009, whereby SEBI directed IKF not to issue equity shares or any other instrument convertible into equity shares or 
any other security for a period of six years two months. The Company has challenged this order before the Hon’ble 
Securities Appellate Tribunal.

Ø	Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: The Company has followed the Accounting Standards issued & notified by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India in preparation of its financial statements for the year 2015-16. The 
financial statements have been audited by M/s. Mandewewala & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the 
Company and have been discussed with the Audit Committee. The Company has adequate Internal Control systems 
to identify and mitigate the risk.

Ø	Code of Conduct: In pursuance to Regulation 27(2) of the (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements,) Regulations, 
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2015 , the Company has adopted the “Code of Conduct for Board of Directors & Senior Management Personnel” 
and the same has been circulated and posted on the Company’s website www.ikf-technologies.com. The Board of 
Directors & Senior Management Personnel has given their declarations confirming compliance of the provisions of the 
above Code of Conduct for the year ended 31st March, 2016. 

Ø	 Periodic Reviews & Reporting: The Company conducts the periodic reviews and reporting to the Board of Directors 
regarding Risk Assessment by the Senior Executives with a view to minimize the risk.

Ø	Whistle Blower Policy: The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary 
mechanism in line with Regulation 27(2) of the (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements,) Regulations, 2015  
with the Stock Exchanges, for employees to report concerns about unethical behavior. No person has been denied 
access to the Audit Committee.

Ø	Compliance with Mandatory Requirements: The Company has complied with the Mandatory requirements as 
stipulated under Regulation 27(2) of the (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements,) Regulations, 2015  with the 
Stock Exchanges to the extent apply to the Company.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report:

Practicing Company Secretary Ms. Chanchal Sharma reconciled the Total Share Capital with National Securities Depositories 
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depositories Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and Listed Capital. The Audit 
confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in aggregate with the total number of Shares in physical form and the total 
number of dematerialised shares held in electronic mode with NSDL & CDSL.

Certificate under Clause 47C of the Listing Agreement & under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 :

As per the requirement of Clause 47C of the Listing Agreement and Regulation 40(9) (Listing Obligations & Disclosures 
Requirements,) Regulations, 2015, a Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary Ms. Chanchal Sharma has been 
received within 1 month of the end of each half of the financial year. Share Certificates relating to Share transfer deed 
received during the period 1st April, 2015 to 30th September, 2015 has been entered in Memorandum of Transfers and had 
been issued within stipulated time. The Company has not received any request of transfer or transmission of its shares during 
the period 1st October, 2015 to 31st March, 2016 and as required under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015. There were no requests received by the Company for subdivision, consolidation, 
split certificate, duplicate issue, renewal and exchange during the year 2015-16.

Secretarial Standards:

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) has issued Secretarial Standards on various important facets of 
corporate functioning and management. Although these standards are still recommendatory in nature, as a measure of 
good governance, the Company has voluntarily adopted few aspects of it and complied with the ICSI Secretarial Standards 
on meetings of Board of Directors, General Meetings, Registers and Returns, Minutes, Transmission of Shares, Passing of 
Resolutions by Circulation, Affixing of Common Seal and Board’s Report.

Unclaimed Dividend:

Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956), mandates that Companies transfer 
dividend has been unclaimed for a period of seven years from the unpaid dividend account to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF). No dividend has been declared since last seven years and no unclaimed dividend is liable to be 
transferred to the IEPF during the year. 

Subsidiary Companies’ Monitoring Framework:

All subsidiary companies are Board managed with their Boards having the rights and obligations to manage such companies 
in the best interest of their stakeholders. The Company have material unlisted subsidiary, and hence, is required to nominate 
an Independent Director of the Company on the Board of subsidiary. Ms. Nidhi Sharma, Independent Non-Executive Director 
has been appointed on the Board of Subsidiary. 
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The Company has four wholly owned subsidiaries viz.,

Name Subsidiary Profile
Percentage (%) of 

Shareholding

IKF Green Fuel Limited Subsidiary Company
A Company incorporated in India under the 
Companies Act, 1956. Registered Office is 
situated at Shillong (Meghalaya).

99.93%

IKF Technologies Pty. Ltd. Subsidiary Company
A Company organized under the laws of South 
Africa.

100%

IKF Telecom Inc. Subsidiary Company
A Company organized under the laws of 
Delaware, U.S.A.

100%

Biofel FZE Subsidiary Company
A Company organized under Hamriyah Free 
Zone Authority, U.A.E. 100%

The Company monitors the performance of Subsidiary Companies, interalia, by the following means:

ü Copy of the Minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Subsidiary Companies is tabled before the 
Company’s Board.

ü	 Financial results of the Subsidiary Companies are reviewed quarterly by the Company’s Audit Committee and tabled 
before the Company’s Board.

Means of Communication
At IKF, we would like to constantly communicate to our investors and stakeholders about our operations and financial results. 
The transcripts of the quarterly earnings calls with analysis have also been published on our website.

Ø	Quarterly Results: In Compliance with Regulation 33 of the (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements,) Regulations, 
2015, the Company regularly intimates the Un-audited and Audited Financial Results to the Stock Exchanges as soon 
as the same are approved and taken on record by the Board.

Ø	Newspaper Release: The Un-audited and/or Audited results along with other half-yearly reports of the Company are 
published in the performa under the Listing Agreement in one English Newspaper (normally in Business Standard) 
having wide circulation and another in Vernacular Language i.e. in Bengali Newspaper (normally in Kalantar), we also 
display it on website of the Company i.e.(www.ikf-technologies.com). However, only the Annual Results are sent to the 
Shareholders of the Company.

Ø	News releases, presentations, among others: Official news releases and official media releases are sent to Stock  
Exchanges and we also display it on website of the Company i.e.(www.ikf-technologies.com).

Ø	Website: Website: In compliance of Regulation 46 of the (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements,) Regulations, 
2015 , the Company is maintaining a functional   website i.e. (www.ikf-technologies.com) containing the basic required 
information about the Company. The Company’s website contains a separate dedicated section ‘Investors’ where 
shareholders’ information is  available

Ø	 Support through Exclusive email-id: As per   Regulation 40   of   (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements,)
Regulations, 2015   and   SEBI   Circular   No. MRD/DoP/SE/DEP/CIR-22/06, the Company has created exclusive 
email id for redressal of investor grievances. Contact information of Designated Official responsible for assistance and 
handling shareholders/investor grievances  is:

 The Company Secretary

IKF Technologies Limited

2nd Floor, Plot No. J-1/12, Block EP & GP,

Sector V, Salt Lake, Kolkata – 700 091

West Bengal, India

Tel No.: +91 33 23572610

Fax No.: +91 33 23572612

E-mail: cs@ikftech.in; info@ikftech.in. 
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Ø	In case of any query Investors/Shareholders may also contact Registrar and Share Transfer Agent on 
info@bigshareonline.com; sandeep@bigshareonline.com.

Ø	 Annual Report: The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Consolidated Financial Statements, 
Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other important information is circulated to members and others entitled thereto. 
The Corporate Governance Report and Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report 
and it can be downloaded from Company website (www.ikf-technologies.com).

Ø	Chairman’s Message: The printed copy of the Chairman’s speech is distributed to shareholders at Annual General 
Meetings. The document is also placed on the Company’s website (www.ikf-technologies.com) and sent to Stock 
Exchanges.

Ø	BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the ‘Listing Centre’):  All periodical compliance filings like shareholding 
pattern, corporate governance report, media releases, among others are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre. 

Ø	 SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): SCORES is a centralised web-based complaints redress system where 
Action Taken Reports (ATRs) can be uploaded and actions taken can be viewed by Investor and other agencies on the 
complaint to get its current status.

General Shareholder Information

Corporate Identity Number (‘CIN’)
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, is L72200WB2000PLC111253 
and the Company Registration No. is 111253 of 2000. Your Company is registered in the State of West Bengal, India.

Annual General Meeting

Date :  26th August, 2016

Time : 3:00 p.m.

Day : Friday

Venue : The Convergence Centre,

  DPSC, Plot No. X - 1, 2 & 3.

  Block EP, Sector - V, 

  Salt lake, Kolkata – 700 091.

Financial Year 1st April to 31st March.

Financial Calendar (tentative) Results for the quarter ending

  June 30, 2016- Second week of August, 2016
  September 30, 2016 - Second week of November, 2016
  December 31, 2016 -Second week of February, 2017
  March 31, 2017 - Fourth week of May, 2017
  Annual General Meeting in the Month of August, 2017

Date of Book Closure:  24th August, 2016 to 26th August, 2016 (both days inclusive)

Date of Dividend Payment: N.A.
Equity Shares Listing on Stock Exchanges

  Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
  Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
  Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001

  Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE)
  7, Lyons  Range, Kolkata 700 064 

  Indian Depositories

  National Securities Depository Limited
  Trade World. 4th floor, “A” Wing,

  Kamala Mills Compound,
  Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
  Mumbai – 400 013

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)
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  Central Depository Services (India) Limited

  Phirozee Jeejeebhoy Towers,
  17th Floor, Dalal Street, 
   Mumbai-400 001

Scrip Code/Symbol/ Trading Code Scrip Code/Symbol of Equity Shares
  BSE – 532414/IKFTECH
  CSE – 10019274/IKFTECHNO

Payment of Listing Fees Listing fees for FY 2015-16 has been paid to both BSE and CSE.

Payment of Depository Fees Annual Custody fee for the year 2015-16 is paid to NSDL and CDSL.

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) ISIN (for fully paid-up equity shares): INE052C01027

Market Price Data: High, Low during each month of the Financial Year 2015-16

Trading in shares of the Company has been done throughout the year. 

The Company’s monthly high and low quotations as well as the total turnover at the BSE is given herein;
The equity shares of the Company were listed in the Stock Exchanges for Financial Year 2015-16. Share price data for each 
month during the financial year 2015-2016 on the Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited are as mentioned below:

Month Total Volume
High
(Rs.)

Low
(Rs.)

April – 2015 2695738 0.92 0.53

May – 2015 2059247 0.77 0.55

June – 2015 2442200 0.75 0.55

July – 2015 2665494 0.73 0.58

August – 2015 5331856 1.14 0.62

September – 2015 1888368 0.75 0.63

October – 2015 2857709 0.95 0.68

November – 2015 2085237 0.81 0.62

December – 2015 3665934 0.93 0.65

January – 2016 7475742 1.31 0.81

February – 2016 3251657 1.27 0.75

March – 2016 1838168 0.95 0.70

Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex, index etc.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)
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IKF’s Share Price Movement Compared to BSE Sensex

List of Top Ten Shareholders of the Company as on 31st March, 2016:

Name of the Shareholders No of Shares Percentage (%)

Basmati Securities Pvt Ltd 16085115 3.74

India Focus Cardinal Fund 10062544 2.34

B Lodha Securities Limited 2186659 0.51

Abdul Javed Farooqui 2080000 0.47

Patangi Trade And Holdings Pvt.Ltd. 1597059 0.37

Shri Parasram Holdings Pvt.Ltd. 1480967 0.34

KII Limited 1350000 0.31

Puneet Vats 1200000 0.28

Keshav Anand Karapurkar 1006539 0.23

Lachman Kishan Chand 800000 0.19

Pie-Chart showing Top Ten Shareholders of the Company as on 31st March, 2016
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Registrar & Share Transfer Agent  Bigshare Services Private Limited
 E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate,
 Sakivihar Road, Sakinaka, Andheri (East)
 Mumbai – 400 072.
 Tel: +91 22 28470652, 40430200
 Fax: +91 22 28475207
 Email: info@bigshareonline.com

Share Transfer System: 
 i).  Physical Form – Shares in the physical form for transfer, should be lodged with the office of the Company’s Registrar & 

Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited or at the Registered Office of the Company. The transfers 
are processed if technically found to be in order and complete in all respect. The Board has delegated the authority 
for approving transfer, transmission, etc. of the Company’s securities to the Whole Time Director and/or Company 
Secretary. A summary of transfer/transmission of securities of the Company so approved by the Whole Time Director/
Company Secretary is placed at every Board meeting/Stakeholders Relationship Committee (earlier Shareholders’/
Investors’ Grievance Committee). The Company obtains from a Practicing Company Secretary a half-yearly certificate 
of compliance with the share transfer formalities as required under Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement and Regulation 
40(9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) regulation, 2015 and files a copy of the said certificate 
with Stock Exchanges.

  Transfers are normally processed within 15 days from the date of receipt, provided the documents are valid and complete in 
all respect. 

  SEBI vide its Circular No. MRD/DoP/Cir-05/2009 dated 20th May, 2009 made it mandatory for the transferee(s) to furnish 
a copy of PAN card to the Company/RTA’s for registration of transfer of shares, for securities market transactions and 
off-market/private transactions involving transfer of shares in physical form.

  For matters regarding shares transferred in physical form, share certificates, change of address, etc., Shareholders 
should communicate with Bigshare Services Private Limited, Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

 ii). Demat Form – The Company had made arrangements to dematerialise its shares through National Securities 
Depositories Limited (NSDL) and Central Depositories Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the Company’s ISIN no is 
INE052C01027.

  As on 31st March, 2016, a total number of the Equity Shares 429846304 comprising 99.83% of the paid-up capital of 
the Company is in electronic form.

  For shares transferred in electronic form, after confirmation of sale/purchase transaction from the Broker, Shareholders 
should approach their respective Depositary Participant (DP) with a request to debit or credit the account for the 
transaction. The DP will immediately arrange to complete the transaction by updating the account. There is no need for 
separate communication to either Company or Registrar and Share Transfer Agent to register such share transfers in 
electronic/demat form. For matters regarding shares held in demat form and for matters related to change of address, 
change of bank mandates etc., Shareholders should communicate directly with their respective DP.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2016

Range of  
Equity Shares

As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015

No. of  
Shareholders 

(%) No. of Shares (%)
No. of  

Shareholders
(%)

No. of  
Shareholders

(%)

Up to 5000 77969 92.3136 80410243 18.6748 80382 92.5377 82673793 19.2005

5001-10,000 3385 4.0078 26830639 6.2313 3416 3.9326 27021738 6.2756

10,001-20,000 1567 1.8553 23364547 5.4263 1542 1.7752 22968662 5.3343

20,001-30,000 543 0.6429 13605810 3.1599 553 0.6366 13940689 3.2376

30,001-40,000 241 0.2853 8566190 1.9894 247 0.2844 8808076 2.0456

40,001-50,000 202 0.2392 9499544 2.2062 180 0.2072 8472872 1.9678

50,001-1,00,000 330 0.3907 24162611 5.6116 320 0.3684 23531576 5.4651

1,00,001 and above 224 0.2652 244141856 56.7005 224 0.2579 243164034 56.4735

Total 84461 100.0000 430581440 100.0000 86864 100.0000 430581440 100.0000
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Category-wise Shareholding as on 31st March, 2016

Sl. No. Category
Number of  

Share holders
(%) No. of Shares (%)

1. General Public 83587 98.9651 217295381 50.4656

2. GDRs 1 0.0012 122099160 28.3568

3. Corporate Bodies 624 0.7387 35373887 8.2154

4. Group Companies 3 0.0036 33326036 7.7398

5. FIIs 2 0.0024 11412544 2.6505

6. Promoters/Directors 1 0.0012 5400000 1.2541

7. NRIs 194 0.2297 5306004 1.2323

8. Clearing Members 46 0.0545 354105 0.0822

9. Foreign Company 2 0.0024 13323 0.0031

10. Trusts 1 0.0012 1000 0.0002

Total 84461 100.0000 430581440 100.0000

Column Chart Showing Category-wise Shareholding as on 31st March, 2016

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity as on 31st March, 2016:
Trading in shares of the Company has been done throughout the year.

As on 31st March, 2016, 429839442 Equity Shares comprising 99.83% of the Paid-up Capital of the Company were held 
in dematerialised form with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL).  

Demat International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) for NSDL and CDSL ISIN (for fully paid-up equity shares)

INE052C01027

Particulars No. of Shares Percentage (%)

NSDL 190549672 44.2541

CDSL 239286670     55.5729

PHYSICAL 745098 0.1730

Total 430581440 100.0000
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Liquidity
Presently the Company’s Equity Shares are among the liquid and actively traded shares on the Indian Stock Exchange.

Outstanding GDRs / Warrants and Convertible Instruments, Conversion Date and likely impact on Equity
GDRs: Outstanding GDRs as on 31st March, 2016 represent 4069972 GDRs constituting 28.36% of Company’s paid-up 
Equity Share Capital. Each GDR represents thirty underlying equity shares in the Company. GDR is not a specific time-
bound instrument and can be surrendered and converted into the underlying equity shares in the Company. The shares so 
released in favour of the investors upon surrender of GDRs can either be held by investors concerned in their name or sold 
off in the Indian secondary markets for cash.  

Corporate Office Registered Office and Address for correspondences

Sugam Business Park Mr. Amar Jyoti Lenka

3rd Floor, Plot No. J6, Block – EP & GP, The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Sector V, Salt Lake,  IKF Technologies Limited

Kolkata – 700 091 2nd Floor, Plot No. J - 1/12, Block EP & GP,

West Bengal, India Sector V, Salt Lake, Kolkata – 700 091

 West Bengal, India

 Tel No.: +91 33 23572610/11

 Fax No.: +91 33 23572612

  E-mail: cs@ikftech.in; info@ikftech.in

 Website: www.ikf-technologies.com

Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of Non-Mandatory Requirements 
under Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) read with Schedule V paragraph (C) (10) of SEBI (Listing Disclosure & 
Obligations Requirement), Regulation 2015.
The Company has disclosed and complied with all the mandatory requirements under Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) read with 
Schedule V paragraph (C) (10) of SEBI (Listing Disclosure & Obligations Requirement), Regulation 2015. The details of these 
compliances have been given in the relevant sections of this report.

Among the non-mandatory requirements of Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) read with Schedule V paragraph (C) (10) of SEBI 
(Listing Disclosure & Obligations Requirement), Regulation 2015., the Company has complied with the following:

Ø	 Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee/Board.

Ø	 Compliance of Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulations: Your Company has comprehensive guidelines 
on prohibiting insider trading and the Company has adopted the code of internal procedures and conduct for listed 
companies notified by the SEBI.

Ø	 Whistleblower Policy: The Company has a Whistleblower Policy and no personnel are denied access to the Audit Committee.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)
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Ø	 Information to Shareholders: Half-yearly financial results, including summary of the significant events are currently 

not being sent to the Shareholders of the Company. However, quarterly results are posted at the Company’s website at 
www.ikf-technologies.com, in addition to being published into two newspapers, one in English and another in vernacular 
language.

Ø	 Others: The other non-mandatory requirements such as training of Board Members, Mechanism for Evaluating the 
Non-Executive Board Members will be implemented by the Company, as and when required and/or deemed necessary 
by the Board.

Governance by the Management
Management Discussion and Analysis Report
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of Annual report in accordance with Clause 49(IV)(F) of the Listing  
Agreement.

CEO/CFO Certification
WTD & CEO and CFO of the Company give annual certificate on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in 
accordance with Regulation 

Compliance of Insider Trading Norms
The Company has adopted the code of conduct for listed companies notified by the SEBI prohibiting insider trading.

Share Transfer System
Shares lodged for physical transfer are registered within a period of 15 days, if the documents are clear and complete in all 
respects. The shares duly transferred would be dispatched to the Shareholders upon approval of transfers. Adequate care 
is taken to ensure that, no transfers are pending for more than a fortnight. As bulk of the Company’s shares are currently 
traded in dematerialized form, the transfers are processed and approved in the electronic form by NSDL / CDSL through 
their depository participants. Bigshare Services Private Limited is the common Share Transfer Agent for both physical and 
dematerialised mode.

Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance
As required by Regulation 27(2) of SEBI (Listing Disclosure & Obligations Requirement), Regulation 2015., the Auditor’s 
Certificate on Corporate  Governance is obtained and provided in the annual report.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS FOR  
DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

DECLARATION

All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have affirmed their compliance with the ‘Code of Conduct 
for the Directors and Senior Management’ of the Company for the period from 1st April, 2015 to 31st March, 2016 in terms 
of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 with the Stock Exchanges.

The said Code of Conduct for the Director and Senior Management is posted on the website of the Company, namely, 
www.ikf-technologies.com

 

Date: 2nd July, 2016 Sunil Kumar Goyal

Place: Kolkata WTD & CEO
DIN: 00550933
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To, 
The Members of IKF Technologies Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by IKF Technologies Limited (‘the Company’), for 

the year ended March 31, 2016, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (“Listing Agreement”) of the Company 

with the Stock Exchanges for the period 1st April, 2015 to 30th November, 2015 and as per Regulation 17 to 27, clause (b) to 

(i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and paragraph C,D & E of Schedeule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulation 2015 (“Listing Regulation”) for the period from 1st December, 2015 to 31st March, 2016.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was 

limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of 

Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company 

has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

  

1, British Indian Street For Mandawewala and Co.
1st Floor, Suite No. 110D, Chartered Accountants
Kolkat-700 069 Firm Registration No. 322130E

 CA Swati Singhal

Date: 2nd July, 2016 Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 308308
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT:
This material contains forward-looking statements, which are based on our current expectations, assumptions, 
estimates and projections about our Company and our industry. Generally, these forward-looking statements 
can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” 
“intend,” “will,” “project,” “seek,” “should” and similar expressions. Those statements include, among other 
things, statements relating to our growth and our service offerings. We caution you that reliance on any forward-
looking statement involves risks and uncertainties, and that although we believe that the assumptions on which 
our forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of those assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, 
and, as a result, the forward-looking statements based on those assumptions could be materially incorrect. 
These factors include but are not limited to worldwide economic and business conditions; political or economic 
instability in the jurisdictions where we have operations; regulatory, legislative and judicial developments; our 
ability to attract and retain clients technological innovation; telecommunications or technology disruptions; 
future regulatory actions and conditions in our operating areas; our dependence on a limited number of clients 
in a limited number of industries; our ability to expand our business or effectively manage growth; our ability to 
hire and retain enough sufficiently trained employees to support our operations; increasing competition in the 
BPO industry; our ability to successfully grow our revenue and expand our service offerings and market share. 
We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of 
new information, future events or otherwise.

OVERVIEW
IKF Technologies Limited (“IKF” or “the Company”) along with its subsidiaries is a leading global services Company. The 
IKF group of companies (“the Group”) provides business outsourcing services, technology, software product, education, 
Internet services etc. The business process outsourcing industry owes its existence primarily to the IT revolution. Without 
technologies like high-speed Internet and remote networking, it would have been impossible for organizations to exploit the 
cost benefits of outsourcing business processes to third-party firms situated halfway across the world. 

In such a scenario, it is obvious that changes in improvements in technology will have a significant impact on the BPO 
industry. 

1. Growing Popularity of Cloud Computing
Cloud computing helps organizations delegate establishment, maintenance, and improvement of IT infrastructure to third-
party service providers. Until now, BPO service providers relied on conventional business models by establishing elaborate 
offices and investing in IT infrastructure to provide services to foreign clients.

Now, cloud computing will allow BPO outsourcing firms to encourage employees to work from home. With these solutions 
facilitating real-time sharing of data, information, and software services, BPO companies can reduce costs and improve 
efficiency by making the switch to cloud computing. 

2. Shorter and More Flexible Contracts
BPO outsourcing companies will no longer be assured of long and stable contracts. Instead, more and more organizations 
are demanding shorter contracts with more flexible options. With the business environment changing at a very rapid pace, 
firms are relying on innovative strategies to boost revenue and profits. In such a scenario, outsourcing companies too are 
witnessing a transition to contracts with shorter time frames that seek agile facilities.

3. Omni Channel Services
With customers relying on multiple channels to interact with sellers and service providers, BPO outsourcing services too will 
have two embrace this change. Focusing solely on voice-based outsourcing services will not work at a time when more and 
more people are using social media to purchase products and services. Just as commercial organizations are using multiple 
channels to engage with their customers, BPO service providers too will have to utilize these new-age channels to offer more 
versatile services.

4. Emphasis on Gamification
Attrition has always been an issue for the traditional BPO outsourcing company. High attrition results in higher expenditure 
towards HR management and training, along with the inevitable reduction in quality of service until the new employee is fully 
trained. In such a scenario, BPO service providers will look towards Gamification strategies to keep their employees engaged 
during the performance of repetitive and monotonous tasks. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT (Contd.)
5. Switch to Mobile-Based Services
With growing broadband penetration, even a firm offering BPO outsourcing in India can rely on wireless Internet technology 
and mobile devices to offer mobile-centric services to customers. Such a change will result in lower infrastructure costs, a 
flexible working environment for employees, and more versatile services for clients. 

6. Domestic Outsourcing
With organizations aggressively pursuing cost-reduction strategies by utilization of new technologies, there is a possibility that 
domestic outsourcing may become the preferred choice for firms in developed countries. This can prove to be a significant 
challenge for companies based in developing countries. However, the high rate of growth in these countries will mean that 
domestic outsourcing may prove to be an attractive opportunity as well. 

Changes in business environment and introduction of new technologies are expected to dominate the BPO industry in the 
coming years. While conventional and traditional strategies may no longer be effective, an innovative company relying on 
versatile and nimble strategies can experience faster and more sustainable growth.

ECONOMY, INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE

Structure of IKF Services

The Indian information technology sector continues to be one of the sunshine sectors of the Indian economy showing rapid 
growth and promise. Indian IT-BPO industry Poised to become a US$ 225 billion industry by 2020, the Indian information 
technology (IT) industry has played a key role in putting India on the global map. 

Exports by India’s IT outsourcing sector are expected to rise 13-15 percent in the fiscal year starting from April 2014, as an 
improving global economy encourages banks and companies to boost spending on technology.  NASSCOM has forecasted 
IT services exports in 2014-15 to rise to as much $99 billion. The increase in growth rate compares with an estimated 13 
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percent rise in fiscal year 2016. It also states that the Indian IT and ITeS industry is likely to grow to about $300 billion by 2020, 
focusing on areas like e-commerce, software products and the IT market.

The Indian IT and ITeS industry is divided into four major segments – IT services, business process management (BPM), 
software products and engineering services, and hardware. India has emerged as the fastest growing market for Dell globally 
and the third largest market in terms of revenue after the US and China.

The IT-BPM sector in India grew at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 25 per cent over 2000-2013, which is 3-4 times 
higher than the global IT-BPM spend, and is estimated to expand at a CAGR of 9.5 per cent to US$ 300 billion by 2020.

Why is the sector growing?
•  Rapid industrialization and growth of IT parks in the country

•  Partial privatization of telecommunication

•  Development of SEZ; which also help IT companies get tax benefits

•  A large number of resource readily available in the country

•  Low operating costs

•  Tax breaks and sops offered by the government

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE & REVIEW
A graphical presentation of total revenue analysis is given below:

Key Subsidiaries
Details of Indian and foreign subsidiaries are given below:

Indian & Foreign Subsidiaries
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IKF TECHNOLOGIES LTD.

FOREIGN SUBSIDIARY INDIAN SUBSIDIARY

IKF GREEN FUEL LTD. 
(99.93%)

IKF TECHNOLOGIES PTY. LTD. 
(100%)

BIOFEL FZE. 
(100%)

IKF TELECOM INC. 
(100%)
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Related Party transactions:
These have been discussed in detail in the Notes to the standalone financial statements section of the Annual Report.

Events occurring after Balance Sheet date:
No significant event occurred after the Balance Sheet date. 

Overview of IKF Technologies Limited 
There are four types of outsourcing strategies, or what some call engagement models for sourcing. The first two are considered 
business process outsourcing (BPO) engagements, and the other two are considered out-tasking models. The BPO models 
are comprehensive and selective. And the out-tasking models are licensing and contracting. And let’s be clear, all four are 
forms of outsourcing.

The easiest way to explain it is to think about the training organization as an integrated group of business processes that must 
be managed by someone. We call these processes the Training Process Framework . The framework defines 26 business 
processes across the four functional areas of a training organization; administration, content, delivery, and technology. 

The number of processes a supplier manages, the complexity integrating those processes, and the duration of time a 
supplier is expected to manage those processes all help define the differences in outsourcing strategies. BPO refers to 
those engagements that are most complex, longer in duration, integrated across functional process areas, and considered 
most strategic to the business. Out-tasking refers to the models that are less complex, fewer processes and limited to one 
functional area, more tactical, and more labor oriented.

IKF Technologies Ltd. is Public Limited Company incorporated in the year of 2000 with the main objective of promoting 
IT, ITES, ISP and Alternative Energy Resources across the Globe. It’s a fastest growing IT Company has maintained its 
leadership status in catalyzing renaissance in Indian IT arena. We offer IT-enabled business solutions to our clients globally.
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SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE

1. IT & ITES Divisions 
With close to a million people in India building rewarding careers with the IT & BPO industry, the dynamic economic climate is 
expected to fuel further demand for the industry to not only deliver cost savings and but to deliver higher level of performance 
and results in form of innovation and business advantage thereby strengthening market positioning of the clients the IT & 
BPO organization are serving. Thus outsourcing as a discipline is expected to become even more sophisticated. As a result 
of impressive growth of the economy, steadily increasing purchasing power of the people and aspirations of the young, India 
is one of the fastest growing markets for BPO .The domestic demand for electronic hardware is estimated at US$ 400 billion 
by 2020.

Key Highlights during Financial Year 2015-16
In FY2016, NASSCOM expects the industry to add revenues of USD 20 billion to the existing industry revenues of USD 
146 billion. Export revenues for FY2016 is projected to grow by 12 to 14% and reach USD 110-112 bn. Domestic revenues 
(including ecommerce) for the same period will grow at a rate of 15-17% percent and is expected to reach USD 55-57 billion 
during the year.

Some of the major developments in the Indian IT and ITeS sector are as follows:

• PurpleTalk Inc, a US based mobile solutions company, has invested US$ 1 million in Nukkad Shops, a Hyderabad based 
uber-local commerce platform that helps neighbourhood retail stores take their businesses online through a mobile app.

• Kart Rocket, a Delhi based e-commerce enabler has completed its US$ 8 million funding round by raising US$ 2 million 
from a Japanese investor, which will be used to enhance Kraftly, a mobile-first online-to-offline marketplace targeting 
small sellers, individuals and home-based entrepreneurs in India in product categories such as apparel and accessories.

• JustRide, a self-drive car rental aggregator, has raised US$ 400,000 in pre-series A round of funding from a group of 
angel investors, including Redcliffe Capital’s Mr Dheeraj Jain, which will be used to enhance its technology.

• Mumbai-based baby care and kids products e-tailer, Hopscotch.in, has raised US$ 13 million in a Series C round of 
funding from Facebook co-founder Mr Eduardo Saverin, which will help the firm in growth and expansion of its technology 
platform.

• MoMark Services, a mobile based customer engagement platform for small and medium businesses, has raised US$ 
600,000 from YourNest Angel Fund and LNB Group, to scale up its product offerings and talent acquisition.

• Shouut, a social discovery app by Giant Tech Labs Pvt Ltd, which helps consumers discover deals, buy event tickets or 
redeem coupons, has raised US$ 500,000 in angel funding from a high net-worth individual angel investor based in India.

• Apple Inc. plans to set up its first technology development centre outside the US in Hyderabad with an investment of US$ 
25 million, which is expected to create 4,500 jobs, as per Mr Jayesh Ranjan, Secretary, IT for the state of Telangana.

• Xpressbees, an e-commerce logistics firm operated by Busybees Logistics Solutions Private Limited, has raised US$ 
12.5 million in a Series A funding, led by its existing investors SAIF Partners, IDG Ventures, Vertex Ventures and Valiant 
Capital, which will be used to strengthen technology initiatives and processes of the firm.

• Housejoy, an online home services provider, has raised Rs 150 crore (US$ 22 million) in a Series B round of funding led by 
Amazon, and which also includes new investors such as Vertex Ventures, Qualcomm and Ru-Net Technology Partners.

• Global PE firm Blackstone Group has acquired a minority stake in an Indian travel, transportation and logistics software 
firm, IBS Software, for US$ 170 million, by buying the stake from General Atlantic and few other shareholders.

• India’s top-tier IT company, Infosys Ltd, has bought a minority stake worth US$ 3 million in Whoop, which is a US-based 
start-up that makes activity trackers worn by athletes.

• Microsoft Ventures is planning to incubate 500 start-ups in India in the next five years with a vision to create a viable and 
profitable business out of the booming start-up sector in India.

• National Association of Software and Services Companies (NASSCOM) plans to open four more tech start-up incubation 
centres in different parts of India, in addition to existing three, in support of Government of India’s ‘Start-up India’ 
initiative.

• Nasscom Foundation, a non-profit organisation which is a part of Nasscom, has partnered with SAP India to establish 25 
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National Digital Literacy Mission (NDLM) centres in 12 cities across India, as a part of Government of India’s Digital India 
initiative.

• Infosys, India’s second largest Information Technology services company has acquired US-based Noah Consulting, a 
provider of advanced information management consulting services for the oil and gas industry.

• US-based Callidus Software Inc, cloud-based sales, marketing, learning and customer experience solutions provider, 
has opened its centre in Hyderabad and also launched its ‘The Lead to Money’ suite in Indian markets.

• Wipro Ventures, Wipro’s US$ 100 million corporate venture arm, plans to invest in early-stage Venture Capital (VC) funds 
based in the US to pursue a strategy of investing/partnering country-focussed VCs.

• A recent study by research firm International Data Corporation (IDC) suggests that India may soon be able to catch up 
with the global technology trends that have disrupted enterprises, industry and the way consumers behave and transact.

• Reliance is building a 650,000 square feet (sq ft) data centre in India—its 10th data centre in the country—with a combined 
capacity of about 1 million sq ft and an overall investment of US$ 200 million.

• Intel Corp plans to invest about US$ 62 million in 16 technology companies, working on wearable, data analytics and 
the Internet of Things (IoT), in 2015 through its investment arm Intel Capital. The Indian IoT industry is expected be worth 
US$ 15 billion and to connect 28 billion devices to the internet by 2020.

• Indian e-commerce industry is expected to grow at a CAGR of 35 per cent to reach US$ 100 billion size in the next five 
years, as per a study by Assocham-Price water house Coopers.

Global Scenario

Today the Indian BPO scene has changed over the years. From being a call center centric industry, the Indian BPO scene now 

covers a wide range of services, largely voiceless. The IT-BPO sector has become one of the most significant growth catalysts 

for the Indian economy. In addition to fuelling India’s economy, this industry is also positively influencing the lives of its people 

through an active direct and indirect contribution to the various socio- economic parameters such as employment, standard 

of living and diversity among others. The industry has played a significant role in transforming India’s image from a slow 

moving bureaucratic economy to a land of innovative entrepreneurs and a global player in providing world class technology 

solutions and business services. Therefore the study aimed at exploring the Dimensions of global economic Scenario and its 

impact on Indian BPO Industry during the slowdown along with the following main objectives:

1. To ascertain the trends and development of BPO Industry in India.

2.  To examine the Global Economic Scenario in the context of BPO Industry.

3.  To analyze the impact of economic slowdown on the performance of BPO Sector in India.

4.  To carry out SWOT analysis of Indian BPO Industry.

5.  To anticipate the future prospects/potential of Indian BPO Industry.

6.  To suggest Action Plan for the Indian BPO Industry

Domestic IT-BPO Industry
There is a lot of dynamism in the domestic IT-BPO market. The demand side continues to evolve and as a response to that the 
supply side is gearing up to provide better products and services and innovative business models to their domestic customers. 
Also, technology can be a powerful enabler in helping the country achieves inclusive growth. 

Export growth in the country’s IT-BPO sector is expected to be slower at 10-12% next fiscal hit by currency fluctuations, 
especially the weakening of the rupee against the US dollar.

The industry is looking at 12.3% growth in the 2015-16 fiscal, ending on March 31. Last year, the IT services and software 
industry body had forecast a growth of 12-14% in exports. The rupee recently fell to 29-month low against the dollar. Currency 
movements impact the industry, which earns around 80% of the revenue from the US and Europe.

The Indian IT and ITeS industry is divided into five major segments – IT services, business process management (BPM), 
software products and engineering services, and hardware.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT (Contd.)



IKF Technologies Limited

www.ikf-technologies.com56

Despite the impact, strong uptake of digital technologies like cloud, mobility, Internet of Things (IoT) and Big Data coupled 
with a rapidly growing start-up ecosystem are expected to help exports grow double-digit to reach $107.8 billion (nearly Rs 
7.31 lakh crore) in 2015-16.

The overall industry (along with domestic consumption and hardware) is expected to reach an estimated $143 billion (nearly 
Rs 9.70 lakh crore) in 2015-16. The global IT-BPO spending rose 0.4% in 2015.

The IT-BPM sector in India grew at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 25 per cent over 2000-2013, which is 3-4 times 
higher than the global IT-BPM spend, and is estimated to expand at a CAGR of 9.5 per cent to US$ 300 billion by 2020.

Business Outlook for the Indian IT-BPO industry
IT industry trade body Nasscom on Thursday projected a 10-12 percent growth for the Indian software services industry for the 
fiscal year 2017, lagging the 12-14 percent growth forecast it had made for the current fiscal (FY16). 

Nasscom pointed out that for FY16, the industry’s export revenue grew by 12.3 percent to reach $108 billion, touching the 
lower end of its earlier revenue projection. During the same period, domestic revenue grew by 10 percent. 

According to Nasscom, the Indian IT-BPO industry is expected to reach $143 billion in revenue (which includes exports and 
domestic business) by March 31. The latest revenue figures show that the sector has doubled its revenue over the last six 
years and crossed the $100 billion milestone in export revenues. In addition, ecommerce contributed $17 billion in revenue, 
boosting digital consumption.  

The software services export revenue is expected to grow by 10-12 percent in FY17, touching revenue of $119-121 billion, 
Nasscom said in a statement, adding that the IT-BPO industry added 2 lakh employees during the current fiscal, touching a 
total employee base of 3.7 million. 

“Going forward, revenue growth alone may not be an adequate indicator of the growing capability and capacity of India’s 
technology industry and factors such as investment, valuations, digital solutions portfolio, impact, etc would also need to be 
considered in assessing the industry performance and contribution to the economy.”

Way Forward
With increased GDP growth of emerging markets, and shrinking working age populations, there are a new set of hitherto 
untapped opportunities that will include emergence of new verticals, service lines, geographic and customer segments. On 
the back of these trends, the addressable market opportunity for the IT-BPO sector is likely to expand from the current $500 
billion to $1.5 trillion by 2020. 

India is fundamentally advantaged and uniquely positioned to sustain its global leadership position, grow its offshore IT-BPO 
industries at an annual rate of 13-14 per cent, sustain nearly 10 million direct jobs, and generate export revenues of about 
$175 billion by 2020 and domestic revenues of $50 billion by 2020. Additionally, this growth can be further accelerated to 
$310 billion through deep and enduring innovation by industry participants, and focused initiatives by all stakeholders.
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The sector can transform India through economic development and ICT-enabled solutions in healthcare, education, financial 
services and public services, which can drive the socio-economic inclusion of 30 million citizens each year.

Industry Example
The industry is looking to change its image not just among clients but among potential employees as well. Experts say that 
customer service or the contact centre is just 40% of the overall BPO spend pie. But in trying to grab a larger share of the 
non-voice and higher margin business, Indian companies need to attract the kind of talent that has shunned them for being 
“call centres” 

Indian IT companies have often talked about taking steps to grow their higher-margin businesses, but now the investments 
they are making are mostly narrowing their margins. 

By the year2016, the BPO Industry in the Philippines will employ 1.2 million workers with $25 billion in revenues. The South 
African call centre industry has grown by approximately 8% per year since 2003 and it directly employs about 54,000 people, 
contributing 0.92% to South Africa’s gross domestic product (GDP). China is also trying to grow from a very small base in 
this industry. However, while the BPO industry is expected to continue to grow in India, its market share of the offshore piece 
is expected to decline.

IKF at its BPO Segment
In India, Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) is the fastest growing segment of the ITES (Information Technology Enabled 
Services) industry. Factors such as economy of scale, business risk mitigation, cost advantage; utilization improvement and 
superior competency have all lead to the growth of the Indian BPO industry. Business process outsourcing in India, which 
started around the mid-90s, has now grown by leaps and bounds. 

India is now the world’s favored market for BPO companies, among other competitors, such as, Australia, China, Philippines 
and Ireland. The BPO boom in India is credited to cheap labor costs and India’s huge talent pool of skilled, English-speaking 
professionals. Research by the National Association of Software Services and Companies (NASSCOM) has revealed that 
quality orientation among leading BPO companies, 24/7 services, India’s unique geographic location and the investor friendly 
tax structure in India have all made the BPO industry in India very popular.

Our BPO expertise:
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Domestic Market – Stability:
Outsourcing (BPO) is one of the fastest growing segments of the Information Technology Enabled Services (ITES) industry.

BPO is Gaining  

Future Outlook
As per NASSCOM, the Indian IT/ITES industry is expected to maintain a growth of 12-14% in FY2014. NASSCOM has also 
envisaged the Indian IT/ITES industry to achieve a revenue target of USD 225 bn by 2020 for which the industry needs to grow 
by about 13% on a YoY basis in the next seven years. 

Sudden changes in business dynamics and the rise of digital technologies has left the Indian IT industry on the back foot. It’s 
unlikely it’ll make up for lost time in 2016, but it’ll certainly make plenty of progress.

It’s been a bumpy few years for the Indian IT/ITeS sector as it grapples with more change than it’s seen in over a decade-and-
a-half. But the $146 billion-industry isn’t sitting on its haunches. It’s taking control and making sure it’s in charge of its destiny.

The industry body, NASSCOM, believes the sector will close off the year (that’s March 2016) with between 12-14 percent 
growth. In the next fiscal, NASSCOM expects the sector to add $20 billion of revenues to its current $146 billion—that’s about 
13.6 percent growth. According to NASSCOM, “Export revenues for FY2016 are projected to grow by 12 to 14 percent and 
reach $110-112 billion. Domestic revenues (including ecommerce) for the same period will grow at a rate of 15-17 percent 
and is expected to reach $55-57 billion during the year.”

Our experts expect a number of shifts in the industry—including a focus on hyper-speed deal making, the emergence of 
new multi-sourcing headaches and potential cures, increased man-machine collaboration, and significant expansion of the 
service provider universe. 

Key global megatrends around macroeconomics, demographics, social, environmental, technology and business will shape 
the future of the IT-BPO industry. These megatrends will present a new set of opportunities in the form of largely untapped 
markets and customer segments, which can propel industry revenues to USD 225 billion by 2020. Domestically, over 50% 
of the citizens in India lack access to primary healthcare due to unaffordable cost. However, technology can offer access 
to affordable healthcare facilities at much cheaper price. Other factors that will drive growth, include increasing awareness 
about health insurance, rise in lifestyle related diseases and increasing thrust of government to make healthcare facilities 
more affordable among others. As per D&B’s projection, the total government expenditure on health as a percentage of GDP 
is expected to increase from 1.4% (estimated) of GDP in FY14 to around 2.0% of GDP by FY20. This offers huge growth 
potential for Indian IT vendors going forward.    

Globally, the spending on ER&D is estimated at around US$ 1,150 bn as on 2011. India is estimated to account for nearly 

Today’s BPO market demands that providers deliver value by synthesizing massive 
amounts of data, analyzing it and then applying Industry experience to drive 

improved outcomes

Improving data quality Optimise Process and Customer Journey

Reduce losses & introduce additional avenues Predicting & Preventing
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22% share in the global ER&D off shoring revenues. As per NASSCOM, the market for ER&D and design is expected to reach 
between US$ 40-45 bn by 2020. 

Indian information technology (IT) spending is forecast to reach $78.5 billion in 2016, up 11.50% from $70.1 billion in 2015. 
The pace of IT spending in India may make it the third-largest IT market in the Asia-Pacific by 2017 and second- largest by 
2018. IT services segment is forecast to grow 15.7% while software sector may grow 14% in 2016.

The Indian IT/ITES industry is expected to maintain a growth of 13-15% in FY2016 and to achieve a revenue target of USD 
225 bn by 2020 for which the industry needs to grow by about 13% on a Year on year basis in the next six years.

The Indian IT/ITES industry is expected to maintain a growth of 13-15% in FY2015 and to achieve a revenue target of USD 
225 bn by 2020 for which the industry needs to grow by about 13% on a Year on year basis in the next six years.

2. ISP Division
Indian ISP Market
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The Vision of Indian ISP Market is to develop a strong and vibrant technology neutral telecom sector with enhanced 
participation of private sector that can:

• Propel India into the forefront among the global economic superpowers with high quality. And cost effective telecom 

infrastructure and services support.

•  Ensure that the India‘s rural masses have easy access to the info highways leading to Education, knowledge, commerce 

and health, thereby bridging the digital divide.

• Provide opportunities for private investment both in services sector and manufacturing Sectors leading to creation of 

employment, particularly in rural areas.

•  Keep India technically advanced; initiate R&D in cutting edge telecommunication Technologies

As more and more Indians demand internet access, the ISP market is witnessing tremendous growth in the number of 
subscribers. As a result the demand for the network equipment and consumer premise equipments bought by ISPs is 
growing. So what is driving the consumer demand? It is the increased use cases for consumers such as email, messaging, 
website browsing, tickets and e-commerce and other drivers such as cost of broadband going down, and amongst other 
drivers cost of government initiatives to drive broadband. 

Recent rapid growth
Telecommunications is one of the prime support services needed for rapid growth and modernization of various sectors of 
the economy. Driven by strong adoption of data consumption on handheld devices, the total mobile services market revenue 
in India will reach US$ 29.8 billion in 2014 and is expected to touch US$ 37 billion in 2017, registering a compound annual 
growth rate (CAGR) of 5.2 per cent, according to research firm IDC.

According to a study by GSMA, it has been expected that smart phones will account for two out of every three mobile 
connections globally by 2020 and India is all set to become the fourth largest Smartphone market.

The broadband services user-base in India is expected to grow to 250 million connections by 2017, according to the UK-
based GSM Association (GSMA).
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The Indian telecom sector is expected to create four million direct and indirect jobs over the next 5 years on the back of the 
government’s efforts to increase penetration in rural areas along with the growth in the Smartphone numbers and internet 
usage, according to estimates by Randstad India. 

Global ISP Scenario
The changing future of the telecommunication industry comprises a detailed analysis of its changing landscape and solutions 
to address these changes. IP converged networks have brought about drastic changes to the telecom scenario globally. 
Similarly, changing consumer behavior (and needs) has led to increased competition within the IP infrastructure landscape. 

It analyzes the growth rate of the industry, emerging opportunities and restraints, structure of the industry, as well as 
recommendations for growth. The report presents an overview of historical data and forecasts the future of the telecommunication 
industry in terms of revenue and volume. With ever-evolving trends, the need for sustained growth becomes imperative. This 
report offers recommendations on strategies required for sustaining this transformation.

The telecommunication industry comprises devices, systems, and technologies that make communication over a distance 
possible. The initial years of traditional wires telephones are now a distant reality with today’s telecommunication industry 
being defined by cutting-edge optical fibers, satellite communications, wireless communications and the internet. 

The subscriber base of fixed point communication as well as wireless networks has increased, thanks to attractive pricing 
and competitive services from service providers. The falling prices of telecommunication devices have put them within reach 
of the average consumer, further contributing to the expansion of this market. 

Based on usage, the telecommunication industry can be segmented as: point-to-point communication, internet-enabled 
services, entertainment, infotainment, critical communication, and news. The two key communication networks today are: 
terrestrial and satellite communication networks. Communication devices include mobile phones, laptops, and a variety of 
other handheld devices.

The overall telecommunication industry can be segmented as: telephones, cable communication, satellites, and internet 
service providers (ISP).

ISPs are enterprises engaged in the business of providing internet access to consumers. The ISP market can be further split 
into the following segments: hosting, access, mailbox, transit, free, and virtual ISPs.

Similarly, the telephones segment can be sliced into two broad segments: mobile telephones and fixed telephones (cordless 
phones, landlines, intercom systems, and others). 

The satellite communication industry has rapidly emerged over the past few decades and makes use of artificial satellites 
that link to earth stations to facilitate the exchange of information or data. Segments within the satellite communication 
market are: digital cinema, military communication, radio services, mobile communication, global positioning systems (GPS), 
internet, and others.

Telecommunication based on the use of copper cables or new-age optical cables, is referred to as cable communication. 
The global internet infrastructure almost entirely relies on cables to provide subscribers with internet access. These cable 
networks also service fixed landlines and television broadcasting. 

The changing future of the telecommunications industry largely depends on growth drivers. The ISP market, for instance, 
has grown by leaps and bounds because of a pressing need for high-speed internet services. This market also needs to 
respond to consumer needs pertaining to online gaming and video on-demand. With cloud computing rapidly seeping into 
the telecommunications landscape, massive changes are on the anvil. 

However, the greatest push for this market, by far, would be a massive proliferation in the number of wireless communication 
subscribers. In the last two decade, millions of new subscribers have been added worldwide. This has partly been driven by 
the increased need for connectivity among people and the development of the third generation (3G) and fourth generation 
(4G) cellular networks.

The changing future of the telecommunication industry will also witness a higher usage of intercom systems (landline) coupled 
with voice over internet protocol (VoIP) in offices. This will drive the growth of the landline phones market over the next few 
years.

Satellites, which provide coverage over 90% of the earth, will rise in popularity mainly because of their comprehensive 
coverage where regular cellular networks fall short. Satellites will thus play a central role in providing radio, digital television, 

mobile communication, and other services. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT (Contd.)



IKF Technologies Limited

www.ikf-technologies.com62

Impact of Global Economic Scenario
A comprehensive overview of trends and developments is there in India’s telecommunications market. The report analyses 
the mobile, internet, broadband, digital TV and converging media sectors. Subjects include:

• Market and industry analysis, trends and developments;

• Market and operator statistics;

• Regulatory environment and developments;

• Infrastructure;

• Major players;

• Internet, VoIP, IPTV;

• Mobile voice and data markets;

• Broadband – fixed (FttH, DSL, wireless);

• Broadband – mobile;

• Digital media;

• Digital economy;

• Scenario forecasts – subscribers (fixed-line, mobile, fixed internet) to 2020.

Achievements
The ISP sector, in the eastern region, having acquired high profiled clients including Aircel, Dish, Idea and MTS. 

Future Outlook:
India will emerge as a leading player in the virtual world by having 700 million internet users of the 4.7 billion global users by 
2025, as per a Microsoft report.

After a major hiccup back in 2012, India’s mobile market had sorted itself out to a large extent by 2016 and subscriber growth 
looked to be running at a steady 10% per annum. By March 2016 there were 1100 million subscribers representing a mobile 
penetration of 80%. Mobile penetration was likely to reach 100% by 2020. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT (Contd.)



www.ikf-technologies.com 63

17th Annual Report 2015-16

On the regulatory front there were positive signs of a market improving on the back of restructuring. Figures from the TRAI 
showed that Mobile Number Portability (MNP) was working well. The process of auctioning spectrum was also working well 
– despite criticism that the reserve prices had been set to high. The removal of the cap on foreign investment in the telecom 
sector was yet another strong signal to the market of the government’s intentions. The telecom market was still waiting 
on regulatory guidance with respect to mergers and acquisitions, however; this was important for the process of market 
consolidation to continue. 

3. Bio Fuel Division

Biofuels can provide up to 27% of world transportation fuel by 2050, IEA report says - IEA ‘roadmap’ shows how biofuel 
production can be expanded in a sustainable way, and identifies needed technologies and policy actions

 Biofuels can provide transport fuel with substantially lower CO2 emissions than conventional gasoline or diesel when 
comparing the entire “life cycle” of production – that is, from the field to the vehicle. But there are caveats: it is important to 
reduce the use of fossil energy during cultivation, transport and conversion of biomass to biofuel. It is also important to avoid 
direct or indirect land-use changes, such as converting forests to grow biofuel feedstocks, which release large amounts CO2 
and could offset the CO2 reduction potential of biofuels. 

Most conventional biofuels (produced mainly from starch, sugar and oilseed crops) must therefore be improved in terms 
of conversion- and land-use efficiency to achieve considerable greenhouse-gas reductions. In addition, advanced biofuel 
technologies currently at the demonstration stage (produced mainly from lignocelluloses biomass such as wood and straw), 
need to be commercially deployed within the next ten years and will provide the major share of biofuels in 2050. 

There is a great potential for using low-risk sources that require limited land expansion, and should not compete with 
food production, to provide feedstock for the expanding biofuel industry. The report says the use of residues and high-
yielding energy crops as feedstock, and the efficient use of biomass, for instance through integrating biofuel and bio-material 
production (so-called biorefineries), will be vital to reduce land competition. In addition, sustainability certification of biofuels, 
following internationally agreed sustainability criteria, will be an important step towards ensuring that biofuel production and 
use have a positive environmental, social and economic impact. 
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Bio Diesel Acceptable To Major Consumers
Biodiesel + New Technology Diesel Engines = A Winning Combination. The dramatic growth in availability of new technology 
diesel engines and vehicles for the U.S. market is welcome news for consumers and fleets that want the tremendous power, 
performance and fuel economy of a diesel engine, while minimizing their impact on the environments they operate in. This is 
because any diesel vehicle can also operate on clean, renewable biodiesel blends – America’s Advanced Biofuel. Biodiesel 
is the first commercial-scale fuel produced across the U.S. to meet the EPA’s definition as an Advanced Biofuel – meaning 
the EPA has determined that biodiesel reduces greenhouse gas emissions by more than 50 percent when compared with 
petroleum diesel. Currently, all major Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) selling diesel vehicles and equipment in the 
U.S. support the use of at least B5 (5 percent biodiesel blended with 95 percent petroleum diesel) under warranty. And nearly 
80 percent of manufacturers support the use of B20 or higher biodiesel blends in at least some of their equipment, including 
over 90 percent of the medium- and heavy-duty truck markets. 

In addition to the confirmed diesel models arriving in 2015-2016, automakers are considering and preparing a number of 
other new diesels for the U.S. market in the near future: 

• Audi has a number of potential new diesel models in the works, including a new 2016 Audi SQ7, Audi Q7 etron, and Audi 
A8 etron, all of which would be based on a new Volkswagen electric turbocharged diesel engine. Details are also still 
unfolding about a new Audi A4 and possibly a sporty Audi R8 that has been proving itself on the racetrack. 

•  Volkswagen is prepping a production version of its new VW CrossBlue seven-seat mid-size SUV with a dieselelectric 
hybrid powertrain. The concept first appeared at the 2013 Detroit Auto Show and would be a gamechanger in the SUV 
market. Volkswagen is also looking at a VW Golf GTD diesel-powered hatchback that could come into the U.S. market 
after 2017. 

•  Mazda is still perfecting its long-awaited Mazda 6 with Skyactiv-D. Mazda says the Skyactiv-D engine meets all of the 
necessary emissions regulations in the Mazda 6 sedan, but does not yet have the performance it wants. 

•  Nissan may choose to follow up a successful launch of its new diesel Titan with a diesel version of the Nissan Frontier. 
The Frontier debuted as a concept vehicle at the 2014 Chicago Auto Show, and Nissan is now testing the mid-size truck 
with a Cummins diesel 2.8L, 200 HP turbo diesel engine. 

•  Hyundai and Kia are also considering diesel models for the U.S. market after 2016 as a means to meet the more aggressive 
fuel economy standards being implemented in 2017. At the 2015 North American International Auto Show in Detroit, a 
surprising Hyundai Santa Cruz crossover pickup concept was revealed with a 2.0L turbo diesel engine option and an 
expandable truck bed. This would be Hyundai’s first diesel in the U.S. 

•  General Motors may also be looking to expand its diesel offerings to improve the fuel economy of its overall fleet. One 
likely candidate to receive a diesel engine could be the Cadillac Escalade.

Global Scenario of Bio diesel Market: Scenario analysis
With 47 new clean diesel car, truck and SUV models available now or launching soon in the 2015 model year, automotive 
industry experts predict that consumers will have more than 62 diesel vehicle models to choose from in North America by 
2017. Add to that the more than 27 other automotive brands supplying numerous diesel engines and over 115 different diesel 
models for the Medium- and Heavy-Duty truck, bus and RV markets, and it’s no wonder that diesel vehicle market share 
forecasts for the U.S. are on the rise. Numerous industry experts predict that diesel vehicles will make up to 10 to 15 percent 
of the U.S. market by the year 2025, up from just over 3 percent in 2014. Because diesels deliver up to 40 percent better real-
world fuel economy than their gasoline counterparts, more and more automakers are turning to diesel vehicle platforms to 
help them meet the aggressive new U.S. Corporate Average Fuel Economy (CAFE) standards, which mandate a fleet average 
of 54.5 MPG by 2025. 

Looking globally, Allen Schaeffer of the Diesel Technology Forum notes that, “International experts predict that diesel is on 
course to remain the number one global transportation fuel. The International Energy Agency recently stated that diesel is 
expected to overtake gasoline as the top transportation fuel used in passenger vehicles and in the freight transportation 
sector. One of the largest global oil producers, ExxonMobil, recently confirmed diesel’s expected dominance while also 
stating that much of the anticipated growth in diesel will also come from emerging economies.” And although natural gas will 
play a greater role as a transportation fuel by 2040, it will remain only a small share of the global transportation fuel mix, at 4 
percent by 2040, up from today’s 1 percent, according to ExxonMobil’s forecast.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT (Contd.)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT (Contd.)
The rate of displacement that corresponds to 10 percent displacement by 2010, 15 percent by 2015 and 20 percent by 2020. 
This constitutes a fairly aggressive rate of Biofuel production growth, but allows us to see the ‘upper bound’ impacts that 
would occur if Biofuel adoption were to be undertaken in earnest, in response to global energy price trends. No growth in 
biodiesel production was assumed outside of the European Union, since those countries currently dominate global production 
and do so with the help of agricultural support policies that would be hard for other emerging producers to follow suit and 
adopt in a likewise fashion, within the current WTO trade regime.

The model used for this analysis is the International Model for Policy Analysis of Agricultural Commodities and Trade 
(IMPACT), which has been used by the International Food Policy Research Institute (IFPRI) for projecting global food supply, 
food demand and food security to 2020 and beyond. The model contains three categories of commodity demand – food, 
feed and other use demand. The ‘other use’ demand category is expanded in this study to reflect the utilization of a particular 
commodity as Biofuel feedstock. The utilization level is determined by the projected level of Biofuel production for the 
particular commodity in question.

Biofuel Blending
Although biodiesel combustion emits CO2, this emission is defined as “carbon neutral” under the Intergovernmental Panel 
on Climate Change (IPCC) guidelines. Because this CO2 is deemed to have been absorbed and sequestered by plants 
during its growth, the net CO2 emission can be counted as zero when it is burned in the atmosphere. India’s Department of 
Biotechnology has estimated the extent of carbon emissions avoided through the blending of ethanol and biodiesel.

A quick, back-of-the-envelope calculation of the potential CERs, based on these figures, shows that if the targeted 20% 
blend of biodiesel is achieved by 2017, the GHG emissions avoided will amount to 83.87 million tones of CO2 equivalent 
(tCO2e) per year. If all these potential reductions are carried forward for CDM registration at an estimated rate of $5 per 
tCO2e, the projected revenue-earning potential per year from biodiesel is Rs18, 870.75 million.

FUTURE OUTLOOK:
Biofuel are considered among the most promising and economically viable alternative option, as they can be produced locally, 
within the country, and can be substituted for diesel and petrol to meet the transportation sector’s requirements. Then there 
wouldn’t be dependency on foreign oils, helping boost the country’s overall economy.

The Biofuel policy of India has an indicative target of 20 percent blending of bioethanol by 2017. India has 330 distilleries, 
which can produce more than 4 billion litres of rectified spirit (alcohol) per year in addition to 1.5 billion litres of fuel ethanol 
which could and should meet the requirement of 5% blending. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has deployed adequate Internal Control Systems (ICS) in place to ensure a smooth functioning of its business. 
The processes and the systems are reviewed constantly and changed to address the changing regulatory and business 
environment. The Control Systems provide a reasonable assurance of recording the transactions of its operations in all 
material aspects and of providing protection against misuse or loss of Company’s assets.

The existing internal control systems and their adequacy are frequently reviewed and improved upon to meet the changing 
business environment. The external auditors as well as the internal auditors periodically review the internal control systems 
policies and procedures for their adequacy effectiveness and continuous operation for addressing risk management and 
mitigation strategies.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT (Contd.)

l	Reservations 
l Cutomer service
l Wed support
l Revenue accounting  

audit and recovery
l Fare construction and 

fare filing

l	Finance and accounting
l	Human Resource management
l	Supply chain management

l	Market research
l	Business research
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Travel Emerging BusinessesBanking Financial 
Services and Insurance

CEO/CFO Certification
We, Kamal Kishor Poddar, Chief Financial Officer and Sunil Kumar Goyal, Whole Time Director & Chief Executive Officer of 
IKF Technologies Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

(a) We have reviewed the Financial Statement and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016 and that 
the best of our knowledge and belief we state that:

 (i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain any statement 
that may be misleading;

 (ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

(b)  To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 2015-16 which 
are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

(c)  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have evaluated the 
effectiveness of Internal Control Systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the 
Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operating of such Internal Controls, if any, of which we 
are aware and steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify the identified deficiencies.

(d)  We have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors:

 (i) Significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the year.

 (ii)   Significant changes in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes 
to the Financial statements; and

 (iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we become aware the involvement therein, if any, of the Management or an 
employee having a significant role in the Company’s Internal Control System over financial reporting.

Date : 2nd July, 2016 Kamal Kishor Poddar Sunil Kumar Goyal                           
Place : Kolkata CFO WTD & CEO
    DIN: 00550933
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of 

IKF TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements :

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IKF TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016 and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the 

year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements :

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and 
financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility :

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account 
the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards andmatters which are required to be included in the audit 
report under the provisions of the Act and theRules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includese valuating the appropriateness of the accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation ofthe financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the financial statements.

Opinion :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, theaforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted inIndia:

1. In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2016

2. In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the PROFIT for the year ended on that date; 

3. In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)
Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements :

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of subsection (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 [hereinafter referred to as the Order], we give in the 

Annexure ‘A’  a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order. 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 (e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 (f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the company and the 
operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘B’

 (g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

 (i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statement 
as referred to in Note No. 12(iii) to 12(v) to the financial statements.

 (ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which   there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

 (iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection fund by 
the Company.

1, British Indian Street For Mandawewala and Co.
1st Floor, Suite No. 110D, Chartered Accountants
Kolkat-700 069 Firm Registration No. 322130E

 CA Swati Singhal

Date: 30th April, 2016 Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 308308



IKF Technologies Limited

www.ikf-technologies.com70

The Annexure – ‘A’ referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report of even date to the members of IKF Technologies 
Limited on the accounts of the company for the year ended March 31, 2016.

1. a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details  

and situation of its fixed assets.

 b) All the assets have been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regular program of 

verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of company and the nature of its assets. 

No materials discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

the company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

2. The Company is a service company, primary rendering Telecom services, BPO services, Software services and other 

IT enable services. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, Paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not 

applicable to the Company.

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, LLP or other parties covered in 

the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly the provisions of Clause 3(iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are 

not applicable to the Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with the 

provision of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit from the public. 

Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(v) of the CARO 2016 are not applicable to the company.

6. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 

148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the services rendered by the company.

7. a) According to the records of the company, the company is not regular in depositing with appropriate 

authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income 

tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of  excise, value added tax, cess and 

other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given 

to us, there are undisputed amounts payable in respects of the aforesaid dues outstanding, as at 

31st March, 2016 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. Details 

are as follows:- 

Particulars Amount ( ` in ‘000 )

PF    2,293

Income Tax 28,188

Service Tax 60,533

Total 91,014
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 b) Details of dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, duty of Custom, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, duty of Excise, Value 
Added Tax and Cess, which have not been deposited as on 31stMarch, 2016 on account of dispute are 
given below :  

Sl. 
No.

Name of Statute Nature of Dues
Amount 

(` in ‘000)
Period

 Forum where 
dispute is 
pending

1
Income Tax Act, 

1961
Income Tax

7,649 A.Y. 2010-11
CIT (Appeal) – 1 

/ Kolkata
2 619 A.Y. 2012-13
3 2 A.Y.2013-14

8. According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any bank as at the balance sheet date.

9. Based on our audit procedures and on the information given by the management, we report that the company has not 
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans were 
applied for the purpose for which they are raised.

10. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on 
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Managerial Remuneration paid by the Company has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and 
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards.

14. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

15. According to the audit procedure performed and the information and explanations given to us by the management, the 
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

1, British Indian Street For Mandawewala and Co.
1st Floor, Suite No. 110D, Chartered Accountants
Kolkat-700 069 Firm Registration No. 322130E

 CA Swati Singhal

Date: 30th April, 2016 Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 308308
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Annexure-B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IKF Technologies Limited (“the Company”) as of 
31st March, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that :

(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management, override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2016, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

1, British Indian Street For Mandawewala and Co.
1st Floor, Suite No. 110D, Chartered Accountants
Kolkat-700 069 Firm Registration No. 322130E

 CA Swati Singhal

Date: 30th April, 2016 Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 308308
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

In terms of our report on even date

For Mandawewala & Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants      
(Firm’s Registration No. 322130E)  

   
CA. Swati Singhal   Sunil Kumar Goyal  N.V. Simhadri  
Partner   Whole Time Director & CEO Chairman   
Membership No. 308308    
 
1, British Indian Street,   Archana Saboo Kamal Kishor Poddar 
1st Floor, Suite No, 110D,  Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 
Kolkata - 700 069,

Dated : 30th April, 2016 
Place : Kolkata

( ` in ‘000)

Particulars Note No.
As at  

31st March, 2016 
( ` )

As at  
31st March, 2015 

( ` )
A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   

1. Shareholders’ Funds
 (a) Share Capital 2  430,581  430,581 
 (b) Reserves and Surplus 3 1,006,949 999,485 

     1,437,530 1,430,066 
2. Non-Current Liabilities
 (a) Long-Term Borrowings 4  8,939 475 
 (b) Deferred Tax Liabilities 1.B.2 5,488 3,410 
 (c) Other Long-Term Liabilities 5 335,391 97,692

     349,818 101,577 
3. Current Liabilities
 (a)  Short-Term Borrowings  6 75,109 35,962
 (b)  Trade Payables  7 62,675 65,628
 (c)  Other Current Liabilities  8 112,877 83,250

     250,661 184,840

 TOTAL  2,038,009 1,716,483 

B. ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets 
 (a)  Fixed Assets  
   -Tangible Assets  9 120,861 41,883
    -Capital Work in Progress   410,532 410,532
 (b)  Non-Current Investments  10 496,528 496,028
 (c)  Long-Term Loans and Advances  11 287,475 216,452

     1,315,396 1,164,895 
2. Current Assets
 (a)  Current Investments  12 11,085 10,831
 (b)  Trade Receivables  13 653,262 510,682
 (c)  Cash and Cash Equivalents  14 36,475 26,503
 (d)  Short-Term Loans and Advances  15 19,514 747
 (e)  Other Current Assets  16 2,277 2,825

     722,613 551,588 

 TOTAL  2,038,009 1,716,483

 Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the 1 
 Financial Statements  

 The accompanying notes are integral part of the  
 Financial Statements
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1. Revenue from Operations 17  614,787 470,987

2. Other Income 18 5,858 2,953

3. Total Revenue (1+2)  620,645 473,940 

4. Expenses

 (a)  Purchases of Stock In Trade  19 335,320 211,091
 (b)  Employee Benefits Expense  20 130,473 121,688
 (c)  Finance Costs  21 7,878 5,442
 (d)  Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  9 35,392 24,788
 (e)  Other Expenses  22 99,659 99,397

5. Total Expenses  608,722 462,406

6. Profit Before Tax (3-5)  11,923 11,534 

7. Tax Expenses

 (a)  Tax Expense for Current Year   2,381 4,485
 (b)  Tax adjustment for earlier years                                      -    1,018
 (c)  Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)   2,078 (5,411)

  Total Tax Expenses  4,459  92 

8. Profit for The Year (6-7)  7,464  11,442 

9. Earnings per share (of `1/- each) 1.B.7 
 Basic / Diluted  0.017  0.027 

 Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the 1 
 Financial Statements  

 The accompanying notes are integral part of the  
 Financial Statements

Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2016
( ` in ‘000)

  For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note No. 31st March, 2016  31st March, 2015
  ( ` ) ( ` )

In terms of our report on even date

For Mandawewala & Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants      
(Firm’s Registration No. 322130E)  

   
CA. Swati Singhal   Sunil Kumar Goyal  N.V. Simhadri  
Partner   Whole Time Director & CEO Chairman   
Membership No. 308308    
 
1, British Indian Street,   Archana Saboo Kamal Kishor Poddar 
1st Floor, Suite No, 110D,  Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 
Kolkata - 700 069,

Dated : 30th April, 2016 
Place : Kolkata
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A. Cash Flows form Operating Activities 
 Net Profit Before Tax and Extra Ordinary Items  11,923 11,534 
 Adjustment for :  
  Depreciation and Amortisation  35,392 24,788
  Profit/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets  (15) (21)
  Interest Expenses  7,715 5,174
  Extraordinary Items                               -    (9,155)
  Interest Income  (2,301) (2,312)
 Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes  52,714 30,008
 Add:
  Trade Receivables  (142,580) 1,061,696
  Long Term Loans & Advances  (71,023) (1,092)
  Short Term Loans and Advances  (18,766) 3,344
  Other Current Assets  547 (871) 
  Other Long Term Liabilities  237,700 (1,080,937)
  Trade Payables  (2,953) (38,803)
  Other Current Liabilities  29,626 16,938
  Short Term Provisions                               -    (1)
 Cash Generated From Operations  85,265 (9,718)
 Less : Tax Paid  2,381 5,503
 Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities  82,884 (15,221)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities   
  Purchase of Fixed Assets  (114,438) (3,483)
  Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets  82 9,343
  Interest Received  2,301 2,312
  Sale (Purchase) of Investment  (754) 263
 Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities  (112,809) 8,435
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities   
  Loans Borrowed (Net of Repayment)  47,612 10,065 
  Interest Paid  (7,715) (5,174)
 Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities  39,897 4,891
 Net increase in cash / cash equivalent during the year  9,973 (1,895)
 Cash and Cash equivalent at the beginning  26,502 28,398
 Cash and Cash equivalent at the end  36,475 26,503

 Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the 1 
 Financial Statements
 The accompanying notes are integral part of the  
 Financial Statements

Cash Flow Statement as at 31st March, 2016
( ` in ‘000)

  As at  As at
Particulars Note No. 31st March, 2016  31st March, 2015
  ( ` ) ( ` )

In terms of our report on even date

For Mandawewala & Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants      
(Firm’s Registration No. 322130E)  

   
CA. Swati Singhal   Sunil Kumar Goyal  N.V. Simhadri  
Partner   Whole Time Director & CEO Chairman   
Membership No. 308308    
 
1, British Indian Street,   Archana Saboo Kamal Kishor Poddar 
1st Floor, Suite No, 110D,  Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 
Kolkata - 700 069,

Dated : 30th April, 2016 
Place : Kolkata
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Note No. 1 : Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Basis of Preparation

 a) The financial statements of IKF Technologies Limited (the company) have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention on the accrual basis of accounting and comply with the mandatory Accounting Standards (AS) issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

 b) As required by Schedule III, the Company has classified assets and liabilities into current and non - current based 
on the operating cycle. An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalents. Since the normal operating cycle is not determinable, the operating cycle 
has been considered as 12 months and the Assets & Liabilities are segregated between Current & Non-Current on 

the basis of management’s decision.

2. Use of Estimates

 The preparation of financial statements requires management to make assumptions that affectthe reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

3. Revenue Recognition
 The company derives its revenues primarily from IT Enabled services, Telecom & Project, Business Process Outsourcing 

operations (BPO) and Bio Fuel division. Revenue from IT enabled services  and project comprises income from time 
and material and fixed contracts. Revenue from time and material contracts is recognized on the basis of software 
development and billable in accordance with the terms of contracts with clients. Maintenance revenue is recognized 
ratably over the period of the underlying maintenance agreement. Revenue from business  process outsourcing 
operations arises from both time based and unit priced client contracts. Such revenue is recognized on completion of 
the related services and is billable in accordance with the specific terms of the contracts with the clients. Rates & Taxes 

are accounted on Cash Basis

4. Fixed Assets

 Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation thereon. Direct costs are capitalized until 
assets are ready to be put to use. Fixed assets purchased in foreign Currency are recorded at the actual rupee cost 
incurred. Building represents cost of construction carried on structures taken on rent. Lease under which the company 
assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as “Finance Lease”. Lease Assets are 
capitalized at the fair value of the assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the 

lease, whichever is lower.

5. Depreciation
 Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Written down Value (WDV) Method. 

Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

6. Investments
 Investments in Indian / Foreign Subsidiary Company are stated at cost. Provisions for diminution in value of Investment 

are made only when such diminution is permanent in nature.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended  
31st March, 2016
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7. Foreign Currency Transaction
 (`. in ‘000)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2016 Year Ended 31.03.2015

Earning in Foreign Currency # 41,108 26,454

Expenditure in Foreign Currency # 
Revenue Expenditure

- 273

 #  On Receipt and Payment Basis

 Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transactions. Foreign 
Currency monetary assets and liabilities outstanding at the year end are translated at the exchange rate prevailing as on 
Balance Sheet Date. Difference in Exchange Rate arising on account of conversion/transaction of such assets/liabilities 

has been recognized in the accounts.

8. Provisions & Contingencies
 The company recognizes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of an obligating event that probably 

requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can  be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure of 
contingent liability is made when  there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not 

require an outflow of resources.

9. Impairment of Assets
 The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 

such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount  of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the 
asset or the recoverable amount the cash  generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, 

the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss.

10. Retirement Benefits & Other Employee Benefits   
 Defined Contribution Plans 

 Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund & Employees State Insurance Corporation has been recognized 

as expenses of the year. 

 Defined Benefit Plans 
 No provision for defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits is recognized in the books as no actuarial 

valuation has been done as on 31st March 2016.

11. Income Tax
 (a) Provision for Current Income Tax is made on the basis of relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as 

applicable to the financial year.

 (b)  Deferred Tax on timing differences is measured based on the Tax Rates and the Tax laws enacted or  
 substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only to the extent that 
there is virtual certainty with convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will  be available against 
which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 

12. Cash Flow Statement
 The Company adopts the Indirect Method in the preparation of Cash Flow Statement. For the purpose of Cash Flow 

Statement, Cash & Cash equivalents consist of Cash in hand, Bank Balances and Fixed Deposits with Bank.

13. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
 Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation 

as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an  outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not 
recognized but are disclosed in the notes.  Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial 
statement.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended  
31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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B NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. In the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realization of Current Assets, 
Loans & Advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in 
the Balance Sheet. The provision of all known liabilities is adequate and is neither excess nor short of the amount 
reasonable necessary.

2. In terms of Accounting Standard 22, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, there is a net Deferred 
Tax Liability of Rs.20,78,175/- which has been adjusted against  current year’s Profit. The Deferred Tax Liability as on 

31.03.2016 is Rs.54,88,000/-due to timing difference in Depreciable Assets.

3. As per Accounting Standard 15 “Employees Benefit”, the disclosures of Employees benefits as defined in 
the Accounting Standard are given below :

 Contribution to defined Contribution Plan, recognized as expense for the year are as under:
  (`. in ‘000)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Employer’s contribution to Provident Fund & 
Pension Fund

2,133 2,109

Expenditure in Foreign Currency # 
Revenue Expenditure

4,367 4,236

4. The Company has made an investment of 1,10,84,816.08 in a Firm in which the Company is a partner. The 
particulars of the Firm are as follows:

 (`. in ‘000)

Particulars Details

a) Name : M/s. R 2 R Seva

b) Name of the Partner Capital as on 31.03.2016 

(`)

Profit Sharing Ratio 

(%)

M/s. IKF Technologies Ltd 11,085 99%

Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal 509 1%

5. Related Party Disclosure in accordance with Accounting Standard 18 issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India:

 (a) Subsidiaries and entities where control exists :

  IKF Technologies PTY Ltd.

  IKF Telecom Inc.

  BIOFEL FZE

  IKF Green Fuel Ltd.

  R2R Seva

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended  
31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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 (b) Key Management Personnel:

  Key Executive Management Personnel of the Company represented on the Board:

  Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal Whole Time Director

  Non Executive / Independent Director on the Board:

  Mr. Pradeep Dutta Director (ceased w.e.f 16.10.2015)

  Mr. N.V. Simhadri Director

  Mrs. Nidhi Sharma Director

  Mr. Umesh Bhat Director

  Mr. Santosh Kumar Chowdary Director (ceased w.e.f 06.01.2016)

 (c) Significant transaction with related parties :
     (`. in ‘000)

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Investment in Subsidiaries 353580 353580

Salary to Executive/Whole Time Directors 1200 1200

Advance to Subsidiary 18021 19

6. Business Segments : 
 The Company is engaged primarily in providing services relating to Information Technology and Business 

Process Outsourcing (BPO) and there are no separate reportable segments as per Accounting Standard 17 
(Segment Reporting).

7. Earning Per Share :

  Calculation of Earning Per Share (Basic and Diluted) as required by AS – 20 :   

Particulars Units
Year ended on 

31.03.2016
Year ended on 

31.03.2015

Total No. of Shares Nos. 430581440 430581440

Profit (Loss) After Tax (`. in ‘000) ` 7,464 11,442

Earning Per Share ` 0.017 0.027

Nominal Value Per Share ` 1.00 1.00

8. The management has carried out an impairment test in accordance with the Accounting Standard 28 issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on all its Cash Generating Units (CGU). As there was no 
impairment, no provision has been made in the books.

9. Auditors Remuneration includes:

Particulars For the Year 2015-16 For the Year 2014-15

As Statutory Audit Fees 245 245

As Tax Audit Fees 25 25

Total 270 270

10. The Balances of Debtors, Creditors & Advances are subject to confirmation.

11. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding 
for more than 45 days as at 31st March, 2016. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended  
31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

12. Contingent Liabilities :                         

 i) The company has furnished a Performance Bank Guarantee of ` 200.00 Lakhs from UCO Bank Ltd. 
 in respect of the ISP License to the Department of Telecommunication (DOT).

 ii) The company has lien on FDR for ` 44.49 Lakhs of Corporation Bank to e-Mitra Society for Bikaner 
district & ` 7.39 Lakhs to Custom Department.

 iii)  The company has received a demand order from the Income Tax Department of ` 2.46 Cr out of which 
appeal has been filled for ` 76.49 Lakhs for the Assessment Year 2010-11 and for which the case is 
pending before CIT (Appeals) – I/Kolkata

  iv) The company has received a demand order from the Income Tax Department of ` 6.19 Lakhs for the 
Assessment Year 2012-13 for which the case is pending before CIT (Appeals) – I/Kolkata.

 v) The company has received a demand order from the Income Tax Department of  ` 2,140 for the 
Assessment Year 2013-14 for which the case is pending before CIT (Appeals) – I/Kolkata.

13. SEBI has issued an impugned order dated 20th April, 2015 to the Company and directed Company not to 
issue equity shares or any other instrument convertible into equity shares or any other security for a period 
of 10 years. Company has already undergone the prohibition for a period of approximately 4 years and 7 
months and is in the process of filing an appeal before Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) against the said 
impugned order of SEBI.

14. The figures of Jaipur Branch have been incorporated on the basis of the financial statement received from 
the branch.However, revenue for the month of March for RISL Project (a Government Project) could not be 
recognized due to delay in information provided by the project officials.

15. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary, to confirm to the current 
period presentation.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended  
31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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Particulars
As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

No. of shares ( ` ) No. of shares ( ` )

Note 2 : Share Capital
(a) Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up  

Share Capital 
Authorised 

 Equity shares of  `1 each with voting rights 1,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000

   1,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000
 Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-Up 
 Equity shares of  `1 each with voting rights 430,581,440  430,581  430,581,440  430,581

    430,581,440  430,581  430,581,440 430,581

(b) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars Opening 
Balance

Fresh issue
Closing 
Balance

 Equity shares with voting rights   
 Year ended 31st March, 2016    
  - Number of shares  430,581,440  –   430,581,440 
  - Amount (`)  430,581  – 430,581 

 Year ended 31st March, 2015     
 - Number of shares  430,581,440  –    430,581,440 

 - Amount (`)  430,581  – 430,581

(c) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:    
 The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 

to one vote per share.    
 In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 

company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 
by the shareholders.    

(d) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 
As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Number % age Number % age

  None of the shareholder of the Company is  _ _ _ _ 
holding more than 5% shares.

Note - 3 : Reserves and Surplus

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2016 

( ` )
As at 31st March, 2015 

( ` )

 (a) Securities Premium Account  
  Opening Balance  837,512  837,512 

  Closing Balance  837,512   837,512 

 (b) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit & Loss 
  Opening Balance  161,973  159,686 
  Less: Amount adjusted due to change in depreciation - (9,155)
  Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year 7,464 11,442

  Closing Balance  169,437 161,973 

   Grand Total  (a+b) 1,006,949 999,485 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended  
31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2016 

( ` )
As at 31st March, 2015 

( ` )

Note - 4 : Long-Term Borrowings 

 (a) Car Loan  
   - Secured against Car  33 475

 (b) Term Loan  

    - Secured against property & FD 8,906                           -   

    Total 8,939 475

Note - 5 : Other Long-Term Liabilities 

  Trade Payables  
   - Sundry Creditors  335,391 97,692

    Total 335,391 97,692

Note - 6 : Short-Term Borrowings 

 (a) Loans repayable on Demand from Banks  
   - Cash Credit from UCO Bank-Secured 69,935 35,469

 (b) Car Loan  
   - Secured against Car  441 493

 (c) Term Loan from UCO Bank  

   - Secured against Car  4,733                           -   

    Total 75,109 35,962

Note - 6.1 : Details of security for the secured 
              short-term borrowings 

 (i) Cash Credit Account from bank is secured on 
hypothecation of Trade Receivables, Director’s 
Property, Land & Building of the Company and  
Personal Guarantees of the Directors.

Note - 7 : Trade Payables 

  Sundry Creditors  62,675 65,628

    Total 62,675 65,628

Note - 8 : Other Current Liabilities 

 (a) Statutory Liabilities  87,436 61,435
 (b) Liability for Expenses  15,966 11,719
 (c) Advances from Party  1,503 1,011
 (d) Other Liabilities  7,972 4,818
 (e) Bank Overdraft due to Reconciliation                            -    4,267
    Total 112,877 83,250

( `. in ‘000)

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended  
31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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Particulars
As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Units ( ` ) Units ( ` )

Note - 10 : Non- Current Investments 

 Non Trade Investments 
 Investment in Equty Instruments
 (a) In Subsidiaries  
   IKF Technologies (Pty) Ltd 100 43,450 100 43,450
   IKF Telecom Inc. 1,500 65 1,500 65
   IKF Greenfuel Ltd. 30,950,696 309,507 30,950,696 309,507
   Biofel FZE 1 558 1 558

 (b) In Others
   - IKF Insurance Marketing Ltd.(` 10/- each) 25,000 250 25,000 250
   ( Formerly known as IKF Salampuria Agrotech Ltd.)
   (Unquoted, fully paid up shares)
   - Naya Raipur Electronics Manufacturing Cluster 50,000 500  -     -    

Pvt. Ltd..(` 10/- each) 
(Fully paid up shares)

   - Virtual Global Education Ltd. (` 1/- each) 77,500,000 142,198 77,500,000 142,198 
(Quoted, fully paid up shares)

    Total  496,528  496,028

   Aggregate market value of Quoted Investments  553,350   177,125

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2016 

( ` )
As at 31st March, 2015 

( ` )

Note - 11 : Long-Term Loans and Advances 
 (a) Advance Income Tax  48,288 24,015 
   ` 407.92 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2016 and
   ` 384.11 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2015)

 (b) Security Deposit  17,299 16,029 

 (c) Advances to Parties 
- Unsecured, Considered Good  221,888 176,408

       Total 287,475 216,452

Note - 12 : Current Investments 
   Investment in Partnership Firm 

- R 2 R Seva  11,085  10,831 

        11,085  10,831 

Note - 13 : Trade Receivables 
 (a) Trade receivables outstanding for a period 479,535 350,595 

exceeding six months from the date they were 
due for payment.

 (b) Other Trade Receivables 
- Unsecured, Considered Good  173,727 160,087 

       Total 653,262 510,682 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended  
31st March, 2016 (Contd.)

( `. in ‘000)
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Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2016 

( ` )
As at 31st March, 2015 

( ` )

Note - 14 : Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 (a) Cash in Hand (As Certified by Management) 2,808 197 
 (b) Balances with Banks 

- In Current Accounts  421 190
 (c) Other Bank Balances 

- In Fixed Deposit 
  Maturity less than 12 months  30,222 25,166  
  Maturity more than 12 months  3,024 950 

       Total 36,475 26,503 

Note - 15 : Short-Term Loans and Advances
   Advances to Parties 

- Unsecured, Considered Good  19,514 747 

    Total 19,514 747 

Note - 16 : Other Current Assets
 (a) Advances to Creditors  487 316 
 (b) Balance with Department of telecommunication 1,300 1,300
 (c) Prepaid Expenses  490 1,209

     2,277 2,825

Note - 17 : Revenue from Operations
 (a) BPO Income  192,171 202,615
 (b) Medical Transcription Income                                  -    114
 (c) Bandwidth & VOIP Sales  41,376 51,074
 (d) Software Services/Consultancy & IT Income 128,561 40,759
 (e) Software Sales  251,932 161,930
 (f) Other Sales   405 13,238
 (g) Kiosk Registration Charges  342 1,257

    Total 614,787 470,987 

Note - 18 : Other Income
 (a) Interest Income:  
    - Interest on FDR  2,301 2,312
 (b) Rent Received  300 240
 (c) Income from Partnership Firm R2R Seva 24 24
 (d) Fluctuation in Foreign Currency  138                                 -   
 (e) Miscellaneous Income                                  -    32
 (f) Commission Income  3,080 324
 (g) Profit on sale of Fixed Assets  15 21

    Total 5,858 2,953

Note - 19 : Purchases of Stock in Trade
 (a) Bandwidth & VIOP Purchases  35,189 44,670
 (b) Purchase of Data  101                                 -   
 (c) Software Purchases  299,625 153,879
 (d) Other Purchase  405 12,542

    Total  335,320 211,091

( `. in ‘000)

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended  
31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2016 

( ` )
As at 31st March, 2015 

( ` )

Note - 20 : Employee Benefits Expense
 (a) Salaries and Allowances  120,564 112,301
 (b) Directors’ Salary  1,200 1,200
 (c) Staff Welfare Expenses   2,218 1,842
 (d) EPF/ESI  6,491 6,345

     Total 130,473 121,688 

Note - 21 : Finance Costs
 (a) Bank Charges  112 268
 (b) Interest on Cash Credit  7,620 5,004
 (c) Interest on Car Loan   76 141
 (d) Interest on Term Loan  51                                 -   
 (e) Other Interest  19 29

    Total 7,878 5,442

Note - 22 : Other Expenses
 Electricity Charges  16,982 18,700
 Rent  31,614 27,981
 Repairs and Maintenance  
  - Others  2,803 4,162 
 Insurance  124 47
 Telephone Charges  22,673 18,927
 Travelling and Conveyance   1,386 1,644
 Printing and Stationery  1,378 1,297
 Business Promotion  1,243 1,392
 Legal and Professional Charges  2,074 7,168
 Rates and Taxes  1,353 1,491
 Donation                                -    21
 Computer Hire Charges  5,487 5,621
 Fluctuation in Foreign Currency                                -    139
 General Expenses  12,272 10,537
 Auditors Remuneration   
  - As Audit Fees  270 270

     99,659 99,397

    Grand Total 99,659 99,397

( `. in ‘000)

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended  
31st March, 2016 (Contd.)

In terms of our report on even date

For Mandawewala & Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants      
(Firm’s Registration No. 322130E)  

   
CA. Swati Singhal   Sunil Kumar Goyal  N.V. Simhadri  
Partner   Whole Time Director & CEO Chairman   
Membership No. 308308    
 
1, British Indian Street,   Kamal Kishor Poddar Archana Saboo  
1st Floor, Suite No, 110D,  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
Kolkata - 700 069,

Dated : 30th April, 2016 
Place : Kolkata
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of 

IKF TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements (the “Consolidated Financial Statements) of 
IKF TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (“the Company”), and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together 
referred to as “the group”), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016 and the consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss and consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements 
of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and  fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 

presentation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. While conducting 
the audit we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 
by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements.

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary companies, whose financial statements reflect total Assets of Rs. 
3,49,16,919.51 as at 31st March, 2016 and total revenues of Rs.19,53,41,864.73 for the year then ended and cash flows 
amounting to Rs (39,21,943.86) for the year then ended. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors 
except the financial statements of Biofuel FZE and IKF Telecom Inc. which are unaudited (As explained to us, there is no 
mandatory requirement of audit at the place of incorporation of the Company), whose reports have been furnished to us, 



www.ikf-technologies.com 89

17th Annual Report 2015-16

and our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely on the 
reports of the other auditors and management’s certification.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

1. In the case of the consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2016;

2. In the case of the consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the PROFIT for the year ended on that date; 

3. In the case of consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.  As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books 
and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding company as on 31st March, 
2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding company and the reports of the other statutory 
auditors of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group’s Company are disqualified as on 31st 
March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the company and the 
operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘A’.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:
(i) The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial position in its 

consolidated financial statement as referred to in Note No. 13(iii) to 13(v) to the consolidated financial 
statements.

(ii) The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection fund 

by the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Companies.  

1, British Indian Street For Mandawewala and Co.
1st Floor, Suite No. 110D, Chartered Accountants
Kolkat-700 069 Firm Registration No. 322130E

 CA Swati Singhal
Date: 30th April, 2016 Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No. 308308
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Annexure-A to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub Section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IKF Technologies Limited (“the Holding Company”) 
and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India as of 31st March, 2016 in conjunction with our 

audit of financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated 
in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of 
their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management, override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
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are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India have, in 

all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2016, based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants Of India.

Other Matters
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to 1 (One) subsidiary company, which is company incorporated in 

India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such company incorporated in India.

1, British Indian Street For Mandawewala and Co.
1st Floor, Suite No. 110D, Chartered Accountants
Kolkat-700 069 Firm Registration No. 322130E

 CA Swati Singhal
Date: 30th April, 2016 Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No. 308308
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( ` in ‘000)

Particulars Note No.
As at  

31st March, 2016 
( ` )

As at  
31st March, 2015 

( ` )
A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   

1. Shareholders’ Fund
 (a) Share Capital 2                         430,581                      430,581 
 (b) Reserves and Surplus 3                     1,039,790                   2,550,271

                          1,470,371  2,980,852
2. Non-Current Liabilities
 (a) Long-Term Borrowings 4                            8,939                             475   
 (b) Deferred Tax Liabilities 1.B.3                            5,488                          3,410   
 (c) Other Long-Term Liabilities 5                        335,391                        97,691 
                            349,818                      101,576   
3. Current Liabilities
 (a) Short-Term Borrowings 6                          75,109                        35,962   
 (b) Trade Payables 7                          64,351                      224,857   
 (c) Other Current Liabilities 8 113,277 83,371

     252,737   344,190 

 TOTAL   2,072,926   3,426,618   

B. ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets 
 (a)  Fixed Assets 9 
  -Tangible Assets   293,941   615,168  
  -Capital Work in Progress   410,532   410,532 
 (b) Non-Current Investments 10  142,948   142,448  
 (c) Long-Term Loans and Advances 11  467,249   379,772  
      1,314,670   1,547,920  
2. Current Assets
 (a) Current Investments 12  11,085   558,432   
 (b) Inventories  13   -     156,141  
 (c) Trade Receivables  14   704,823   1,128,045  
 (d) Cash and Cash Equivalents  15   38,578   32,527  
 (e) Short-Term Loans and Advances  16   1,493   728  
 (f) Other Current Assets  17   2,277   2,825 

      758,256   1,878,698   

 TOTAL   2,072,926   3,426,618  

 Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the 1 
 Financial Statements  

 The accompanying notes are integral part of the  
 Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

In terms of our report on even date

For Mandawewala & Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants      
(Firm’s Registration No. 322130E)  

   
CA. Swati Singhal   Sunil Kumar Goyal  N.V. Simhadri  
Partner   Whole Time Director & CEO Chairman   
Membership No. 308308    
 
1, British Indian Street,   Archana Saboo Kamal Kishor Poddar 
1st Floor, Suite No, 110D,  Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 
Kolkata - 700 069,

Dated : 30th April, 2016 
Place : Kolkata
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(`. in ‘000)

Particulars Note No.
For the year ended 
31st March, 2016 

( ` )

For the year ended 
31st March, 2015 

( ` )
1. Revenue from Operations 18  810,129   844,579  

2. Other Income 19  5,858   3,247  

3. Total Revenue (1+2)   815,987   847,826   

4. Expenses
 (a) Purchases of Stock In Trade 20   510,578   468,618 
 (b) Employee Benefits Expense 21   141,473   147,579 
 (c) Finance Costs 22   7,886   5,462 
 (d) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 9   35,392   73,448 
 (e) Other Expenses 23   105,535   123,107  

5. Total Expenses   800,864   818,214  

6. Profit Before Tax (3-5)   15,123   29,612   

7. Tax Expenses
 (a) Tax Expense for Current Year   2,450   4,818   
 (b)  Tax adjustment for earlier years    -     1,018   
 (c) Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)   2,078   (5,382)

      4,528   454   

8. Profit for The Year (6-7)   10,595   29,158  

9. Earnings per share (of `1/- each) 1.B.8 
 Basic / Diluted  0.02 0.07

 Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the 1 
 Financial Statements  

 The accompanying notes are integral part of the  
 Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year Ended 31st March, 2016

In terms of our report on even date

For Mandawewala & Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants      
(Firm’s Registration No. 322130E)  

   
CA. Swati Singhal   Sunil Kumar Goyal  N.V. Simhadri  
Partner   Whole Time Director & CEO Chairman   
Membership No. 308308    
 
1, British Indian Street,   Archana Saboo Kamal Kishor Poddar 
1st Floor, Suite No, 110D,  Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 
Kolkata - 700 069,

Dated : 30th April, 2016 
Place : Kolkata
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In terms of our report on even date

For Mandawewala & Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants      
(Firm’s Registration No. 322130E)  

   
CA. Swati Singhal   Sunil Kumar Goyal  N.V. Simhadri  
Partner   Whole Time Director & CEO Chairman   
Membership No. 308308    
 
1, British Indian Street,   Archana Saboo Kamal Kishor Poddar 
1st Floor, Suite No, 110D,  Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 
Kolkata - 700 069,

Dated : 30th April, 2016 
Place : Kolkata

(`. in ‘000)

Particulars Note No.
As at  

31st March, 2016 
( ` )

As at  
31st March, 2015 

( ` )
A. Cash Flows form Operating Activities 
 Net Profit Before Tax and Extra Ordinary Items   15,124   29,612   
 Adjustment for :  

  Depreciation and Amortisation   35,392   73,448   
  Profit / Loss on sale of Fixed Assets   (15)  (21)  
  Interest Expenses   7,715   5,174   
  Extraordinary Items   -     (9,155) 
  Interest Income   (2,301)  (2,312) 
 Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes   55,915   96,746 
 Add:
  Trade Receivables   423,221   941,221  
  Long Term Loans & Advances   (87,477)  31,012 
  Short Term Loans and Advances   (765)  3,363  
  Other Current Assets   548   (870)    
  Inventories   156,141   (1,793) 
  Other Long Term Liabilities   237,699   (1,080,936) 
  Trade Payables   (160,506)  68,293  
  Other Current Liabilities   29,906   17,058  
  Short Term Provisions   -     (1)
 Cash Generated From Operations   654,682   74,093  

 Less : Tax Paid   2,450   5,836  
 Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities   652,232   68,256  

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities   
  Purchase of Fixed Assets   (117,453)  (40,709)
  Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets   403,303   9,378  
  Interest Received   2,301   2,312   
  Sale (Purchase) of Investment   546,847   58,307 
 Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities   834,998   29,288 

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities   
  Loans Borrowed (Net of Repayment)   47,612   10,065   
  Decrease in reserves   (1,521,076)  (104,042) 
  Interest Paid   (7,715)  (5,174)
 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities   (1,481,179)  (99,151)
 Net increase in cash / cash equivalent during the year   6,051   (1,607)
 Cash and Cash equivalent at the beginning   32,527   34,134 

 Cash and Cash equivalent at the end   38,578   32,527 
 Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the  1
 Financial Statements
 (The accompaning notes are integral part of the  
 Financial Statements)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement as at 31st March, 2016
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Note1 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Basis of Preparation

  a)  The consolidated financial statements of IKF Technologies Limited (the company) and its subsidiaries 
collectively referred to as the IKF Group or “the Group” has been prepared under the historical cost 
convention on the accrual basis of accounting and comply with the mandatory Accounting Standards 
(AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 b) As required by schedule III, the Company has classified assets and liabilities into current and non - 
current based on the operating cycle. An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets 
for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Since the normal operating cycle is 
not determinable, the operating cycle has been considered as 12 months and the Assets & Liabilities 
are segregated between Current & Non Current on the basis of management’s decision.

2. Basis of Consolidation

 The consolidated financial statement includes the financial statements of IKF Technologies Limited and all 
its subsidiaries, which are more than 50% owned or controlled. Please refer to Note B1 for the description 
of the Group.

 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures for the preparation 
and presentation of consolidated financial statements as laid down under AS 21 prescribed by the ICAI.

 The financial statements of the parent company and the subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-
line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after 
eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions resulting unrealized profits or losses.

 In case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign operations, revenue items are consolidated at the 
average rate. All the assets and liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year.

 The financial statements of the subsidiary companies have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standard. The difference in accounting policies between the company and its subsidiary 
is not material and there are no significant inter company transactions till 31st March 2016.

3. Use of estimates

 The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and 
future periods.

4. Revenue Recognition

  The Group derives its revenues primarily from IT Enabled services, Telecom& Projects, Business process 
outsourcing operations (BPO) and Bio Fuel division. Revenue from IT enabled services and project comprises 
income from time and material and fixed contracts. Revenue from time and material contracts is recognized 
on the basis of software development and billable in accordance with the terms of contracts with clients.
Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the period of the underlying maintenance agreement.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016
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Revenue from business process outsourcing operations arises from both time based and unit priced client 
contracts. Such revenue is recognized on completion of the related services and is billable in accordance 
with the specific terms of the contracts with the clients. Rates & Taxes are accounted for on Cash basis.

5. Fixed Assets

 Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation thereon. Direct costs are 
capitalized until assets are ready to be put to use. Fixed assets purchased in foreign currency are recorded 
at the actual rupee cost incurred. Building represents cost of construction carried on structures taken on 
rent. Lease under which the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
classified as “Finance Lease”. Lease Assets are capitalized at the fair value of the assets or the present 
value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, which is lower.

6. Depreciation

 Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Written down Value 
(WDV) Method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in schedule II to 
the Companies Act, 2013.

7. Investments

 Investments in Indian / Foreign Subsidiary Company are stated at cost. Provisions for diminution in value of 
Investments are made only when such diminution is permanent in nature.  

8. Foreign currency Transaction

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2016

Year Ended 
31.03.2015

Earning in Foreign Currency # 41,108 26,454

Expenditure in Foreign Currency # 
Revenue Expenditure

- 273

 #  On Receipt and Payment Basis 

 Foreign currency transactions are recorded at rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respective 
transaction.

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated 
at the exchange rates on that date.

 The financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries being non-integral operations in terms of para 24 of AS-
11 are translated into Indian rupees as follows:

 a)    Income and Expenses items are translated at the average rate.

 b)   Assets and Liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary are traslated at the closing rate.

9. Provisions & Contingencies

 The group recognizes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of an obligating event 
that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present 

obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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10. Impairment of assets

 The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be 

impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such 

recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset 

belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount and the 

reduction is treated as an impairment loss.

11. Earnings per share

The Earning per share (basic & diluted) is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the Equity 

shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

12. Retirement Benefits & Other Employee Benefits

 Defined Contribution Plans

 Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund & Employees State Insurance Corporation has been recognized 

as expenses of the year.

 Defined Benefit Plans

 No provision for defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits is recognized in the books as 

no actuarial valuation has been done as on 31st March 2016.

13. Income Tax

 a) Provision for Current Income Tax is made on the basis of relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 

1961 as applicable to financial year.

 b) Deferred Tax on timing differences is measured based on the Tax Rates and the Tax laws enacted or 

substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only to the 

extent that there is virtual certainty with convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will 

be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized

14. Cash Flow Statement

 The group adopts the Indirect Method in the preparation of Cash Flow Statement. For the purpose of Cash 

Flow Statement, Cash & Cash equivalent consist of Cash in hand, Bank Balances and Fixed Deposits with 

banks.

15. Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

 Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present 

obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent 
Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor 
disclosed in the financial statement.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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B. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Description of the Group

 IKF Technologies Limited is registered under the Indian Companies Act, 2013 with its Registered Office in 
Kolkata. This is the flagship company of the group and is listed on the principal stock exchanges of India.

  List of the subsidiaries with present holding

Subsidiaries                        Country of incorporation % holding

IKF Technologies Pty. Ltd. a Company organized under the laws of 
South Africa

100%

IKF Green Fuel Ltd. a Company incorporated under the 
Companies Act. 1956

99.93%

IKF Telecom Inc. a Company organized under the laws of 
Delaware, U.S.A

100%

Biofel FZE a Company organized under Hamriyah Free 
Zone Authority, UAE

100%

2. In the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realization of Current 
Assets, Loans & Advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount at which 
they are stated in the Balance Sheet. The provision of all known liabilities is adequate and is neither excess 
nor short of the amount reasonable necessary.

3. In terms of Accounting Standard 22, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, for Current 

Year, there is a net Deferred Tax Asset of ` 20.78 Lakhs which has been adjusted against current year’s 

Profit. The Deferred Tax Liability as on 31.03.2016 is ` 54.88 Lakhs due to timing difference in Depreciable 

Assets.

4. As per Accounting Standard 15 “Employees Benefit”, the disclosures of Employees benefits as defined in 
the Accounting ‘Standard are given below :

 Contribution to defined Contribution Plan, recognized as expense for the year are as under:

(`. in ‘000)

Particulars                        2015-16 2014-15

Employer’s contribution to Provident Fund & 
pension Fund

2,133 2,109

Employer’s contribution to ESI 4,367 4,236

5. The Company has made an investment of  `110.85 Lakhs in a Firm in which the Company is a partner. The 

particulars of the Firm is as follows:

Particulars Details

a) Name: M/s. R 2 R Seva

b) Name of the Partner Capital as on 31.03.2016

(`)

Profit Sharing Ratio

(%)

M/s. IKF Technologies Ltd 11,085 99%

Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal 509 1%

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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6. Related Party Disclosure in accordance with Accounting Standards 18 issued by the Institute of   

Chartered Accountants of India :

 (a) Subsidiaries and entities where control exists :

   IKF Technologies PTY Ltd.

   IKF Telecom Inc.

   BIOFEL FZE

   IKF Green Fuel Ltd.

   R2R Seva

 (b) Key Management Personnel:

  Key Executive Management Personnel of the Company represented on the Board:

  Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal Whole Time Director

  Non Executive / Independent Director on the Board:

  Mr. Pradeep Dutta Director (ceased w.e.f 16.10.2015)

  Mr. N.V. Simhadri Director

  Mrs. Nidhi Sharma Director

  Mr. Umesh Bhat Director

  Mr. Santosh Kumar Chowdary Director (ceased w.e.f 06.01.2016)

 (c) Significant transaction with related party :   (`. in ‘000)

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Investment in Subsidiaries 3,53,580 3,53,580

Salary to Executive/Whole Time Directors 1,200 1,200

Advance to Subsidiary 18,021 19

7. Business Segments :   
  The Company is engaged primarily in providing services relating to Information Technology and 

 Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) and there are no separate reportable segments as per Accounting 
 Standard 17 (Segment Reporting).

8. Earnings Per Share :
  Calculation of Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) as required by AS – 20 :  

Particulars Units Year Ended on

31.03.2016

Year Ended on

31.03.2015

Total No. of Shares Nos. 430581440 430581440

Profit (Loss) After Tax ` 10,595 29,158

Earning Per Share (`. in ‘000) ` 0.02 0.07

Nominal Value Per Share ` 1.00 1.00

9. The management has carried out an impairment test in accordance with the Accounting Standard 28 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on all its cash generating units (CGU). As there 
was no impairment, no provision has been made in the books.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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10. Auditors Remuneration includes :      (`. in ‘000)

Particulars For the Year 2015-16 For the Year 2014-15

As Statutory Audit Fees 301 306
As Tax Audit Fees 29 29
Total 330 335

11. The Balances of Debtors, Creditors & Advances are subject to confirmation.

12. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are 
outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31st March, 2016. This information as required to be disclosed 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent 
such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

13. Contingent Liabilities:                         

 i) The company has furnished a Performance Bank Guarantee of ` 200.00 Lakhs from UCO Bank Ltd. 
in respect of the ISP License to the Department of Telecommunication (DOT).

 ii) The company has lien on FDR for ` 44.49 Lakhs of Corporation Bank to e-Mitra Society for Bikaner 
district & Rs.7.39 Lakhs to Custom Department.

 iii)  The company has received a demand order from the Income Tax Department of Rs. 2.46 Cr out of 
which appeal has been filled for Rs. 76.49Lakhs for the Assessment Year 2010-11 and for which the 
case is pending before CIT (Appeals) – I/Kolkata.

  iv) The company has received a demand order from the Income Tax Department of Rs. 6.19 Lakhs for the 
Assessment Year 2012-13 for which the case is pending before CIT (Appeals) – I/Kolkata.

 v) The company has received a demand order from the Income Tax Department of Rs. 2,140 for the 
Assessment Year 2013-14 for which the case is pending before CIT (Appeals) – I/Kolkata.

14. SEBI has issued an impugned order dated 20th April, 2015 to the Company and directed Company not to  
issue equity shares or any other instrument convertible into equity shares or any other security for a period 
of 10 years. Company has already undergone the prohibition for a period of approximately 4 years and 7 
months and is in the process of filing an appeal before Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) against the said 
impugned order of SEBI.

15. There is no mandatory requirement of Financial Statements to be audited in for Biofel FZE and IKF Telecom 
Inc.As a consequence, the figures of Biofel FZE and IKF Telecom Inc. considered for consolidation are 
unaudited and the same has been certified by management.

16. The figures of Jaipur Branch have been incorporated on the basis of the financial statement received    from 
the branch. However, revenue for the month of March for RISL Project (a Government Project) could not be 
recognized due to delay in information provided by the project officials.

17. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary, to confirm to the current 
  period presentation.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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18.  Additional information, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises 
consolidated as Subsidiary.

Name of the Enterprise                        

Net Assets 
(Total Assets - Total Liabilities)

Share in Profit or Loss

As % of 
Consolidated 
Net Assets

Amount (`)
As % of 

Consolidated 
Profit or Loss

Amount (`)

Parent 73.72 1,083,950 70.45 7,464

Subsidiaries     

Indian     
1.IKF Green Fuel Private Limited 22.80 335,258 10.47 1,109
     
Foreign     
1 IKF Technologies (Pty) Limited 3.43 50,433 32.47 3,440
2 IKF Biofel FZE 0.04 609 (13.38) (1,418)
3 IKF Telecom INC 0.01 122 0.00 0
     
Minority Interests in all 
subsidiaries

NIL NIL NIL NIL

     
TOTAL 100.00 1,470,371 100.00 10,595

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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Particulars
As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

No. of shares ( ` ) No. of shares ( ` )

Note 2 : Share Capital
(a) Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up  

Share Capital 
Authorised 

 Equity shares of  `1 each with voting rights 1,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000

   1,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000
 Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-Up 
 Equity shares of  `1 each with voting rights 430,581,440  430,581  430,581,440  430,581

    430,581,440  430,581  430,581,440 430,581

(b) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars Opening 
Balance

Fresh issue
Closing 
Balance

 Equity shares with voting rights   
 Year ended 31st March, 2016    
  - Number of shares  430,581,440  –   430,581,440 
  - Amount (`)  430,581  – 430,581 

 Year ended 31st March, 2015     
 - Number of shares  430,581,440  –    430,581,440 

 - Amount (`)  430,581  – 430,581

(c) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:    
 The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 

to one vote per share.    
 In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 

company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 
by the shareholders.    

(d) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 
As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Number % age Number % age

  None of the shareholder of the Company is  _ _ _ _ 
holding more than 5% shares.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2016 

( ` )
As at 31st March, 2015 

( ` )

Note - 3 : Reserves and Surplus 
 (a) Capital Reserve  
  Opening Balance  (126,551)  (22,509) 

Add/Less : During the year (1,521,076)  (104,042) 

  Closing Balance  (1,647,627)  (126,551) 

 (b) Securities Premium Account 
  Opening Balance  837,512   837,512  

  Closing Balance  837,512   837,512 

 (c) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit & Loss 

  Opening Balance  1,839,310   1,819,307 
Less: Amount adjusted due to change in depreciation -   (9,155) 
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year 10,595   29,158    

  Closing Balance  1,849,905   1,839,310

   Grand Total  ( a+b+c ) 1,039,790   2,550,271  

Note - 4 : Long-Term Borrowings 

 (a) Car Loan  
   - Secured against Car  33 475

 (b) Term Loan  

    - Secured against property & FD 8,906                           -   

    Total 8,939 475

Note - 5 : Other Long-Term Liabilities 

 (a) Trade Payables  
   - Sundry Creditors  335,391 97,692

    Total 335,391 97,692

Note - 6 : Short-Term Borrowings 

 (a) Loans repayable on Demand from Banks  
   - Cash Credit from UCO Bank-Secured 69,935 35,469

 (b) Car Loan  
   - Secured against Car  441 493

 (c) Term Loan from UCO Bank  

   - Secured against Car  4,733                           -   

    Total 75,109 35,962

Note - 6.1 : Details of security for the secured 
              short-term borrowings 

 (i) Cash Credit Account from bank is secured on 
hypothecation of Trade Receivables, Director’s 
Property, Land & Building of the Company and  
Personal Guarantees of the Directors.

Note - 7 : Trade Payables 

  Sundry Creditors   64,351   224,857 

    Total  64,351   224,857 

( `. in ‘000)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2016 

( ` )
As at 31st March, 2015 

( ` )

Note - 8 : Other Current Liabilities 

 (a) Statutory Liabilities  87,436 61,435
 (b) Liability for Expenses  15,966 11,719
 (c) Advances from Party  1,903 1,012
 (d) Other Liabilities  7,972 4,938
 (e) Bank Overdraft due to Reconciliation                            -    4,267

     Total 113,277 83,371

Note - 9 : Given in Separate Sheet annexed.

( `. in ‘000)
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Particulars
As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Units ( ` ) Units ( ` )

Note - 10 : Non- Current Investments 
 Non Trade Investments 
 Investment in Equty Instruments
  (a) In Others
   - IKF Insurance Marketing Ltd.(` 10/- each) 25,000 250 25,000 250
     (Formerly known as IKF Salampuria Agrotech Ltd.)
     (Unquoted, fully paid up shares)
   - Naya Raipur Electronics Manufacturing Cluster 50,000 500  -     -    

Pvt. Ltd.(` 10/- each) (Fully paid up shares)
   - Virtual Global Education Ltd. (` 1/- each) 77,500,000 142,198 77,500,000 142,198 

(Quoted, fully paid up shares)
      Total   142,948    142,448 

   Aggregate market value of Quoted Investments  553,350   771,125

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2016 

( ` )
As at 31st March, 2015 

( ` )

Note - 11 : Long-Term Loans and Advances 

 (a) Advance Income Tax   48,546   23,719  
   (Net of Provision for Income Tax 

` 408.53 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2016 and 
` 377.96 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2015)

 (b) Security Deposit   17,439   16,169  

 (c) Advances to Parties 
- Unsecured, Considered Good   401,212   339,832  
- Related Parties  52   52 

       Total  467,249   379,772 

Note - 12 : Current Investments 
   Investment in Partnership Firm 

- R 2 R Seva  11,085  10,831 
- Others   -     547,601 

       Total  11,085   558,432  

Note - 13 : Inventories 
 (a)  Finished Goods    -     156,141

       Total   -     156,141 

Note - 14 : Trade Receivables   

 (a) Trade receivables outstanding for a period 
exceeding six months from the date they 
were due for payment.     531,096   350,595 

  (b) Other Trade Receivables 
- Unsecured, Considered Good  173,727 777,450 

       Total 704,823 1,128,045 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)

( `. in ‘000)
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Particulars For the year ended 
 31st March, 2016

For the year ended 
31st March, 2015

Note - 15 : Cash and Cash Equivalents

 (a) Cash in Hand (As Certified by Management)  4,819   6,154  
 (b) Balances with Banks 

- In Current Accounts   513   258 
 (c) Other Bank Balances 

- In Fixed Deposit 
  Maturity less than 12 months  30,222 25,166  
  Maturity more than 12 months  3,024 949 

       Total  38,578   32,527 

Note - 16 : Short-Term Loans and Advances
  (a) Advances to Parties 

- Unsecured, Considered Good   1,493   728  

    Total   1,493   728   

Note - 17 : Other Current Assets
 (a) Advances to Creditors  487 316 
 (b) Balance with Department of telecommunication 1,300 1,300
 (c) Prepaid Expenses  490 1,209

     2,277 2,825

Note - 18 : Revenue from Operations
 (a) BPO Income  192,171 202,615
 (b) Medical Transcription Income                                  -    114
 (c) Bandwidth & VOIP Sales  41,376 51,074
 (d) Software Services/Consultancy & IT Income 128,561 40,759
 (e) Software Sales   418,900   334,238 
 (f) Sale of Plants & Seeds   28,374   201,285  

(g) Other Sales     405   13,237 
 (h) Kiosk Registration Charges   342   1,257 

    Total  810,129   844,579  

Note - 19 : Other Income
 (a) Interest Income:  
  - Interest on FDR  2,301 2,312
 (b) Rent Received  300 240
 (c) Income from Partnership Firm R2R Seva 24 24
 (d) Fluctuation in Foreign Currency  138                                 -   
 (e) Miscellaneous Income                                  -    326
 (f) Commission Income  3,080 324
 (g) Profit on sale of Fixed Assets  15 21

   Total 5,858 3,247
Note - 20 : Purchases of Stock in Trade
 (a) Bandwidth & VIOP Purchases   35,189   44,670 
 (b) Purchase of Data   101   -   
  (c)  Software Purchases   455,767   250,377 
  (d)  Other Purchase   405   12,542 
  (e)   Cost of Seeds & Samplings   17,484   156,513 
  (f)  Planatation Expenses   1,632   4,516 

   Total   510,578   468,618 

( `. in ‘000)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)
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Particulars For the year ended 
 31st March, 2016

For the year ended 
31st March, 2015

Note - 21 : Employee Benefits Expense 

 (a) Salaries and Allowances   131,403   137,133 
 (b) Directors’ Salary   1,200   1,200 
 (c) Staff Welfare Expenses    2,379   2,901 
 (d) EPF/ESI   6,491   6,345 

     Total  141,473   147,579  

Note - 22 : Finance Costs
 (a) Bank Charges  120 288
 (b) Interest on Cash Credit  7,620 5,004
 (c) Interest on Car Loan   76 141
 (d) Interest on Term Loan  51                                 -   
 (e) Other Interest  19 29

    Total 7,886 5,462

Note - 23 : Other Expenses
 Electricity Charges   17,640   20,720 
 Rent   32,562   35,592 
 Repairs and Maintenance   
  - Others   2,883   4,246 
 Insurance   149   117 
 Telephone Charges   23,047   19,959 
  Travelling and Conveyance    2,560   5,470 
 Printing and Stationery   1,456   1,658 
 Business Promotion   1,597   3,448 
 Legal and Professional Charges   2,342   8,079 
 Rates and Taxes   1,353   1,491 
 Donation   -     21 
 Computer Hire Charges   5,486   5,621 
 Fluctuation in Foreign Currency   -     139 
 General Expenses   14,130   16,210 
 Auditors Remuneration   
  - As Audit Fees   330   336 

    Total  105,535   123,107 

( `. in ‘000)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 
ended 31st March, 2016 (Contd.)

In terms of our report on even date

For Mandawewala & Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants      
(Firm’s Registration No. 322130E)  

   
CA. Swati Singhal   Sunil Kumar Goyal  N.V. Simhadri  
Partner   Whole Time Director & CEO Chairman   
Membership No. 308308    
 
1, British Indian Street,   Kamal Kishor Poddar Archana Saboo  
1st Floor, Suite No, 110D,  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
Kolkata - 700 069,

Dated : 30th April, 2016 
Place : Kolkata
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Notice is hereby given that the Seventeenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of IKF Technologies Limited 
will be held on Friday, 26th August, 2016 at 3.00 P.M. at ‘The Convergence Centre’, DPSC, Plot No. X-1, 2 & 3, 
Block EP, Sector-V, Salt Lake, Kolkata-700 091, to transact the following businesses :

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

Item No. 1: Adoption of Financial Statements 

To receive, consider and adopt,

(a) The Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2016, together with 
the Report of the Board of Directors and the Report of the Auditors thereon; and

b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2016 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

Item No. 2: Appointment of Director 

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sunil Kumar Goyal (DIN 00550933), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Item No. 3: Ratification of Auditors

The Statutory Auditor M/s. Mandawewala & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration No. 322130E) 
are eligible for continuing appointment. To consider and if thought fit, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and their corresponding rules, pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit Committee 
and the resolution passed by the members at their 15th Annual General Meeting  held on 19th September, 2014, 
the appointment of M/s. Mandawewala & Co., Chartered Accountants, Kolkata bearing Registration Number  
322130E with the institute of Chartered Accountant of India, who have confirmed their eligibility in terms of the 
provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 4 of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 
2014, as Statutory Auditors to hold office upto the Conclusion of 20th Annual General Meeting to be held in 2019, 
be and is hereby ratified at such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company.

 

NOTICE

By Order of the Board of Directors
For IKF Technologies Limited

                              Amar Jyoti Lenka
                        Company Secretary

                     

Registered Office:
2nd Floor, Plot No. J-1/12 Block- EP & GP, Sector-V, 
Salt Lake, Kolkata-700 091
CIN: L72200WB2000PLC111253 
Phone: +91 33 23572610/11 
E-mail: info@ikftech.in
Website: www.ikf-technologies.com

Date: 2nd July, 2016
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NOTES :

A. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (‘AGM’) MAY 
APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND TO VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/
HERSELF AND A PROXY SO APPOINTED NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE 
INSTRUMENT OF PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED AT THE COMPANY’S 
REGISTERED OFFICE, DULY COMPLETED AND SIGNED, NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE 
TIME FIXED FOR COMENCEMENT OF THE AGM I.E. BY 3.00 P.M. ON 24TH OF AUGUST, 2016. A 
PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY (50) AND HOLDING 
IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT (10%) OF THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE 
COMPANY.

B. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives in accordance with Section 113 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing the 
representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM.

C. Members are requested to bring their attendance slips duly filled in and signed as per the specimen signature 
recorded with the Company for attending the meeting along with Annual Report already circulated to them.

D. In case several joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher than in the order of 
names will be entitled to vote at the meeting.

E. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
24th August, 2016 to 26th August, 2016 (both days inclusive) for annual closing.

F. Queries proposed to be raised at the AGM may be sent to the Company at its Registered Office at least 
seven days prior to the date of AGM to enable the Management to compile the relevant information to reply 
the same in the Meeting.

G. Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the documents referred to in 
the Notice etc., shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on any working day 
between 11 A.M. and 4 P.M. up to the date of AGM.

H. Members who hold shares in de-materialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID numbers 
for easier identification of their attendance at the meeting.

I. Members are requested  to intimate immediately any change in address or demise of any Member to the 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company, M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. At E-2/3, Ansal Industrial 
Estate, Sakivihar Road, Sakinaka, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 072 and/or to Company Secretary at the 
Registered Office of the Company at 2nd Floor, J-1/12, Block EP & GP, Sector-V, Salt Lake, Kolkata-700 091, 
quoting their Folio Numbers. Shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to address 
all their correspondence to their respective Depository Participants.

J. In all correspondence with the Company, Members are requested to quote their Account/Folio Number and 
in case their shares are held in the dematerialized form, their Client ID and DP ID Numbers.

K. The Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their respective Depository Participants. Members holding shares 
in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company or Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer 
Agent.
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L. The Registrar of Directors’ Shareholdings and Register of Contracts maintained under section 170 & 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, shall be available for inspection by the Members at the AGM venue during the 
Meeting.

M. Members holding shares in the same name or in the same order of names but in several folios are requested 
to consolidate them into one Folio.

N. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2015-16 is being sent to all the Members whose email IDs are 
registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any member has 
requested for a hard copy of the same. For Members who have not registered their email address, physical 
copies of the Annual Report for 2015-16 is being sent in the permitted mode.

O. Details under Clause 49 of the Listed Agreement with the Stock Exchange in respect of the Directors seeking 
appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, forms integral part of the Notice. The Directors 
have furnished the requisite declarations/consent for their appointment/re-appointment.

P. Electronic copy of the Notice of the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the 
process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip  and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members 
whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purpose 
unless any member(s) has requested for a hard copy of the same. For Members who have not registered 
their email address, physical copies of the Notice of the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company inter 
alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent 
in the permitted mode.

 Members may also note that the Notice of the 17th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2015-16 
will also be available on the Company’s website www.ikf-technologies.com for their download. The Physical 
copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s Registered office in Kolkata 
for inspection during normal business hours on working days. Even after registering for e-communication, 
Members are entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, 
by post free of cost. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s 

investor email id : info@ikftech.in

Q. The Company has no unpaid or unclaimed dividends for the purpose of transferring into the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central Government.

R. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register their e-mail 
address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the 
Company electronically.

S. Voting through electronic means

 In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements), Regulation 2015, the Company is pleased to provide Members facility to exercise 
their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be passed in the 17th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic 

means and the business may be transacted through Remote e-Voting Services provided by NSDL :

 1. The facility for voting through poll by ballot paper shall be made available at the Meeting and the 

members attending the Meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to vote 

at the Meeting through poll by ballot paper.

 2.  The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting may also attend the Meeting but shall not 

be entitled to cast their vote again.
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 3. The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Ms. Chanchal Sharma, Practicing Company 

Secretary, Kolkata as Scrutinizer the poll by ballot paper and remote e-voting process in a fair and 

transparent manner and she has communicated his willingness to be appointed and will be available 

for same purpose.

 4. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the names of the member/

beneficial owner (in case of electronic shareholding) as on the cut-off date i.e. 19th August, 2016 only 

shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting/poll by ballot paper.

 5. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date i.e. 19th August, 2016 only shall be entitled to 

avail the facility of remote e-voting/Poll by ballot paper.

 6. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, the member shall not be allowed to change it 

subsequently or cast the vote again.

 7. In case of any query pertaining to e-voting, please visit Instructions FAQ’s for Members 

& E-voting User Manual for Members in download section of NSDL’s e-voting website 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800222990 or contract Mr. Subhashis Sengupta, 

Assistant Manager NSDL at designated emails ids evoting@nsdl.co.in or subhashisS@nsdl.co.in or at 

telephone nos: 022-2499 4545/4738. Members may also address their queries relating to e-voting to 

the e-mail ID evoting@ikftech.in.

 8. The Remote E-voting period begins at 9.00 A.M. on Tuesday, 23rd August, 2016 and ends at 5.00 P.M. 

on Thursday, 25th August, 2016. During this period members of the Company, holding shares either in 

physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the  cut – off date (record date) i.e. 19th August,  2016 

may cast their vote electronically. The e-Voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 

The instructions for e-voting are as under :

  (I)  In case of Members who receive the Notice in Electronic Mode:

  (a) Open e-mail and open PDF file viz. “IKF Technologies e-voting.pdf” with your client ID No. or 
Folio No. as password. The said PDF file contains your user ID and password for e-voting. 
Please note that the password is an initial password. You will not receive this PDF file if you 
are already registered with NSDL for e-voting.

 (b) Launch internet browser by typing the URL : https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ and click on 
“Shareholder-Login”.

 (c) Put User ID and password as initial password noted in step (a) above and Click Login. If you 
are already registered with NSDL for e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and 
password. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User 
Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

 (d) Password change menu appears. Change the password with a new password of your choice 
with minimum 8 digits/character or combination thereof. Please do not share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

 (e) Home page of e-voting opens. Click on “e-voting : Active E-voting Cycles” and select 
the Electronic Voting Event Number (104495) of IKF Technologies Limited. Members 
can cast their vote online on Tuesday, 23rd August, 2016 (from 9.00 A.M.) to Thursday, 
25th August, 2016 (till 5.00 P.M.).
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 (f) Now you are ready for e-voting as ‘Cast Vote’ page opens.

 (g) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit”. Thereafter click on 
‘Confirm” when prompted.

 (h) Upon confirmation, the message ‘Vote cast successfully’ will be displayed. Thereafter you 
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

 (i) Corporate and institutional shareholders (companies, trusts, societies etc.) are required to 
send a scanned copy (in PDF/JPG format) of the relevant Board Resolution/appropriate 
authorization, with the specimen signature(s) of the Authorised signatory(ies) duly attested, 
to the Scrutinizer through e-mail at ikfscrutinizer@gmail.com with a copy marked to NSDL’s 
e-mail id: evoting@nsdl.co.in.

 (II) In case of Members who receive the Notice by Post:

 (a) User ID and initial password is provided for the purpose of remote e-voting for AGM.

 (b) Please follow the steps from Sl. No. (b) to (i) mentioned in (I) above, to cast your vote.

 (III) Members already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting can use their existing user ID and 

password for Login. Thereafter please follow the steps from Sl. Nos. (e) to (i) mentioned in (I) 

above, to cast your vote.

 (IV) General Information

 (a) Every Client ID No./Folio No. shall have one e-vote, irrespective of the number of joint 
holders.

 (b) Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid up value of shares registered in the name of the 

Member as on 19th August, 2016.

 (c) Remote E-voting right cannot be exercised by a proxy.

 (d) The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes cast at the meeting through poll by ballot 
paper and through remote e-voting, will, not later than three days of conclusion of the 
Meeting, make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report and submit the same to the Chairman. 
The results declared along with the consolidated scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on 
the website of the Company www.ikf-technologies.com and on the website of NSDL 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. The result shall simultaneously be communicated to the Stock 

Exchanges, where the Company’s share are listed.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For IKF Technologies Limited

                              Amar Jyoti Lenka
                        Company Secretary

                     

Registered Office:
2nd Floor, Plot No. J-1/12 Block- EP & GP, Sector-V, 
Salt Lake, Kolkata-700 091
CIN: L72200WB2000PLC111253 
Phone: +91 33 23572610/11 
E-mail: info@ikftech.in
Website: www.ikf-technologies.com

Date: 2nd July, 2016





17TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

PROXY FORM

Form MGT- 11
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Shareholder(s) (In Block Letters)  ....................................................................................................................

Registered Address  ..............................................................................................................................................................

E-mail Id  ................................................................................................................................................................................

Registered Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID No. 

I/We, being the Shareholder(s) holding   .................................................... shares of IKF Technologies Limited hereby appoint:-

(1) Name :  .....................................................................Address  ...................................................................................  

 E-mail ID:  ...................................................................Signature  ...................................................................................
or falling him/her

(2) Name :  .....................................................................Address  ...................................................................................  

 E-mail ID:  ...................................................................Signature   ...................................................................................
or falling him/her

(3) Name :  .....................................................................Address  ...................................................................................

 E-mail ID:  ...................................................................Signature  ...................................................................................

or falling him/her

as my / our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf, if not already voted by me/us through remote e-voting, at the 17th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 26th day of August, 2016 at 3:00 P.M. at The Convergence Centre, DPSC, 

Plot no. X-1, 2 & 3, Block EP, Sector - V, Salt lake, Kolkata – 700 091 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as 

are indicated below:

Resolution No. Description Optional ( 3 )

For Against

Ordinary Business

1. Adoption of Annual Accounts of the Company as on 31st March, 2016.

2. Appointment of Director who is liable to retire by rotation.

3. Ratification of Statutory Auditors of the Company.

Signed this ___________________________ day of ____________________________ 2016

Signature of Shareholder (s) ____________________________________________________

Signature of Proxy holder (s) ____________________________________________________

Note: This form of  Proxy in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 

of the Company at 2nd Floor, Plot No. J 1/12, Block EP & GP, Sector – V, Salt Lake, Kolkata – 700 091 not less 

than 48 hours before the commencement of the AGM i.e. by 03:00 p.m. on 26th August, 2016.

Affix
Revenue 
Stamp

"

IKF Technologies Limited 
Regd. Off – 2nd Floor, Plot No. J 1/12, Block EP & GP, Sector – V, Salt Lake, Kolkata – 700 091

Tel No: +91 33 2357 2610/11; Fax No: +91 33 2357 2612
E-mail: info@ikftech.in; Website: www.ikf-technologies.com

CIN: L72200WB2000PLC111253





"

17TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ATTENDANCE SLIP

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE

Name of the Shareholder (s) (In Block Letters) ...............................................................................................................................

Registered Folio No./DP ID & Client ID No. ....................................................................................................................................                   

No. of Shares held .........................................................................................................................................................................

Name of the Proxy, if any (In Block Letters) ....................................................................................................................................

I hereby record my presence at the 17TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company being held at The Convergence 
Centre, DPSC, Plot no. X-1, 2 & 3, Block EP, Sector - V, Salt lake, Kolkata – 700 091 on Friday, 26th day of August, 2016 at 
03:00 P.M 

Signature of the        Shareholder        or Proxy ..............................................................................................................................

Note: Shareholder/Proxy attending the Annual General meeting (AGM) must bring his/her Admission Slip which should 

be signed and deposited before entry to the Auditorium.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

In terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014 and amendments thereafter, the Resolutions proposed at the 17th AGM will be transacted through remote 

E-Voting (facility to cast vote from a place other than the venue of the AGM).

EVEN (E-voting Event Number) User ID Password

104495

Please refer to Note No. S of Notice

REGISTRATION OF E-MAIL ADDRESS FOR FUTURE COMMUNICATION

Name of the Shareholder (s) (In Block Letters) ................................................................................................................................

Registered Address. .......................................................................................................................................................................                  

E-mail Id .........................................................................................................................................................................................

Registered Folio No/DP ID & Client ID No. ......................................................................................................................................

Signature of the Shareholder (s) ......................................................................................................................................................

IKF Technologies Limited 
Regd. Off – 2nd Floor, Plot No. J 1/12, Block EP & GP, Sector – V, Salt Lake, Kolkata – 700 091

Tel No: +91 33 2357 2610/11; Fax No: +91 33 2357 2612
E-mail: info@ikftech.in; Website: www.ikf-technologies.com

CIN: L72200WB2000PLC111253
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BOOK-POST

If undelivered please return to:

www.ikf-technologies.com

Saltee Tech Park

 Route Map of AGM Venue

‘The Convergence Centre’
DPSC, Plot No. X-1, 2 & 3, Block EP, 
Sector-V, Salt Lake
Kolkata-700 091


